
Democratic Services Contact Officer: Patrick Adams 03450 450 500 

 
 
 
 
 
 

21 June 2012 
 
To: Chairman – Councillor Francis Burkitt 
 Vice-Chairman – Councillor David McCraith 
 Members of the Corporate Governance Committee – Councillors Richard Barrett, 

Mark Hersom, Douglas de Lacey, Ted Ridgway Watt, Peter Topping and 
John Williams 

Quorum: 3 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE, 
which will be held in MONKFIELD ROOM, FIRST FLOOR at South Cambridgeshire Hall on 
FRIDAY, 29 JUNE 2012 at 9.00 a.m. 
 
Members are respectfully reminded that when substituting on committees, subcommittees, and 
outside or joint bodies, Democratic Services must be advised of the substitution in advance of 
the meeting.  It is not possible to accept a substitute once the meeting has started.  Council 
Standing Order 4.3 refers. 
 
Yours faithfully 
JEAN HUNTER 
Chief Executive 
 

The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the 
community, access to its agendas and minutes.  We try to take all 
circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, 

please let us know, and we will do what we can to help you. 
 

 
AGENDA 

PAGES 
1. Apologies for Absence    
 To receive apologies for absence from committee members.   
   
2. Declarations of Interest    
 
3. Minutes of Previous Meeting   1 - 6 
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 23 March 2012 as a 

correct record. 
 

   
 AUDIT REPORTS   
 
4. Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12   7 - 18 
 
5. Internal Audit Progress Report   19 - 34 
 
 

 South Cambridgeshire Hall 
Cambourne Business Park 
Cambourne 
Cambridge 
CB23 6EA 
t: 03450 450 500 
f: 01954 713149 
dx: DX 729500 Cambridge 15 
minicom: 01480 376743 
www.scambs.gov.uk 



 DECISION ITEMS   
 
6. Statement of Accounts 2011/12 (Subject to Audit)   35 - 130 
 
7. Strategic Risk Register / Risk Management Strategy   131 - 

182 
 
8. Annual Governance Statement   183 - 

208 
 
9. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA): Quarterly 

Update  
 209 - 

210 
 
10. Bribery Policy   211 - 

220 
 
 INFORMATION ITEMS   
 
11. Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2011/12   221 - 

222 
 This includes the annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to 

the Local Government Ombudsman about the Council for the year ending 
31 March 2012. 

 

   
12. Matters of Topical Interest    
 The Executive Director will give a verbal update on the appointment of 

the Council’s External Auditors. Corporate Governance Committee is 
requested to note: 

a) That, following the Committee’s instruction, the Executive Director 
Corporate Services invited Karl Havers, Contact Partner for Ernst 
and Young, to attend this meeting to provide an update on the 
progress of transferring the external audit service to his firm with 
effect from 1 November 2012 and  

b) That this invitation was welcomed but declined due to an explicit 
instruction from the Audit Commission not to engage with 
prospective audit clients at this stage of the appointment process. 

 

   
13. Date of Next Meeting    
 The Committee are asked note the following meeting dates, all at 9am: 

• Friday 28 September 2012 
• Friday 14 December 2012 
• Friday 22 March 2013  

 

   



 
OUR VISION 

South Cambridgeshire will continue to be the best place to live and work in the country. Our 
district will demonstrate impressive and sustainable economic growth. Our residents will have a 
superb quality of life in an exceptionally beautiful, rural and green environment. The Council will 
be recognised as consistently innovative and a high performer with a track record of delivering 
value for money by focussing on the priorities, needs and aspirations of our residents, parishes 
and businesses. 
 

OUR VALUES 
We will demonstrate our corporate values in all our actions. These are: 
• Trust 
• Mutual respect 
• A commitment to improving services 
• Customer service 

 
  



 GUIDANCE NOTES FOR VISITORS TO SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE HALL 
 While the District Council endeavours to ensure that visitors come to no harm when visiting South 
Cambridgeshire Hall, those visitors also have a responsibility to make sure that they do not risk their own 
or others’ safety. 
 
Security 
Members of the public attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices must report to 
Reception, sign in, and at all times wear the Visitor badges issued.  Before leaving the building, such 
visitors must sign out and return their Visitor badges to Reception. 
 
Emergency and Evacuation 
In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound.  Evacuate the building using the nearest escape 
route; from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this would be via the staircase just outside 
the door.  Go to the assembly point at the far side of the staff car park. 
• Do not use the lifts to exit the building.  If you are unable to negotiate stairs by yourself, the 

emergency staircase landings are provided with fire refuge areas, which afford protection for a 
minimum of 1.5 hours.  Press the alarm button and wait for assistance from the Council fire 
wardens or the fire brigade. 

• Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the fire brigade confirms that it is safe to 
do so. 

 
First Aid 
If someone feels unwell or needs first aid, please alert a member of staff. 
 
Access for People with Disabilities 
The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to its agendas and 
minutes. We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us 
know, and we will do what we can to help you.  All meeting rooms are accessible to wheelchair users.  
There are disabled toilet facilities on each floor of the building.  Infra-red hearing assistance systems are 
available in the Council Chamber and viewing gallery. To use these, you must sit in sight of the infra-red 
transmitter and wear a ‘neck loop’, which can be used with a hearing aid switched to the ‘T’ position.  If 
your hearing aid does not have the ‘T’ position facility then earphones are also available and can be used 
independently. You can obtain both neck loops and earphones from Reception. 
 
Toilets 
Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts. 
 
Recording of Business and Use of Mobile Phones 
The Council is committed to openness and transparency.  The Council and all its committees, sub-
committees or any other sub-group of the Council or the Executive have the ability to formally suspend 
Standing Order 21.4 (prohibition of recording of business) upon request to enable the recording of 
business, including any audio / visual or photographic recording in any format.   
 
Use of social media during meetings is permitted to bring Council issues to a wider audience.  To 
minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, all attendees and visitors are asked to make sure 
that their phones and other mobile devices are set on silent / vibrate mode during meetings. 
 
Banners, Placards and similar items 
No member of the public shall be allowed to bring into or display at any Council meeting any banner, 
placard, poster or other similar item. The Chairman may require any such item to be removed. 
 
Disturbance by Public 
If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Chairman will warn the person concerned.  If they 
continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their removal from the meeting room.  If there is a general 
disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the public, the Chairman may call for that part to be 
cleared. 
 
Smoking 
Since 1 July 2008, the Council has operated a Smoke Free Policy. Visitors are not allowed to smoke at 
any time within the Council offices, or in the car park or other grounds forming part of those offices. 
 
Food and Drink 
Vending machines and a water dispenser are available on the ground floor near the lifts at the front of the 
building.  Visitors are not allowed to bring food or drink into the meeting room. 
   



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Corporate Governance Committee held on 
Friday, 23 March 2012 at 9.00 a.m. 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Francis Burkitt – Chairman 
  Councillor David McCraith – Vice-Chairman 
 
Councillors: Richard Barrett John Batchelor 
 Douglas de Lacey John Williams 
 
Officers: Patrick Adams Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 Adrian Burns Head of Accountancy 
 Alex Colyer Executive Director, Corporate Services 
 Fiona McMillan Legal & Democratic Services Manager and 

Monitoring Officer 
 Sally Smart Principal Accountant Financial & Systems 
 
External: Neil Gibson Audit Commission 
 Paul King Audit Commission 
 Daniel Harris RSM Tenon 
 Suzanne Lane RSM Tenon 
 
33. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 Councillor John Batchelor declared a personal but not prejudicial interest in the External 

Audit Plan as a member of the Cambridgeshire County Council’s Pensions Committee and 
member of the pension scheme. He also declared a personal but not prejudicial interest in 
the same item as a member of the Cambridgeshire Police Authority. Notwithstanding 
these interests Councillor Bachelor remained in the room and participated in the 
discussion. 

  
34. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 16 December were agreed as a correct record, 

subject to the amendment of the first bullet point under minute 28 “Plain English 
Accounts”, which was divided into three bullet points: 
• A different font 
• A5 paper 
• Photographs 

  
35. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 
 
 Dan Harris of RSM Tenon introduced this report, which summarised the outcome of work 

completed to date against the internal audit plan for 2011/12. He highlighted paragraph 
3.2 of the report, which stated that no work had been identified that would impact 
negatively on this year’s annual opinion. 
 
The Committee welcomed the report and concluded that the number of recommendations 
reflected that the internal auditors were performing their duties well and should not be 
taken to be a criticism of the authority. 
 
The Committee NOTED the report. 

  

Agenda Item 3Page 1



Corporate Governance Committee Friday, 23 March 2012 

36. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 
 
 Dan Harris from RSM Tenon presented the Audit Plan, which set out Internal Audit’s three 

year strategy and a more detailed plan for 2012/13. 
 
Planning growth 
It was agreed that the audit on planning growth needed to consider the possible impact of 
the Localism Act that could allow residents to block development that they were opposed 
to. It was agreed that something to this effect should be included in the overview of this 
audit, as described in the Audit Plan. 
 
Repairs Partnership Arrangements 
Dan Harris explained that the new repairs contract with Mears would be subject to a more 
detailed internal audit than an older contract. It was noted that as the audit would be 
carried out in April/May it would be too soon to review performance and so the audit would 
focus on the adequacy, accuracy and timeliness of reporting. 
 
Corporate governance 
It was accepted that it was good practice to audit the Council’s corporate governance 
arrangements once a year, although the exact areas to be covered had not yet been 
agreed as there were no obvious areas of concern. 
 
Safeguarding 
It was noted that the review on Safeguarding was not annual and that the 
Source/Rationale for this needed to be amended. 
 
The Committee ENDORSED the Internal Audit Plan. 

  
37. EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 
 
 Paul King presented this report which updated the Committee on the recent work of the 

Council’s external auditors and the contracting out of the external audit service to Ernst & 
Young. 
 
Minor amendment 
It was noted that a minor amendment was required to the third bullet point on page 7 of 
the report (page 39 of the agenda). The sentence should end “… housing revenue 
subsidy.” Instead of “… housing revenue account.” 
 
New external auditors 
It was noted that the Government had awarded the contract for the external audit of public 
bodies in this region for the next five years to Ernst & Young. The new contract would 
come into effect on 31 October 2012. It was understood that unless there was a clear 
conflict of interest the Council had to accept Ernst & Young as its External Auditors. As 
was usual in these cases, the onus would be on Ernst & Young to identify any conflicts of 
interest through being the Council’s auditors. Concerns were raised by members of the 
Committee with regard to possible conflicts of interest through the Council’s partnership 
working with health organisations and those organisations that had contracts with the 
Council. 
 
Transfer of auditors 
Paul King explained that whilst he and Neil Gibson would be TUPE transferred over to 
Ernst & Young and would continue as the Council’s external auditors, they would ensure 
that work to be carried out by the Audit Commission, such as the audit of housing and 
council tax benefit, would be completed before the transfer, so as to mark a clean break 

Page 2



Corporate Governance Committee Friday, 23 March 2012 

between the engagement of the two auditors. It was suggested that only a representative 
of Ernst & Young could assure the Committee that the current level of service would 
continue. 
 
Audit fees 
The Council had not yet been informed what Ernst & Young’s audit fees would be but a 
press release from the Audit Commission had stated that there would be “an expected 
£250 million (or 40 per cent) reduction in audit fees”. 
 
Meeting with Ernst & Young 
It was noted that Ernst & Young were inviting their new clients to a meeting on 14 May 
2012. It was suggested that the Council should have a representative at this meeting 
although it was also noted that no official invitation had yet been received. 
 
It was agreed that the Committee should have an opportunity to speak to representatives 
of Ernst & Young to discuss: 
• Whether they had any conflicts of interest by being the Council’s auditors. 
• Whether the service currently provided by the Audit Commission would continue. 
• What their fees would be. 

 
The Committee AGREED to invite representatives of Ernst & Young to the next meeting of 
the Committee. 

  
38. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2011/12 
 
 Paul King from the Audit Commission presented this report on the External Audit Plan, 

which set out the work for the 2011/12 Audit. 
 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) reform 
Paul King explained that the impact of the Government’s reform of local authority housing 
finance had been assessed as a significant risk, as the Council were taking on 
approximately £205 million worth of debt and there was a lack of clarity from the 
Government over the detailed aspects of the reform. 
 
Audit fee 
It was noted that external audit’s fee of £114,000 represented a 5% reduction on the fee 
for 2010/11. In addition to this the Audit Commission gave all authorities a rebate on their 
fees due to efficiency savings. The Council’s rebate was £9,120. It was noted that the 
Government were expecting a further reduction in the external audit fees of all councils by 
awarding regional contracts. 
 
New external auditors 
Paul King explained that the Annual Audit Letter would be completed in October this year, 
which was a month earlier than usual. This was to ensure that the current auditors would 
complete their work for the Audit Commission before they transferred over to Ernst & 
Young. The prospect of Paul King and Neil Gibson continuing as the Council’s auditors 
was welcomed by the Committee. 
 
The Committee ENDORSED the Audit Plan. 

  
39. ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
 
 The Executive Director (Corporate Services) presented this report which invited the 

Committee to review the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, make any amendments 

Page 3



Corporate Governance Committee Friday, 23 March 2012 

and then recommend it to Council. It was noted that recommendations had been made in 
Internal Audit’s risk maturity review, the majority of which had been accepted. 
 
An alternative method of assessing risk likelihood and impact as detailed in appendix C 
was considered and rejected on the grounds that it would be too difficult to quantify a risk’s 
impact and its likelihood under this method. 
 
The Corporate Governance Committee 
 
RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL The Draft Risk Management Strategy as detailed in 

appendix B of the report. 
  
40. STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER 
 
 The Executive Director (Corporate Services) introduced this report, which invited the 

Committee to consider whether the Council’s risk register was being properly monitored. 
 
The Chairman reminded the Committee that its purpose was to examine the risk 
monitoring process and not whether each individual risk had been properly scored. It was 
noted that comments could be made on whether individual risks had been properly 
assessed at the meeting of Council on 26 April 2012. 
 
The Committee NOTED the report. 

  
41. MATTERS OF TOPICAL INTEREST 
 
 Actions from meeting of 16 December 2011 

It was noted that a letter had been sent to the Office of Surveillance Commissioners 
regarding the implementation of their recommendations, as discussed at the previous 
meeting. 
 
It was noted that Councillor John Batchelor was due to meet with the Executive Director 
(Corporate Services) regarding the Local Government Pension Scheme and its 
implications for the Council. 
 
It was noted that a guide on the Localism Act had been included in a recent Weekly 
Bulletin. 
 
Cost reductions 
It was agreed that wherever possible agendas should not be printed in colour and on 
thinner paper for reasons of cost. 
 
Annual Governance Statement 
The Legal and Democratic Services Manager explained that the draft Annual Governance 
Statement would be going to EMT shortly and then would be circulated to the Committee 
by e-mail. 

  
42. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 The Committee NOTED that it would be meeting on the following dates, all at 9am: 

• Friday 29 June 2012 
• Friday 28 September 2012  
• Friday 14 December 2012 
• Friday 22 March 2013 

Page 4



Corporate Governance Committee Friday, 23 March 2012 

  
  

The Meeting ended at 10.20 a.m. 
 

 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is left blank intentionally.



 

  
S

O
U

TH
 C

A
M

B
R

ID
G

E
S

H
IR

E
 D

IS
TR

IC
T 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t 2
01

1/
12

 
   P

re
se

nt
ed

 a
t t

he
 C

or
po

ra
te

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 m

ee
tin

g 
of

: 2
9 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 
 A

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
: D

an
 H

ar
ris

 a
s 

H
ea

d 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
  

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

: 
T

ha
t t

he
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 N
o

te
s 

th
e 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t

Agenda Item 4Page 7



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

  

  
 

 

C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 

 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 
P

ag
e 

1 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
1 

2 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 fo

r 
20

11
/1

2 
1 

 
 

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

O
pi

ni
on

s 
an

d 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 2

01
1/

12
 

5 

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 
D

ef
in

iti
on

s 
of

 th
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f a
ss

ur
an

ce
 a

nd
 th

e 
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

of
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

9 

  T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 is
 p

re
pa

re
d 

so
le

ly
 fo

r 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il.

  
D

et
ai

ls
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
, 

bu
t o

th
er

w
is

e 
th

e 
re

po
rt

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t b

e 
qu

ot
ed

 o
r 

re
fe

rr
ed

 to
 in

 w
ho

le
 o

r 
in

 p
ar

t w
ith

ou
t p

rio
r 

co
ns

en
t. 

 N
o 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 a
ny

 th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 is

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
as

 th
e 

re
po

rt
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

, a
nd

 is
 n

ot
 in

te
nd

ed
 fo

r 
an

y 
ot

he
r 

pu
rp

os
e.

 
 

     ©
 2

01
2 

R
S

M
 T

en
on

 L
im

ite
d 

 R
S

M
 T

en
on

 L
im

ite
d 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r 

of
 R

S
M

 T
en

on
 G

ro
up

 
 R

S
M

 T
en

on
 L

im
ite

d 
is

 a
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t m

em
be

r 
fir

m
 o

f R
S

M
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l a

n 
af

fil
ia

tio
n 

of
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

an
d 

co
ns

ul
tin

g 
fir

m
s.

   
R

S
M

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l i
s 

th
e 

na
m

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 a

 n
et

w
or

k 
of

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

fir
m

s 
ea

ch
 o

f w
hi

ch
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 in
 it

s 
ow

n 
rig

ht
.  

 
R

S
M

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l d
oe

s 
no

t e
xi

st
 in

 a
ny

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

as
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
le

ga
l e

nt
ity

. 
 R

S
M

 T
en

on
 L

im
ite

d 
(N

o 
40

66
92

4)
 is

 r
eg

is
te

re
d 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 W

al
es

.  
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
O

ffi
ce

 6
6 

C
hi

lte
rn

 S
tr

ee
t, 

Lo
nd

on
 W

1U
 4

G
B

. E
ng

la
nd

  

Page 8



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

  

1

 

1 
IN

T
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 

1.
1 

 
T

h
e 

R
o

le
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

u
d

it
 

T
he

 
ro

le
 

of
 

in
te

rn
al

 
au

di
t 

is
 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

w
ith

 
an

 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 a

de
qu

ac
y 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 
co

nt
ro

l, 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
. 

 I
nt

er
na

l 
au

di
t 

is
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
a 

ke
y 

pa
rt

 
of

 
S

ou
th

 
C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

cy
cl

e 
an

d 
if 

us
ed

 p
ro

pe
rly

 c
an

 h
el

p 
to

 i
nf

or
m

 
an

d 
up

da
te

 t
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n’
s 

ris
k 

pr
of

ile
. 

 I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
is

 ju
st

 o
ne

 
of

 t
he

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

. 

T
he

 d
ef

in
iti

on
 o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it,

 a
s 

de
sc

rib
ed

 i
n 

C
IP

F
A

’s
 C

od
e 

of
 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 
In

te
rn

al
 

A
ud

it 
in

 
Lo

ca
l 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

in
 

th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

, i
s 

se
t o

ut
 b

el
ow

: 

� 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

is
 a

n 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

fu
nc

tio
n 

th
at

 p
rim

ar
ily

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
an

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t a

nd
 o

bj
ec

tiv
e 

op
in

io
n 

to
 th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
on

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
l 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

co
m

pr
is

in
g 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

co
nt

ro
l 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

by
 

ev
al

ua
tin

g 
its

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n’
s 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
. 

It 
ob

je
ct

iv
el

y 
ex

am
in

es
, 

ev
al

ua
te

s 
an

d 
re

po
rt

s 
on

 t
he

 a
de

qu
ac

y 
of

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

as
 a

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 t
he

 p
ro

pe
r,

 e
co

no
m

ic
, 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
. 

� 
W

hi
ls

t 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

“p
rim

ar
ily

” 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

op
in

io
n 

to
 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

on
 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
l 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

it 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
ot

he
r,

 n
on

-a
ss

ur
an

ce
 w

or
k 

at
 t

he
 r

eq
ue

st
 o

f 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 t
he

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 

sk
ill

s 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 
T

hi
s 

ca
n 

in
cl

ud
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

nc
y 

w
or

k;
 

in
de

ed
, 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
in

tr
in

si
ca

lly
 d

el
iv

er
s 

co
ns

ul
ta

nc
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 
w

he
n 

m
ak

in
g 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 f
or

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
ar

is
in

g 
fr

om
 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
w

or
k,

 a
nd

 fr
au

d-
re

la
te

d 
w

or
k.

 

    

 

1.
2 

A
n

n
u

al
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 

T
he

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

st
at

em
en

t 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 
w

ith
 

th
e 

C
IP

F
A

 
/ 

S
O

LA
C

E
 

G
oo

d 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

st
at

ut
or

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t 
se

t 
ou

t 
in

 t
he

 A
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
A

ud
it 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

, 
w

hi
ch

 s
et

 o
ut

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t f
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

to
 p

re
pa

re
 a

 s
ta

te
m

en
t o

f i
nt

er
na

l c
on

tr
ol

 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 “
pr

op
er

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
”.

  

A
s 

yo
ur

 i
nt

er
na

l 
au

di
t 

pr
ov

id
er

, 
th

e 
as

si
gn

m
en

t 
op

in
io

ns
 t

ha
t 

R
S

M
 

T
en

on
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 a

re
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
or

 
as

su
ra

nc
es

 
th

at
 

as
si

st
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

pr
ep

ar
e 

an
 

in
fo

rm
ed

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

st
at

em
en

t. 

 

2 
IN

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 F

O
R

 2
01

1/
12

 
2.

1 
C

o
n

te
xt

 

A
s 

th
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 
of

 
th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 

au
di

t 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 
S

ou
th

 
C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

e 
pr

ov
id

e 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 w

ith
 a

n 
op

in
io

n 
on

 th
e 

ad
eq

ua
cy

 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n’

s 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

, 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

l 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. 

In
 g

iv
in

g 
ou

r 
op

in
io

n 
it 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
no

te
d 

th
at

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 c

an
 n

ev
er

 b
e 

ab
so

lu
te

. 
T

he
 m

os
t 

th
at

 
th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 

au
di

t 
se

rv
ic

e 
ca

n 
pr

ov
id

e 
to

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 
a 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 t
ha

t 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 m

aj
or

 w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 r

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ol
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

. 

T
he

 m
at

te
rs

 r
ai

se
d 

in
 t

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 a

re
 o

nl
y 

th
os

e 
w

hi
ch

 c
am

e 
to

 o
ur

 
at

te
nt

io
n 

du
rin

g 
ou

r 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

w
or

k 
an

d 
ar

e 
no

t 
ne

ce
ss

ar
ily

 a
 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
of

 a
ll 

th
e 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

th
at

 e
xi

st
, 

or
 o

f 
al

l 
th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

ha
t 

m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d.

  
T

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 i

s 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 

so
le

ly
 f

or
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il.

  
D

et
ai

ls
 

m
ay

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ge

nc
ie

s,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
, 

bu
t 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
th

e 
re

po
rt

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t 

be
 q

uo
te

d 
or

 
re

fe
rr

ed
 

to
 

in
 

w
ho

le
 

or
 

in
 

pa
rt

 
w

ith
ou

t 
pr

io
r 

co
ns

en
t. 

 
N

o 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

ny
 t

hi
rd

 p
ar

ty
 i

s 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
re

po
rt

 h
as

 n
ot

 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d,

 a
nd

 is
 n

ot
 in

te
nd

ed
 fo

r 
an

y 
ot

he
r 

pu
rp

os
e.

 

 

Page 9



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

  

2

 

2.
2 

In
te

rn
al

 A
u

d
it

 A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

T
hi

s 
an

nu
al

 H
ea

d 
of

 I
nt

er
na

l 
A

ud
it 

op
in

io
n 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 S

ou
th

 
C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

by
 R

S
M

 T
en

on
 L

im
ite

d.
 

W
e 

ar
e 

sa
tis

fie
d 

th
at

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 i

nt
er

na
l 

au
di

t 
w

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 to
 a

llo
w

 u
s 

to
 d

ra
w

 a
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
co

nc
lu

si
on

 o
n 

th
e 

ad
eq

ua
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. 

In
 o

ur
 o

pi
ni

on
, 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 t

he
 w

or
k 

w
e 

ha
ve

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n,

 f
or

 
th

e 
12

 m
on

th
s 

en
de

d 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ad
eq

ua
te

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
co

nt
ro

l a
nd

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
to

 m
an

ag
e 

th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t 

of
 th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n’
s 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
. 

2.
3 

 
S

co
p

e 
o

f 
th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 A

u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n
 

In
 a

rr
iv

in
g 

at
 o

ur
 o

pi
ni

on
, w

e 
ha

ve
 ta

ke
n 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

: 

� 
T

he
 r

es
ul

ts
 o

f 
al

l 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
its

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 

en
de

d 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

(s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 f
or

 a
 s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 

au
di

ts
);

 

� 
T

he
 r

es
ul

ts
 o

f 
fo

llo
w

-u
p 

ac
tio

n 
ta

ke
n 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f 
au

di
ts

 f
ro

m
 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

rs
; 

� 
W

he
th

er
 

fu
nd

am
en

ta
l 

or
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
by

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d,

 i
f 

no
t, 

th
e 

co
ns

eq
ue

nt
 

ris
ks

; 

� 
T

he
 

af
fe

ct
s 

of
 

an
y 

m
at

er
ia

l 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n’
s 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 o

r 
ac

tiv
iti

es
; 

� 
M

at
te

rs
 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

re
po

rt
s 

or
 

ot
he

r 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
to

 
th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
an

d/
or

 
C

ou
nc

il;
 

� 
W

he
th

er
 o

r 
no

t 
an

y 
lim

ita
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
la

ce
d 

on
 t

he
 s

co
pe

 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it;
 

� 
W

he
th

er
 t

he
re

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

ny
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s 

im
po

se
d 

up
on

 u
s 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

im
pi

ng
ed

 o
n 

ou
r 

ab
ili

ty
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

fu
ll 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n;
 a

nd
 

� 
W

ha
t p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n’

s 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

ne
ed

s 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 c
ov

er
ed

 to
 d

at
e.

  

  2.
4 

T
h

e 
B

as
is

 o
f 

th
e 

O
p

in
io

n
 

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 

O
ur

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 k
ey

 a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 l

in
ke

d 
to

 t
he

 C
IP

F
A

 ‘
G

oo
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

in
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k’

. 
T

he
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
in

cl
ud

es
 

sy
st

em
s,

 
pr

oc
es

se
s,

 
cu

ltu
re

 
an

d 
va

lu
es

 
by

 
w

hi
ch

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 d
ire

ct
ed

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ol

le
d 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 o
f 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
th

at
 t

he
y 

en
ga

ge
 w

ith
. 

 W
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
A

nn
ua

l G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
20

10
/1

1 
ha

d 
be

en
 c

le
ar

ly
 l

in
ke

d 
to

 t
he

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k.
 

T
he

 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 

as
si

gn
ed

 
to

 
th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e,

 C
om

m
itt

ee
s 

an
d 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
er

e 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 C

on
st

itu
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

re
le

va
nt

 d
el

eg
at

io
ns

 a
re

 
in

 
pl

ac
e.

 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

w
e 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 

th
at

 
th

e 
vi

si
on

, 
ai

m
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 a

gr
ee

d 
fo

r 
20

11
/1

2 
w

er
e 

no
t 

co
lla

te
d 

in
to

 t
he

 u
su

al
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

la
n 

th
is

 y
ea

r,
 b

ut
 w

er
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

se
tti

ng
. A

 L
on

g 
T

er
m

 V
is

io
n 

w
as

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 o

ur
 

re
vi

ew
. S

in
ce

 o
ur

 r
ev

ie
w

 th
is

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

d.
   

 
T

ak
in

g 
ac

co
un

t 
of

 t
he

 i
ss

ue
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d,
 t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ca
n 

ta
ke

 
re

as
on

ab
le

 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

th
at

 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
 

up
on

 
w

hi
ch

 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
re

lie
s 

to
 

m
an

ag
e 

th
is

 
ar

ea
 

ar
e 

su
ita

bl
y 

de
si

gn
ed

, 
co

ns
is

te
nt

ly
 a

pp
lie

d 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e.

  
H

ow
ev

er
 w

e 
ha

ve
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 
is

su
es

 
th

at
, 

if 
no

t 
ad

dr
es

se
d,

 
in

cr
ea

se
 

th
e 

lik
el

ih
oo

d 
of

 
th

e 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s.

 
 R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

O
ur

 R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
co

ve
ra

ge
 t

hi
s 

ye
ar

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 R

is
k 

M
at

ur
ity

: 

Page 10



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

  

3

 

� 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e;
 

� 
R

is
k 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n;
 

� 
R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t; 

� 
R

is
k 

M
iti

ga
tio

n;
 

� 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

; a
nd

  
� 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g.

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

w
e 

co
ns

id
er

 
th

at
 

th
e 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
as

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

w
as

 a
de

qu
at

e 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e.

 I
n 

m
os

t 
in

st
an

ce
s 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 w
e 

m
ad

e 
ei

th
er

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
 a

nd
 

al
ig

ne
d 

th
em

 w
ith

 b
es

t 
pr

ac
tic

e 
or

 s
ou

gh
t 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 w
er

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 d
oc

um
en

te
d.

  

O
ur

 
ke

y 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

re
la

te
d 

to
 

th
e 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
di

ffe
re

nt
ia

tio
n 

of
 

co
nt

ro
ls

, 
as

su
ra

nc
es

 
an

d 
ac

tio
ns

 
an

d 
th

e 
em

be
dd

in
g 

of
 R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n.

 

In
te

rn
al

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 

A
ll 

19
 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
re

po
rt

s 
is

su
ed

 
re

su
lte

d 
in

 
po

si
tiv

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

op
in

io
ns

. 
T

en
 r

ep
or

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

am
be

r 
ra

tin
gs

 o
f 

w
hi

ch
 t

hr
ee

 w
er

e 
am

be
r 

re
d 

(s
om

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e)

 a
nd

 s
ev

en
 a

m
be

r 
gr

ee
n 

(r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e)
. T

he
 r

em
ai

ni
ng

 te
n 

re
po

rt
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
 g

re
en

 (
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
as

su
ra

nc
e)

 o
pi

ni
on

. 
 T

he
 a

m
be

r 
re

d 
op

in
io

ns
 r

el
at

ed
 t

o 
H

ou
si

ng
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 -
 P

la
nn

ed
 a

nd
 C

yc
lic

al
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
V

oi
ds

),
 I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 a
nd

 C
ap

ita
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 &

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t. 
T

he
re

 
w

er
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 c
on

tr
ol

 w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 t
he

se
 r

ep
or

ts
 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pu

t 
in

 p
la

ce
 t

o 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

es
e 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s.

 

O
ur

 
fo

llo
w

 
up

 
re

vi
ew

 
in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ha

d 
m

ad
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 r
ai

se
d 

in
 

ou
r 

pr
io

r 
ye

ar
 r

ep
or

ts
.  

W
e 

ha
ve

 
al

so
 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 

th
re

e 
ad

vi
so

ry
 

re
vi

ew
s 

w
hi

ch
 

ha
ve

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 t
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

st
re

ng
th

en
 a

nd
 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
l 

fr
am

ew
or

ks
 

in
 

pl
ac

e 
in

 
re

la
tio

n 
to

; 
P

ro
je

ct
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

V
A

T
 a

nd
 t

he
 a

re
as

 c
ov

er
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

P
ro

ac
tiv

e 
F

ra
ud

 
re

vi
ew

. 
 W

e 
al

so
 m

ad
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
l f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
in

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
at

 th
e 

re
qu

es
t o

f t
he

 
S

ec
tio

n 
15

1 
O

ffi
ce

r 
in

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t. 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

ha
ve

 a
ss

ur
ed

 u
s 

th
at

 t
he

 i
ss

ue
s 

ra
is

ed
 w

ith
in

 a
ll 

of
 

ou
r 

re
po

rt
s 

is
su

ed
 t

hi
s 

ye
ar

 w
ill

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
ag

re
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s.
 W

e 
w

ill
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 f

ol
lo

w
 u

p 
re

vi
ew

 
du

rin
g 

20
12

/1
3 

to
 c

on
fir

m
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

ac
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ag

re
ed

 ti
m

es
ca

le
s.

 

A
cc

ep
ta

n
ce

 o
f 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 

A
ll 

of
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 w

er
e 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 b
y 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

  

 

2.
5 

 
T

h
e 

A
n

n
u

al
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 

T
he

 o
ve

ra
ll 

op
in

io
n 

m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

in
 t

he
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
st

at
em

en
t. 

2.
6 

C
o

n
fl

ic
ts

 o
f 

In
te

re
st

 

A
t 

th
e 

re
qu

es
t 

of
 t

he
 S

ec
tio

n 
15

1 
O

ffi
ce

r 
w

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

w
e 

do
 n

ot
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
is

 t
o 

be
 a

 
C

on
fli

ct
 o

f I
nt

er
es

t. 
 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, 

w
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

an
y 

w
or

k 
or

 a
ct

iv
ity

 d
ur

in
g 

20
11

/1
2 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 le

ad
 u

s 
to

 d
ec

la
re

 a
ny

 c
on

fli
ct

 o
f i

nt
er

es
ts

.  

  

Page 11



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

  

4

 

2.
7 

B
en

ch
m

ar
ki

n
g

 D
at

a 

T
he

 t
ab

le
s 

be
lo

w
 s

ho
w

 t
he

 s
pl

it 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

an
d 

op
in

io
ns

 f
or

 S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

 2
01

1/
12

 
an

d 
th

os
e 

m
ad

e 
in

 2
01

0/
11

.  
 

C
o

m
p

ar
is

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

M
ad

e 

4%

28
%

68
%

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
20

11
/1

2

H
ig

h
M

ed
iu

m
Lo

w

 

3%

32
%

65
%

R
ec

om
m

en
d

at
io

ns
 2

01
0/

11

H
ig

h
M

ed
iu

m
Lo

w

 

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

H
ig

h
  

M
ed

iu
m

 
L

ow
 

20
11

/1
2 

5 
35

 
77

 

20
10

/1
1 

5 
46

 
95

 

 

C
o

m
p

ar
is

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

L
ev

el
s 

o
f 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 

 

46
%

36
%

18
%

0%
A

ss
u

ra
n

ce
 L

ev
el

s 
20

11
/1

2

G
re

en
A

m
be

r G
re

en
A

m
be

r R
ed

R
ed

 52
%

28
%16

%

4%

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 L
ev

el
s 

20
10

/1
1

G
re

en
A

m
be

r G
re

en
A

m
be

r R
ed

R
ed

 
L

ev
el

s 
o

f 
A

ss
u

ra
n

ce
G

re
en

 
A

m
b

er
 / 

G
re

en
 

A
m

b
er

 / 
R

ed
 

R
ed

 

20
11

/1
2 

10
 

8 
4 

0 

20
10

/1
1 

13
 

7 
4 

1 

Page 12



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

  

5

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

: 
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 O

P
IN

IO
N

S
 A

N
D

 R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S

 2
01

1/
12

 

A
u

d
it

ab
le

 A
re

a 
A

ss
u

ra
n

ce
 L

ev
el

 G
iv

en
 

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

m
ad

e 

H
ig

h
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
L

o
w

 
In

 T
o

ta
l 

A
g

re
ed

 

H
R

 -
 A

bs
en

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
Im

pa
ct

 o
f R

ed
un

da
nc

ie
s 

 

0 
0 

5 
5 

5 

S
up

po
rt

ed
 H

ou
si

ng
 

 

0 
0 

1 
1 

1 

H
ou

si
ng

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 -
 P

la
nn

ed
 a

nd
 

C
yc

lic
al

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

V
oi

ds
) 

 

2 
3 

2 
7 

7 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

 

 

0 
6 

5 
11

 
11

 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
en

ts
 

 

0 
1 

3 
4 

4 

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
dv

is
or

y 
- 

- 
- 

8 
8 

G
en

er
al

 L
ed

ge
r 

an
d 

B
ud

ge
ta

ry
 C

on
tr

ol
 

 

0 
0 

3 
3 

3 

H
ou

si
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 

 

0 
1 

2 
3 

3 

Page 13



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

  

6

 

A
u

d
it

ab
le

 A
re

a 
A

ss
u

ra
n

ce
 L

ev
el

 G
iv

en
 

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

m
ad

e 

H
ig

h
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
L

o
w

 
In

 T
o

ta
l 

A
g

re
ed

 

V
A

T
 A

dv
is

or
y 

R
ev

ie
w

 
A

dv
is

or
y 

0 
3 

5 
8 

8 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

- 
G

oo
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

 

0 
1 

4 
5 

5 

C
re

di
to

rs
 

 

0 
2 

3 
5 

5 

C
on

tr
ac

t S
er

vi
ce

s 

 

0 
0 

2 
2 

2 

P
ay

ro
ll 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
E

xp
en

se
s 

 

0 
0 

2 
2 

2 

N
at

io
na

l N
on

 D
om

es
tic

 R
at

es
 

 

0 
0 

8 
8 

8 

In
co

m
e 

an
d 

D
eb

to
rs

 

 

0 
0 

1 
1 

1 

C
as

h,
 B

an
k 

&
 T

re
as

ur
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 

0 
2 

3 
5 

5 

C
ap

ita
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 a

nd
 A

ss
et

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
 

1 
3 

3 
7 

7 

Page 14



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

  

7

 

A
u

d
it

ab
le

 A
re

a 
A

ss
u

ra
n

ce
 L

ev
el

 G
iv

en
 

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

m
ad

e 

H
ig

h
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
L

o
w

 
In

 T
o

ta
l 

A
g

re
ed

 

R
is

k 
M

at
ur

ity
 

A
dv

is
or

y 
1 

1 
6 

8 
8 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 

 

0 
0 

3 
3 

3 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 

 

0 
0 

1 
1 

1 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
its

 

 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

F
ol

lo
w

 U
p 

A
de

qu
at

e 
0 

7 
11

 
18

 
18

 

P
ro

ac
tiv

e 
F

ra
ud

 R
ev

ie
w

 
A

dv
is

or
y 

- 
- 

- 
7 

7 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 

0 
0 

2 
2 

2 

F
in

an
ci

al
 T

op
 U

p 
T

es
tin

g 

 

0 
1 

0 
1 

1 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 –

 D
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
 

F
ee

s 
 in

 R
el

at
io

n 
to

 T
ax

i L
ic

en
ci

ng
, W

at
er

 
S

am
pl

in
g 

an
d 

Z
oo

 L
ic

en
ci

ng
 -

 D
R

A
F

T
 

 

0 
2 

2 
4 

T
B

C
 

Page 15



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

  

8

 

A
u

d
it

ab
le

 A
re

a 
A

ss
u

ra
n

ce
 L

ev
el

 G
iv

en
 

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

m
ad

e 

H
ig

h
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
L

o
w

 
In

 T
o

ta
l 

A
g

re
ed

 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 

 

1 
2 

0 
3 

3 

T
o

ta
l 

5 
35

 
77

 
13

2 
(1

5 
no

t 
ca

te
go

ris
ed

) 
12

8 
(4

 n
ot

 y
et

 
re

sp
on

de
d)

  

 

Page 16



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

  

9

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

: 
D

E
F

IN
IT

IO
N

S
 O

F
 T

H
E

 L
E

V
E

L
S

 O
F

 A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 T
H

E
 C

L
A

S
S

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

 O
F

 R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S

 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 C
at

eg
o

ri
sa

ti
o

n
 

O
ur

 fi
nd

in
gs

 a
nd

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
re

 c
at

eg
or

is
ed

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

H
ig

h
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
re

 p
rio

rit
is

ed
 to

 r
ef

le
ct

 o
ur

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f r
is

k 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
l w

ea
kn

es
se

s.
 

M
ed

iu
m

 

L
o

w
 

 O
p

in
io

n
s 

T
he

 d
ef

in
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

 th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
ar

e:
 

O
p

in
io

n
 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

O
p

in
io

n
 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

 

T
ak

in
g 

ac
co

un
t 

of
 t

he
 i

ss
ue

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d,

 t
he

 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ca
nn

ot
 

ta
ke

 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

th
at

 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
 u

po
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
re

lie
s 

to
 

m
an

ag
e 

th
is

 r
is

k/
ar

ea
 a

re
 s

ui
ta

bl
y 

de
si

gn
ed

, 
co

ns
is

te
nt

ly
 

ap
pl

ie
d 

or
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e.
 

A
ct

io
n 

ne
ed

s 
to

 
be

 
ta

ke
n 

to
 

en
su

re
 

th
is

 
ris

k 
is

 
m

an
ag

ed
.  

 

 

T
ak

in
g 

ac
co

un
t o

f t
he

 is
su

es
 id

en
tif

ie
d,

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ca

n 
ta

ke
 

re
as

on
ab

le
 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 
up

on
 

w
hi

ch
 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

re
lie

s 
to

 
m

an
ag

e 
th

is
 

ris
k/

ar
ea

 
ar

e 
su

ita
bl

y 
de

si
gn

ed
, c

on
si

st
en

tly
 a

pp
lie

d 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e.

   
H

ow
ev

er
 w

e 
ha

ve
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 i
ss

ue
s 

th
at

, 
if 

no
t 

ad
dr

es
se

d,
 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

lik
el

ih
oo

d 
of

 th
e 

ris
k 

m
at

er
ia

lis
in

g.
  

 

T
ak

in
g 

ac
co

un
t o

f 
th

e 
is

su
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d,
 w

hi
ls

t 
th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ca
n 

ta
ke

 s
om

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

th
at

 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
 

up
on

 
w

hi
ch

 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
re

lie
s 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
th

is
 r

is
k/

ar
ea

 a
re

 s
ui

ta
bl

y 
de

si
gn

ed
, 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 a
pp

lie
d 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e,
 

ac
tio

n 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

is
 r

is
k 

is
 

m
an

ag
ed

.  

 

 

T
ak

in
g 

ac
co

un
t o

f t
he

 is
su

es
 id

en
tif

ie
d,

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ca

n 
ta

ke
 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 
up

on
 

w
hi

ch
 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

re
lie

s 
to

 
m

an
ag

e 
th

is
 

ris
k/

ar
ea

 
ar

e 
su

ita
bl

y 
de

si
gn

ed
, c

on
si

st
en

tly
 a

pp
lie

d 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e.

  

 
 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is left blank intentionally.



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

 
 

 
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

t J
un

e 
20

12
 

 

 
    

S
O

U
TH

 C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

S
H

IR
E

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t 

 C
or

po
ra

te
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g:

 2
9 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 
 

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n:
 T

ha
t t

he
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 N
ot

es
 th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

t 
   

Agenda Item 5Page 19



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

 
 

 
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

t J
un

e 
20

12
 

 

 
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
  

S
ec

tio
n

  
 

P
ag

e 

1 
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
1 

2 
F

in
al

 re
po

rts
 is

su
ed

 
1 

3 
K

ey
 F

in
di

ng
s 

fr
om

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
W

or
k 

2 

4 
W

or
k 

in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

or
 P

la
nn

ed
 

1 

5 
Li

ai
so

n 
w

ith
 M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 E
xt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
1 

6 
C

ha
ng

es
 to

 o
ur

 P
la

n 
1 

7 
C

lie
nt

 B
rie

fin
gs

 
3 

A
p

p
en

d
ic

es
 

 
 

A
 

20
11

/1
2 

W
or

k 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 to
 D

at
e 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 A

ss
ur

an
ce

 L
ev

el
s 

an
d 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
4 

B
 

20
11

/1
2 

W
or

k 
in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
or

 Y
et

 to
 S

ta
rt 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

po
rts

 s
til

l i
n 

dr
af

t) 
6 

C
 

20
12

/1
3 

W
or

k 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 to
 D

at
e 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 A

ss
ur

an
ce

 L
ev

el
s 

an
d 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
7 

D
 

20
12

/1
3 

W
or

k 
in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
of

 Y
et

 to
 S

ta
rt 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

po
rts

 s
til

l i
n 

dr
af

t) 
8 

E
 

C
lie

nt
  B

rie
fin

gs
 

10
 

 Th
e 

m
at

te
rs

 r
ai

se
d 

in
 t

hi
s 

re
po

rt 
ar

e 
on

ly
 t

ho
se

 w
hi

ch
 c

am
e 

to
 o

ur
 a

tte
nt

io
n 

du
rin

g 
ou

r 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

w
or

k 
an

d 
ar

e 
no

t 
ne

ce
ss

ar
ily

 a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 s
ta

te
m

en
t o

f a
ll 

th
e 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

th
at

 e
xi

st
, o

r 
of

 a
ll 

th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d.

  W
hi

ls
t e

ve
ry

 c
ar

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 ta

ke
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 th
is

 r
ep

or
t i

s 
as

 a
cc

ur
at

e 
as

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
nd

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
re

vi
ew

ed
, n

o 
co

m
pl

et
e 

gu
ar

an
te

e 
or

 w
ar

ra
nt

y 
ca

n 
be

 g
iv

en
 w

ith
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 th
e 

ad
vi

ce
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

he
re

in
.  

O
ur

 w
or

k 
do

es
 n

ot
 

pr
ov

id
e 

ab
so

lu
te

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 m

at
er

ia
l e

rr
or

s,
 lo

ss
 o

r f
ra

ud
 d

o 
no

t e
xi

st
.  

 
 Th

is
 r

ep
or

t 
is

 p
re

pa
re

d 
so

le
ly

 f
or

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il.

  
D

et
ai

ls
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
, 

bu
t 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
th

e 
re

po
rt 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
qu

ot
ed

 o
r 

re
fe

rr
ed

 to
 in

 w
ho

le
 o

r 
in

 p
ar

t w
ith

ou
t p

rio
r 

co
ns

en
t. 

 N
o 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 a
ny

 th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 is

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
as

 th
e 

re
po

rt 
ha

s 
no

t b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
, 

an
d 

is
 n

ot
 in

te
nd

ed
 fo

r a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

ur
po

se
. 

 ©
 2

01
2 

R
S

M
 T

en
on

 L
im

ite
d 

 R
S

M
 T

en
on

 L
im

ite
d 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r o

f R
S

M
 T

en
on

 G
ro

up
 

 R
S

M
 T

en
on

 L
im

ite
d 

is
 a

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
em

be
r f

irm
 o

f R
S

M
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l a

n 
af

fil
ia

tio
n 

of
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

an
d 

co
ns

ul
tin

g 
fir

m
s.

  R
S

M
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l i

s 
th

e 
na

m
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 a
 

ne
tw

or
k 

of
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

an
d 

co
ns

ul
tin

g 
fir

m
s 

ea
ch

 o
f w

hi
ch

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 in

 it
s 

ow
n 

rig
ht

.  
R

S
M

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l d
oe

s 
no

t e
xi

st
 in

 a
ny

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

as
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
le

ga
l e

nt
ity

. 
 R

S
M

 T
en

on
 L

im
ite

d 
(N

o 
40

66
92

4)
 is

 re
gi

st
er

ed
 in

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 W
al

es
.  

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

O
ffi

ce
 6

6 
C

hi
lte

rn
 S

tre
et

, L
on

do
n 

 W
1U

 4
G

B
. E

ng
la

nd
  

Page 20



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

 
   

   
   

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t J

un
e 

20
12

 
 

 
 

1

1.
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 

1.
1 

  
  T

he
 p

er
io

di
c 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
pl

an
 f

or
 2

01
1/

12
 w

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 t

he
 C

or
po

ra
te

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 i

n 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
an

d 
20

12
/1

3 
pl

an
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 t

he
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 in
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

2.
  T

hi
s 

re
po

rt 
su

m
m

ar
is

es
 th

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 w
or

k 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 to
 d

at
e 

ag
ai

ns
t t

ha
t p

la
n.

  

2.
 

F
IN

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

S
 IS

S
U

E
D

 

2.
1 

W
e 

ha
ve

 fi
na

lis
ed

 te
n 

20
11

/1
2 

re
po

rts
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

la
st

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 m

ee
tin

g;
 th

es
e 

ar
e 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
s 

of
: 

• 
H

ou
si

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 (8
.1

1/
12

); 

• 
N

at
io

na
l N

on
 D

om
es

tic
 R

at
es

 ( 
14

.1
1/

12
); 

• 
C

as
h,

 B
an

k 
an

d 
T

re
as

ur
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t (

16
.1

1/
12

); 

• 
C

ap
ita

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 a
nd

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t (
17

.1
1/

12
); 

• 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

its
 (2

1.
11

/1
2)

; 

• 
F

ol
lo

w
 U

p 
(2

2.
11

/1
2)

; 

• 
P

ro
ac

tiv
e 

F
ra

ud
 R

ev
ie

w
 (2

3.
11

/1
2)

; 

• 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t (
24

.1
1/

12
); 

• 
F

in
an

ci
al

 T
op

 U
p 

T
es

tin
g 

(2
5.

11
/1

2)
; a

nd
 

• 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

(2
7.

11
/1

2)
. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 fi
na

lis
ed

 o
ne

 2
01

2/
13

 re
po

rt 
si

nc
e 

th
e 

la
st

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 m

ee
tin

g;
 th

is
 is

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f: 

• 
S

ec
tio

n 
10

6 
H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 O

th
er

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

s 
(1

.1
2/

13
). 

2.
2 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 s
um

m
ar

is
es

 o
ur

 o
pi

ni
on

s 
an

d 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

du
rin

g 
20

11
/1

2 
to

 d
at

e.
   

Page 21



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

 
   

   
   

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t J

un
e 

20
12

 
 

 
 

2

 

3.
 

K
E

Y
 F

IN
D

IN
G

S
 F

R
O

M
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 W
O

R
K

 

3.
1 

T
he

 C
or

po
ra

te
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
te

 t
ha

t 
an

y 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

op
in

io
ns

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

no
te

d 
in

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t a
nd

 m
ay

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 o
r 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

an
nu

al
 o

pi
ni

on
.  

 

3.
2 

N
o 

co
m

m
on

 w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ith

in
 o

ur
 r

ep
or

ts
 f

or
 2

01
1/

12
. 

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

ha
ve

 a
gr

ee
d 

al
l 

of
 t

he
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 i

n 
th

e 
re

po
rt

s 
fin

al
is

ed
 a

t 2
.2

 a
bo

ve
, w

ith
 a

gr
ee

d 
ta

rg
et

 d
at

es
 fo

r 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

 
3.

3 
T

he
 A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t f

or
 2

01
1/

12
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

a 
se

pa
ra

te
 a

ge
nd

a 
ite

m
 fo

r t
he

 C
om

m
itt

ee
. 

 4.
 

W
O

R
K

 IN
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 O

R
 P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 

4.
1 

W
e 

ha
ve

 is
su

ed
 o

ne
 d

ra
ft 

re
po

rt 
fr

om
 th

e 
20

11
/1

2 
au

di
t p

la
n 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
la

st
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 m
ee

tin
g;

 th
is

 is
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f: 

 

� 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 –
 D

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

 F
ee

s 
in

 R
el

at
io

n 
to

 T
ax

i L
ic

en
si

ng
, W

at
er

 S
am

pl
in

g 
an

d 
Z

oo
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 (2
6.

11
/1

2)
. 

4.
2 

T
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

vi
ew

s 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 a

t t
he

 fi
el

dw
or

k 
st

ag
e:

 

� 
M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

tra
te

gy
 (M

T
F

S
) 

� 
P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

G
ro

w
th

 

5.
 

L
IA

IS
O

N
 W

IT
H

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 E

X
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 

5.
1 

S
in

ce
 th

e 
la

st
 C

or
po

ra
te

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 w

e 
ha

ve
 m

et
 w

ith
 M

an
ag

em
en

t t
o 

di
sc

us
s 

th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
it 

pl
an

 a
nd

 to
 s

co
pe

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f 2

01
1/

12
 

au
di

ts
.  

6.
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 T

O
 O

U
R

 P
L

A
N

 

6.
1 

T
he

re
 h

av
e 

be
en

 n
o 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
au

di
t p

la
n 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
la

st
 m

ee
tin

g.
 

6.
2 

W
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 h
av

e 
an

 a
gr

ee
d 

pr
ot

oc
ol

 w
ith

 th
e 

E
xt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
(A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

) 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

m
ax

im
um

 r
el

ia
nc

e 
ca

n 
be

 p
la

ce
d 

on
 o

ur
 w

or
k 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 w

he
re

 
po

ss
ib

le
 a

ny
 d

up
lic

at
io

n.
 F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 E
xt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
fo

r 
20

12
/1

3 
(a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t e

xe
rc

is
e 

re
po

rte
d 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
), 

th
e 

ne
w

 
E

xt
er

na
l A

ud
ito

rs
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

a 
di

ffe
rin

g 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 r

es
ul

t i
n 

th
e 

pr
ot

oc
ol

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
m

ov
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d.
 T

hi
s 

m
ay

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
le

ve
l o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 

re
qu

ire
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

P
la

n 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

pr
ot

oc
ol

. W
e 

ar
e 

in
 c

on
ta

ct
 w

ith
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 to
 d

is
cu

ss
 a

ny
 e

ar
ly

 in
di

ca
tio

ns
 o

f w
ha

t t
hi

s 
m

ay
 

in
vo

lv
e 

an
d 

w
ill

 re
po

rt 
ba

ck
 to

 th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
on

ce
 fu

rth
er

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 k

no
w

n.
 

 

Page 22



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

 
   

   
   

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t J

un
e 

20
12

 
 

 
 

3

7.
 

C
L

IE
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
IN

G
S

 

7.
1 

T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

tw
o 

cl
ie

nt
 b

rie
fin

gs
 is

su
ed

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
la

st
 C

or
po

ra
te

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
.  

T
he

se
 a

re
 in

cl
ud

ed
 a

t A
pp

en
di

x 
E

.

Page 23



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

 
   

   
   

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t J

un
e 

20
12

 
 

 
 

4

  

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

: 
20

11
/1

2 
W

O
R

K
 C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

 T
O

 D
A

T
E

 IN
C

L
U

D
IN

G
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 O
F

 A
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 L
E

V
E

L
S

 A
N

D
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
T

IO
N

S
 

 

A
ud

ita
bl

e 
A

re
a 

S
ta

rt 
D

at
e 

 

D
eb

rie
f d

at
e 

D
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

is
su

ed
 

R
es

po
ns

es
 

re
ce

iv
ed

 
F

in
al

 re
po

rt 
is

su
ed

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 le

ve
l g

iv
en

 
N

um
be

r o
f R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 M

ad
e 

A
ct

ua
l  

H
ig

h 
M

ed
iu

m
 

Lo
w

 
In

 
To

ta
l 

A
gr

ee
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 

an
d 

V
oi

ds
 (8

.1
1/

12
) 

13
/0

9/
20

11
 

19
/0

9/
11

 
14

/1
0/

11
 

26
/0

4/
12

 
27

/0
4/

12
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

 

0 
1 

2 
3 

3 

N
N

D
R

 (1
4.

11
/1

2)
 

20
/1

0/
20

11
 

28
/1

0/
11

 
09

/1
1/

11
 

22
/0

5/
12

 
22

/0
5/

12
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

 

0 
0 

8 
8 

8 

C
as

h,
 B

an
ki

ng
 &

 
T

re
as

ur
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

(1
6.

11
/1

2)
 

14
/1

1/
20

11
 

17
/1

1/
11

 
13

/1
2/

11
 

25
/0

5/
12

 
25

/0
5/

12
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

 

0 
2 

3 
5 

5 

C
ap

ita
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

an
d 

A
ss

et
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

(1
7.

11
/1

2)
 

17
/1

1/
20

11
 

22
/1

1/
11

 
22

/1
2/

11
 

09
/0

5/
12

 
09

/0
5/

12
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

 

1 
3 

3 
7 

7 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
its

 
(2

1.
11

/1
2)

 
23

/0
1/

20
12

 
27

/0
1/

12
 

06
/0

2/
12

 
13

/0
3/

12
 

13
/0

3/
13

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
2 

 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

F
ol

lo
w

 U
p 

(2
2.

11
/1

2)
 

16
/0

1/
20

12
 

19
/0

1/
12

 
16

/0
2/

12
 

23
/0

5/
12

 
24

/0
5/

12
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 
A

D
E

Q
U

A
T

E
 

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 
0 

7 
1 

8 
8 

P
ro

ac
tiv

e 
F

ra
ud

 
R

ev
ie

w
 (2

3.
11

/1
2)

 
20

/2
/2

01
2 

- 
03

/0
4/

12
 

31
/0

5/
12

 
31

/0
5/

12
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 
A

D
V

IS
O

R
Y

 
0 

0 
0 

7 
7 

Page 24



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

 
   

   
   

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t J

un
e 

20
12

 
 

 
 

5

A
ud

ita
bl

e 
A

re
a 

S
ta

rt 
D

at
e 

 

D
eb

rie
f d

at
e 

D
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

is
su

ed
 

R
es

po
ns

es
 

re
ce

iv
ed

 
F

in
al

 re
po

rt 
is

su
ed

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 le

ve
l g

iv
en

 
N

um
be

r o
f R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 M

ad
e 

A
ct

ua
l  

H
ig

h 
M

ed
iu

m
 

Lo
w

 
In

 
To

ta
l 

A
gr

ee
d 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
(2

4.
11

/1
2)

 
22

/0
3/

20
12

 
28

/0
3/

12
 

05
/0

4/
12

 
27

/0
4/

12
 

27
/0

4/
12

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
2 

 

0 
0 

2 
2 

2 

F
in

an
ci

al
 T

op
 U

p 
T

es
tin

g 
(2

5.
11

/1
2)

 
19

/0
3/

20
12

 
23

/0
3/

12
 

05
/0

4/
12

 
25

/0
5/

12
 

25
/0

5/
12

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
2 

 

0 
1 

0 
1 

1 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
(2

7.
11

/1
2)

 
12

/0
4/

20
12

 
17

/0
4/

12
 

09
/0

5/
12

 
24

/0
5/

12
 

25
/0

5/
12

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
2 

 

1 
2 

0 
3 

3 

Page 25



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

 
   

   
   

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t J

un
e 

20
12

 
 

 
 

6

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

: 
20

12
/1

3 
W

O
R

K
 C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

 T
O

 D
A

T
E

 IN
C

L
U

D
IN

G
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 O
F

 A
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 L
E

V
E

L
S

 A
N

D
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
T

IO
N

S
 

 

A
ud

ita
bl

e 
A

re
a 

S
ta

rt 
D

at
e 

 

D
eb

rie
f d

at
e 

D
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

is
su

ed
 

R
es

po
ns

es
 

re
ce

iv
ed

 
F

in
al

 re
po

rt 
is

su
ed

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 le

ve
l g

iv
en

 
N

um
be

r o
f R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 M

ad
e 

A
ct

ua
l  

H
ig

h 
M

ed
iu

m
 

Lo
w

 
In

 
To

ta
l 

A
gr

ee
d 

S
ec

tio
n 

10
6 

H
ou

si
ng

 
an

d 
O

th
er

 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

s 
(1

.1
2/

13
) 

- 
19

/0
4/

12
 

02
/0

5/
12

 
29

/0
5/

12
 

29
/0

5/
12

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
2 

 

0 
3 

4 
7 

7 

T
o

ta
ls

 to
 d

at
e:

 
0 

3 
4 

7 
7 

Page 26



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

 
   

   
   

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t J

un
e 

20
12

 
 

 
 

7

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

: 2
01

1/
12

 W
O

R
K

 IN
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 O

R
 Y

E
T

 T
O

 S
T

A
R

T
 (I

N
C

L
U

D
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
S

 S
T

IL
L

 IN
 D

R
A

F
T

) 

 

A
ud

ita
bl

e 
A

re
a 

S
ta

rt 
D

at
e 

 

D
eb

rie
f d

at
e 

D
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

is
su

ed
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 (2

6.
11

/1
2)

 
29

/0
3/

20
12

 
29

/0
3/

12
 

02
/0

5/
12

 

 

Page 27



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

 
   

   
   

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t J

un
e 

20
12

 
 

 
 

8

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

: 2
01

2/
13

 W
O

R
K

 IN
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 O

R
 Y

E
T

 T
O

 S
T

A
R

T
 (I

N
C

L
U

D
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
S

 S
T

IL
L

 IN
 D

R
A

F
T

) 

A
ud

ita
bl

e 
A

re
a 

S
ta

rt 
D

at
e 

 

D
eb

rie
f d

at
e 

D
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

is
su

ed
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

 

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
tra

te
gy

 (M
T

F
S

) 
21

 M
ay

 2
01

2 
07

 J
un

e 
20

12
 

 
W

or
k 

in
 Q

A
 S

ta
ge

 

P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
G

ro
w

th
 

La
ck

 o
f D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

ro
gr

es
s 

 
21

 M
ay

 2
01

2 
11

 J
un

e 
20

12
 

 
W

or
k 

in
 Q

A
 S

ta
ge

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
02

 J
ul

y 
20

12
 

 
 

 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
en

ts
 

10
 A

ug
us

t 2
01

2 
 

 
 

A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t (
H

ou
si

ng
) 

13
 A

ug
us

t 2
01

2 
 

 
 

R
ep

ai
rs

 –
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 
13

 A
ug

us
t 2

01
2 

 
 

 

S
up

po
rte

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 

17
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

2 
 

 
 

H
ou

si
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 V

oi
ds

 
17

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
2 

 
 

 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
18

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
2 

 
 

 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
19

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

2 
 

 
 

G
en

er
al

 L
ed

ge
r  

24
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

2 
 

 
 

C
ap

ita
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 a

nd
 A

ss
et

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
27

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
2 

 
 

 

C
re

di
to

rs
 

01
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
2 

 
 

 

In
co

m
e 

&
 D

eb
to

rs
 

08
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
2 

 
 

 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
09

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

2 
 

 
 

N
N

D
R

 
07

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

2 
 

 
 

C
as

h,
 B

an
ki

ng
 &

 T
re

as
ur

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
08

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

2 
 

 
 

P
ay

ro
ll 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
E

xp
en

se
s 

&
 P

en
si

on
s)

 
12

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

2 
 

 
 

Page 28



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

 
   

   
   

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t J

un
e 

20
12

 
 

 
 

9

A
ud

ita
bl

e 
A

re
a 

S
ta

rt 
D

at
e 

 

D
eb

rie
f d

at
e 

D
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

is
su

ed
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 
16

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

2 
 

 
 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
its

 
13

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

2 
 

 
 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
te

st
in

g 
11

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

2 
 

 
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 / 

W
as

te
 

03
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
3 

 
 

 

A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t 
18

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

13
 

 
 

 

F
ol

lo
w

 U
p 

18
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
13

 
 

 
 

T
op

 u
p 

te
st

in
g 

11
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
 

 
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

11
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
 

 
 

IC
T

 R
ev

ie
w

 
T

B
C

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 29



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

 
   

   
   

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t J

un
e 

20
12

 
 

 
 

10

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 E

: C
L

IE
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
IN

G
S

 
 R

S
M

 T
en

o
n

's
 L

o
ca

l G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t U
p

d
at

e 
– 

A
p

ri
l 2

01
2 

 T
hi

s 
up

da
te

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 s
om

e 
of

 th
e 

re
ce

nt
 k

ey
 p

ub
lic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 is

su
es

 c
on

ce
rn

in
g 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t. 

T
h

e 
20

12
 B

u
d

g
et

 S
ta

te
m

en
t –

 im
p

lic
at

io
n

s 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

T
he

 C
ha

nc
el

lo
r, 

G
eo

rg
e 

O
sb

or
ne

, d
el

iv
er

ed
 h

is
 B

ud
ge

t s
ta

te
m

en
t f

or
 2

01
2 

on
 2

1 
M

ar
ch

. K
ey

 p
oi

nt
s 

fo
r l

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 to
 n

ot
e 

in
cl

ud
e:

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
£1

0b
n 

in
 w

el
fa

re
 c

ut
s 

by
 2

01
6/

17
 o

n 
to

p 
of

 th
e 

£1
8b

n 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 a
nn

ou
nc

ed
; g

ra
du

al
 w

ith
dr

aw
al

 o
f c

hi
ld

 b
en

ef
it 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
 in

co
m

e 
ta

x 
ch

ar
ge

 fo
r h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
w

ith
 a

n 
oc

cu
pa

nt
 e

ar
ni

ng
 b

et
w

ee
n 

£5
0,

00
0 

an
d 

£6
0,

00
0 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

e 
w

ith
dr

aw
al

 fo
r h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
w

ith
 a

n 
oc

cu
pa

nt
 e

ar
ni

ng
 o

ve
r £

60
,0

00
; a

 fr
ee

ze
 o

f L
oc

al
 H

ou
si

ng
 

A
llo

w
an

ce
 ra

te
s 

fo
r o

ne
 y

ea
r f

ro
m

 A
pr

il 
20

12
; a

nd
 li

m
ita

tio
n 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
 to

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 s
oc

ia
l-r

en
te

d 
se

ct
or

 te
na

nt
s 

w
ho

 u
nd

er
oc

cu
py

 th
ei

r p
ro

pe
rti

es
 

fr
om

 A
pr

il 
20

13
. T

he
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t h
as

 a
ls

o 
re

pl
ac

ed
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 H

ou
si

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
 A

cc
ou

nt
 s

ub
si

dy
 s

ys
te

m
 w

ith
 a

 s
el

f-
fin

an
ci

ng
 m

od
el

 a
nd

 la
un

ch
ed

 a
 re

in
vi

go
ra

te
d 

R
ig

ht
 to

 B
uy

 fo
r c

ou
nc

il 
ho

us
in

g 
te

na
nt

s,
 re

pl
ac

in
g 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t r

an
ge

 o
f r

eg
io

na
l c

ap
s 

on
 d

is
co

un
ts

 w
ith

 a
 h

ig
he

r s
in

gl
e 

ca
p 

of
 £

75
,0

00
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t h
as

 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 to
 a

cc
el

er
at

in
g 

th
e 

re
le

as
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

 s
ec

to
r l

an
d 

to
 m

ee
t i

ts
 a

m
bi

tio
n 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

ov
er

 1
00

,0
00

 h
om

es
 b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
14

 a
nd

 h
as

 in
tro

du
ce

d 
its

 N
at

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
w

hi
ch

 c
on

so
lid

at
es

 o
ve

r 1
,3

00
 p

ag
es

 o
f i

nh
er

ite
d 

po
lic

y 
in

to
 a

 n
ew

 5
0 

pa
ge

 d
oc

um
en

t. 
O

th
er

 B
ud

ge
t o

ut
co

m
es

 in
cl

ud
e:

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

on
 s

im
pl

ify
in

g 
th

e 
C

ar
bo

n 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

C
om

m
itm

en
t e

ne
rg

y 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

sc
he

m
e 

to
 re

du
ce

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
bu

rd
en

s;
 in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 m
or

e 
lo

ca
l, 

m
ar

ke
t-f

ac
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r p

ay
 re

fo
rm

 fo
r 

th
os

e 
ci

vi
l s

er
vi

ce
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 th

at
 e

nt
er

ed
 th

e 
pa

y 
fr

ee
ze

 in
 a

dv
an

ce
 o

f o
th

er
 w

or
kf

or
ce

s 
an

d 
ex

ite
d 

it 
fr

om
 A

pr
il 

20
12

; a
nd

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f £
30

m
 to

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

in
 

E
ng

la
nd

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
tra

ns
iti

on
al

 c
os

ts
 to

 n
ew

 lo
ca

l s
up

po
rt 

sc
he

m
es

 fo
r c

ou
nc

il 
ta

x.
 

  N
at

io
n

al
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

o
lic

y 
F

ra
m

ew
o

rk
 

T
he

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

or
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t (

C
LG

) h
as

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
its

 n
ew

 N
at

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n.

 T
he

 n
ew

 5
0 

pa
ge

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
do

cu
m

en
t p

ro
vi

de
s 

gu
id

an
ce

 to
 c

ou
nc

ils
 in

 d
ra

w
in

g 
up

 lo
ca

l p
la

ns
 a

nd
 o

n 
m

ak
in

g 
de

ci
si

on
s 

on
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. T
he

 a
im

 o
f t

he
 n

ew
 s

im
pl

ifi
ed

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
is

 to
 b

et
te

r s
up

po
rt 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

, c
re

at
e 

ho
m

es
 a

nd
 jo

bs
, a

nd
 p

ut
 p

ow
er

 in
to

 th
e 

ha
nd

s 
of

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 s
o 

th
at

 e
ve

ry
 a

re
a 

in
 th

e 
U

K
 c

an
 d

ev
el

op
 

a 
cl

ea
r l

oc
al

 p
la

n 
w

hi
ch

 re
fle

ct
s 

th
e 

vi
ew

s 
an

d 
as

pi
ra

tio
ns

 o
f l

oc
al

 p
eo

pl
e 

on
 h

ow
 th

ey
 w

is
h 

th
ei

r c
om

m
un

ity
 to

 d
ev

el
op

. T
he

 fi
na

l F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

re
ta

in
s 

th
e 

ke
y 

el
em

en
ts

 
of

 th
e 

dr
af

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
in

 J
ul

y 
20

11
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

: e
ns

hr
in

in
g 

th
e 

lo
ca

l p
la

n 
- p

ro
du

ce
d 

by
 lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
- a

s 
th

e 
ke

ys
to

ne
 o

f t
he

 p
la

nn
in

g 
sy

st
em

; m
ak

in
g 

pl
an

ni
ng

 m
uc

h 
si

m
pl

er
 a

nd
 m

or
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
; e

st
ab

lis
hi

ng
 p

re
su

m
pt

io
n 

in
 fa

vo
ur

 o
f s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t; 

gu
ar

an
te

ei
ng

 p
ro

te
ct

io
ns

 fo
r n

at
ur

al
 a

nd
 h

is
to

ric
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t; 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 b

ro
w

nf
ie

ld
 la

nd
 in

 a
 w

ay
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 lo

ca
lly

. 
  A

cc
o

u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

 s
ys

te
m

 fo
r 

lo
ca

l g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t a
n

d
 fi

re
 a

n
d

 r
es

cu
e 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 
T

he
 C

LG
 h

as
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

a 
do

cu
m

en
t w

hi
ch

 s
et

s 
ou

t t
he

 c
or

e 
ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
y 

sy
st

em
, c

on
ce

rn
ed

 w
ith

 is
su

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 fi

na
nc

ia
l m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 d
em

oc
ra

tic
 

ac
co

un
ta

bi
lit

y,
 fo

r l
oc

al
 a

nd
 fi

re
 a

nd
 re

sc
ue

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

fo
r t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l y

ea
r 2

01
2/

13
. T

he
 d

oc
um

en
t s

et
s 

ou
t c

ur
re

nt
 fu

nd
in

g 
sy

st
em

s,
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 a

nd
 

in
di

ca
te

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 c

ha
ng

es
 d

ur
in

g 
20

12
. A

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 H

M
 T

re
as

ur
y’

s 
M

an
ag

in
g 

P
ub

lic
 M

on
ey

, a
s 

th
e 

le
ad

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

of
fic

er
 fo

r l
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s,
 th

e 
C

LG
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
of

fic
er

 is
 n

ow
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 p
ub

lis
h 

ac
co

un
ta

bi
lit

y 
sy

st
em

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 e
xp

la
in

in
g 

ho
w

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
ili

ty
 fo

r t
he

 g
ra

nt
s 

th
ey

 d
is

tri
bu

te
 to

 lo
ca

l b
od

ie
s 

is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

an
d 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

cc
ou

nt
ab

ili
ty

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

. 
  F

ig
h

tin
g

 F
ra

u
d

 L
o

ca
lly

 
T

he
 H

om
e 

O
ffi

ce
 h

as
 u

nv
ei

le
d 

a 
ne

w
 s

tra
te

gy
 fo

r l
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
in

 th
ei

r f
ig

ht
 a

ga
in

st
 fr

au
d.

 T
he

 n
ew

 s
tra

te
gy

, F
ig

ht
in

g 
F

ra
ud

 L
oc

al
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 n
ew

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 a
nd

 b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
w

hi
ch

 fo
rm

 a
 ‘b

lu
ep

rin
t’ 

to
 e

qu
ip

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

to
 b

et
te

r p
ro

te
ct

 th
em

se
lv

es
 a

ga
in

st
 fr

au
d 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
co

un
ci

l t
ax

 fr
au

d.
 T

he
 

Page 30



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

 
   

   
   

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t J

un
e 

20
12

 
 

 
 

11

ne
w

 s
tra

te
gy

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
an

 e
ig

ht
-m

on
th

 re
vi

ew
 le

d 
by

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l F
ra

ud
 A

ut
ho

rit
y,

 s
up

po
rte

d 
by

 th
e 

C
LG

, a
nd

 in
cl

ud
es

: a
 fr

au
d 

ch
ec

kl
is

t t
o 

he
lp

 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
id

en
tif

y 
po

ss
ib

le
 g

ap
s 

in
 c

ur
re

nt
 fr

au
d 

re
sp

on
se

; a
n 

on
lin

e 
fr

au
d 

re
si

lie
nc

e 
ch

ec
k 

to
 h

el
p 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

m
ea

su
re

 re
si

lie
nc

e 
to

 fr
au

d 
an

d 
as

se
ss

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

; a
 c

ou
nt

er
-f

ra
ud

 a
nd

 c
or

ru
pt

io
n 

e-
le

ar
ni

ng
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 c

ou
rs

e 
to

 h
el

p 
co

un
ci

ls
 ra

is
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f a
w

ar
en

es
s 

am
on

g 
st

af
f a

nd
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

be
tte

r d
et

ec
tio

n 
ra

te
s;

 a
nd

 a
n 

on
lin

e 
‘fr

au
d 

zo
ne

’ a
nd

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

fo
ru

m
 c

on
ta

in
in

g 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f a
nt

i-f
ra

ud
 b

es
t p

ra
ct

ic
e.

 
  D

at
a 

co
lle

ct
io

n
s 

re
d

u
ce

d
 b

y 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f d

at
a 

th
at

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

ar
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 s

ub
m

it 
to

 C
en

tra
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

du
ce

d 
by

 o
ve

r a
 q

ua
rte

r. 
T

he
 li

st
 o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
th

at
 c

ou
nc

ils
 a

re
 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 to

 W
hi

te
ha

ll 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

du
ce

d 
fr

om
 1

93
 d

at
a 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
 in

 2
01

1/
12

 to
 1

56
 in

 2
01

2/
13

. B
y 

cu
tti

ng
 u

ne
cc

es
sa

ry
 ‘r

ed
 ta

pe
’, 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

S
ec

re
ta

ry
, E

ric
 P

ic
kl

es
, e

xp
ec

ts
 c

ou
nc

ils
 to

 h
av

e 
m

or
e 

tim
e 

to
 fo

cu
s 

on
 lo

ca
l p

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

re
si

de
nt

s,
 c

om
m

en
tin

g:
 “w

e 
kn

ow
 c

ou
nc

ils
 a

re
 m

os
t e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
he

n 
th

ey
 a

re
 

fre
e 

to
 in

no
va

te
 a

nd
 re

sp
on

d 
to

 w
ha

t l
oc

al
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

an
t w

ith
ou

t d
ue

 in
te

rfe
re

nc
e 

fro
m

 W
hi

te
ha

ll”
. 

Page 31



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

 
   

   
   

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t J

un
e 

20
12

 
 

 
 

12

 R
S

M
 T

en
on

's
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t U

pd
at

e 
– 

M
ay

 2
01

2 
T

hi
s 

up
da

te
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
re

ce
nt

 k
ey

 p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 is
su

es
 c

on
ce

rn
in

g 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t. 

 C
R

C
 E

n
er

g
y 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 S
ch

em
e 

– 
G

u
id

an
ce

 fo
r 

p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 in
 P

h
as

e 
1 

(2
01

0/
11

–2
01

3/
14

) 

T
he

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
ha

s 
is

su
ed

 a
n 

up
da

te
d 

gu
id

e 
w

hi
ch

 b
rin

gs
 to

ge
th

er
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f s
ep

ar
at

e 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 is
su

ed
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 fo
r p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 in

 th
e 

C
R

C
 E

ne
rg

y 
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 s
ch

em
e.

 U
nd

er
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e,
 p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 s
ub

m
it 

an
 a

nn
ua

l r
ep

or
t s

up
po

rte
d 

by
 a

n 
ev

id
en

ce
 p

ac
k 

by
 3

1 
Ju

ly
 2

01
2.

 T
he

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
w

ill
 e

va
lu

at
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 p
ac

ks
 to

 a
ss

es
s 

w
he

th
er

 d
at

a 
is

 c
or

re
ct

 a
nd

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
su

ffi
ci

en
t r

ec
or

ds
, a

nd
 a

ls
o 

w
he

th
er

 it
 is

 e
as

y 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d.

 P
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 a
re

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 

au
di

t t
he

ir 
ev

id
en

ce
 p

ac
k 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
e 

an
 a

ud
it 

ce
rti

fic
at

e 
si

gn
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r C
R

C
 re

tu
rn

s.
 U

nd
er

 th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

A
ct

 2
00

8,
 th

e 
A

ge
nc

y 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

w
er

 to
 fi

ne
 p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 £

5,
00

0 
pl

us
 £

50
0 

pe
r w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
 fo

r e
ac

h 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 d
ay

 o
f d

el
ay

 b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

re
po

rti
ng

 d
ea

dl
in

e.
 F

in
es

 o
f £

40
 fo

r e
ac

h 
to

nn
e 

of
 c

ar
bo

n 
di

ox
id

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

in
co

rr
ec

tly
 re

po
rte

d,
 a

nd
 fo

r e
ac

h 
to

nn
e 

of
 c

ar
bo

n 
di

ox
id

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

in
 th

e 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

ye
ar

 c
an

 a
ls

o 
be

 a
pp

lie
d.

 
F

or
 th

e 
fir

st
 ti

m
e,

 p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
no

w
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 s
ur

re
nd

er
 a

nd
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

ca
rb

on
 a

llo
w

an
ce

s 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 fr
om

 C
R

C
 s

up
pl

ie
s 

at
 £

12
 p

er
 to

nn
e.

 
 L

G
A

 to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

o
u

n
ci

ls
 s

et
tin

g
 u

p
 p

o
lic

e 
an

d
 c

ri
m

e 
p

an
el

s 

A
 g

ro
up

 o
f 

ex
pe

rts
 a

ss
em

bl
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
(L

G
A

) 
w

ill
 b

e 
ta

sk
ed

 w
ith

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 c

ou
nc

ils
 e

st
ab

lis
hi

ng
 p

ol
ic

e 
an

d 
cr

im
e 

pa
ne

ls
 a

he
ad

 o
f 

el
ec

te
d 

co
m

m
is

si
on

er
s 

ta
ki

ng
 o

ffi
ce

 o
n 

15
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
12

. C
ou

nc
ils

 h
av

e 
un

til
 2

 J
ul

y 
to

 s
ub

m
it 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r a
 p

ol
ic

e 
an

d 
cr

im
e 

pa
ne

l f
or

 th
ei

r f
or

ce
 a

re
a,

 to
 c

om
pr

is
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

10
 a

nd
 1

8 
co

un
ci

llo
rs

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 s
cr

ut
in

is
in

g 
th

e 
in

co
m

in
g 

co
m

m
is

si
on

er
. 

T
he

 p
an

el
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

th
e 

rig
ht

 o
f 

ve
to

 o
ve

r 
po

lic
e 

an
d 

cr
im

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
er

s'
 

(P
C

C
s’

) 
se

le
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 c
hi

ef
 c

on
st

ab
le

 a
nd

 s
et

tin
g 

of
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
ta

x 
pr

ec
ep

t. 
T

he
 t

as
kf

or
ce

 w
ill

 w
or

k 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pa
ne

l 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 c

le
ar

 o
n 

th
ei

r 
ro

le
 a

nd
 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s.

 T
he

 L
G

A
 h

as
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

its
 p

ro
sp

ec
tu

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
la

un
ch

 o
f 

a 
ne

w
 P

ol
ic

e 
an

d 
C

rim
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

er
s'

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

(P
aC

C
A

). 
T

he
 d

oc
um

en
t 

de
ta

ils
 t

he
 

su
pp

or
t, 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

lo
bb

yi
ng

 e
xp

er
tis

e 
th

at
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

di
ca

te
d 

to
 P

C
C

s.
 N

ew
 c

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
of

fe
re

d 
fr

ee
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
of

 th
e 

LG
A

 u
p 

un
til

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 M

ar
ch

 
20

13
.  

 N
ew

 fu
n

d
in

g
 b

o
o

st
 fo

r 
lo

ca
l a

re
as

 

T
he

 L
G

A
 is

 to
 o

ffe
r 

gr
an

ts
 o

f 
up

 to
 £

25
,0

00
 to

 a
ss

is
t c

ou
nc

ils
 in

 m
ak

in
g 

be
tte

r 
us

e 
of

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 la

nd
 to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 jo

bs
 in

 lo
ca

l a
re

as
. T

he
 fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

pa
rt 

of
 a

n 
on

-g
oi

ng
 L

G
A

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

in
te

nd
ed

 to
 a

ss
is

t c
ou

nc
ils

 in
 b

oo
st

in
g 

lo
ca

l e
co

no
m

ie
s.

 C
ou

nc
ils

 w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 m

at
ch

 th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

th
ey

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
nd

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 s
ho

w
 h

ow
 th

ey
 in

te
nd

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 c
ha

rit
ie

s,
 o

th
er

 to
w

n 
ha

lls
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l f

irm
s 

an
d 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 h
ow

 th
ey

 w
ill

 u
se

 th
e 

gr
an

ts
 to

 u
til

is
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

 a
ss

et
s 

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l 

ar
ea

. T
he

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

de
ad

lin
e 

is
 1

5 
Ju

ne
 2

01
2.

 

  

Page 32



S
ou

th
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

 
   

   
   

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t J

un
e 

20
12

 
 

 
 

13

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t t
o

 ta
ck

le
 'b

ed
s 

in
 s

h
ed

s'
 

H
ou

si
ng

 M
in

is
te

r, 
G

ra
nt

 S
ha

pp
s 

an
d 

Im
m

ig
ra

tio
n 

M
in

is
te

r, 
D

am
ia

n 
G

re
en

 h
av

e 
an

no
un

ce
d 

a 
ne

w
 c

ro
ss

-W
hi

te
ha

ll 
ta

sk
 g

ro
up

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 t

o 
ta

ki
ng

 a
ct

io
n 

ag
ai

ns
t 

cr
im

in
al

 la
nd

lo
rd

s 
an

d 
ta

ck
lin

g 
‘b

ed
s 

in
 s

he
ds

’, 
w

he
re

 s
he

ds
 a

nd
 o

ut
bu

ild
in

gs
 a

re
 r

en
te

d 
ou

t i
lle

ga
lly

, o
fte

n 
to

 il
le

ga
l i

m
m

ig
ra

nt
s.

 T
he

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r 
th

e 
gr

ou
p 

in
cl

ud
e:

 e
nc

ou
ra

gi
ng

 c
ou

nc
ils

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
gr

ea
te

r 
us

e 
of

 le
ga

l p
ow

er
s 

ac
ro

ss
 p

la
nn

in
g,

 f
ire

 s
af

et
y,

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
; 

m
ea

su
rin

g 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 a
nd

 
na

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
ob

le
m

, 
dr

aw
in

g 
on

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
co

lle
ct

ed
 b

y 
ce

nt
ra

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
an

d 
co

un
ci

ls
; 

en
su

rin
g 

co
un

ci
ls

 a
nd

 t
he

 p
ol

ic
e 

sh
ar

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
te

lli
ge

nc
e;

 c
lo

se
r 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 f
or

ei
gn

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

to
 h

el
p 

th
os

e 
w

an
tin

g 
to

 r
et

ur
n 

ho
m

e;
 a

nd
 s

te
ps

 t
o 

pr
ev

en
t 

m
or

e 
‘b

ed
s 

in
 s

he
ds

’ f
ro

m
 b

ei
ng

 c
re

at
ed

. 
S

ha
pp

s 
co

m
m

en
te

d:
 "

It 
is

 a
 

sc
an

da
l 

th
at

 t
he

se
 b

ac
k 

ga
rd

en
 s

lu
m

s 
ex

is
t 

to
 e

xp
lo

it 
pe

op
le

, 
m

an
y 

of
 w

ho
m

 a
re

 p
re

pa
re

d 
to

 r
et

ur
n 

vo
lu

nt
ar

ily
 t

o 
th

ei
r 

ho
m

e 
co

un
try

 b
ut

 in
st

ea
d 

fin
d 

th
em

se
lv

es
 

tra
pp

ed
 in

to
 p

ay
in

g 
ex

to
rti

on
at

e 
re

nt
s 

to
 li

ve
 in

 th
es

e 
cr

am
pe

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s.

" 

  M
P

s 
sa

y 
lo

ca
lis

m
 p

la
n

s 
n

ee
d

 to
 b

e 
m

o
re

 a
cc

o
u

n
ta

b
le

 

T
he

 P
ub

lic
 A

cc
ou

nt
s 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 (

P
A

C
) 

ha
s 

su
gg

es
te

d 
th

at
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
 p

ub
lic

 s
ec

to
r 

re
fo

rm
s,

 w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 e
le

ct
ed

 p
ol

ic
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

er
s,

 la
ck

 
‘c

la
rit

y,
 c

on
si

st
en

cy
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

et
en

es
s’

 a
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

id
ea

 o
f i

nc
re

as
ed

 lo
ca

lis
m

 d
oe

s 
no

t p
ro

vi
de

 ‘n
ec

es
sa

ry
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 o
n 

ei
th

er
 p

ro
bi

ty
 o

r 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
’. 

T
he

 P
A

C
 

pr
og

re
ss

 r
ep

or
t, 

A
cc

ou
nt

ab
ili

ty
 f

or
 p

ub
lic

 m
on

ey
, 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
es

 t
ha

t 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

 f
ac

e 
‘a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

cc
ou

nt
ab

ili
ty

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

fo
r 

lo
ca

lis
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s’
, h

ow
ev

er
, i

t r
ei

te
ra

te
s 

th
at

 A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 r
em

ai
n 

‘a
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 to
 P

ar
lia

m
en

t f
or

 fu
nd

s 
vo

te
d 

to
 th

ei
r 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts
’. 

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

P
A

C
’s

 fi
rs

t 
re

po
rt 

on
 a

cc
ou

nt
ab

ili
ty

, p
ub

lis
he

d 
in

 A
pr

il 
20

11
, t

he
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t r
eq

ue
st

ed
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 to

 p
ro

du
ce

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
ili

ty
 s

ys
te

m
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 s

et
tin

g 
ou

t 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. O
n 

ex
am

in
in

g 
fo

ur
 d

ra
ft 

st
at

em
en

ts
, w

hi
ch

 a
ll 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts
 a

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 p

ro
du

ce
 b

y 
su

m
m

er
 2

01
2,

 th
e 

P
A

C
 c

on
cl

ud
ed

 th
at

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 
ha

d 
ge

nu
in

el
y 

at
te

m
pt

ed
 t

o 
re

co
nc

ile
 a

cc
ou

nt
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 l
oc

al
is

m
, 

ho
w

ev
er

, 
‘c

on
si

de
ra

bl
y 

m
or

e’
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 b
e 

do
ne

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
ei

r 
‘c

la
rit

y,
 c

on
si

st
en

cy
 a

nd
 

co
m

pl
et

en
es

s’
. 

 

Page 33



Page 34

This page is left blank intentionally.



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Corporate Governance Committee  29 June 2012 
AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Corporate Services)/ Head of Accountancy 

 
 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2011/12 (SUBJECT TO AUDIT) 
 

Purpose 
 
1. To endorse the Statement of Accounts distributed as a separate document. 
 

Recommendations 
 
2. The Corporate Governance Committee is recommended to endorse the Statement of 

Accounts for 2011/12.  
 
Background 

 
3. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 used to require the draft statement of 

accounts to be approved before the 30th June by Council or by a delegated 
Committee. 

 
4. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 changed the approval requirements so 

that the responsible financial officer (in this Council, the Executive Director (Corporate 
Services)) must, no later than 30th June, sign and date the statement of accounts 
and certify that it presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council 
at the year end and of the income and expenditure for the year.  

 
5. The Council or a delegated Committee must then, no later than 30th September, 

consider and approve the statement of accounts  - so that, when Members approve 
the accounts, the results of the audit of accounts will be known and any amendments 
required by the auditors and agreed by the Council will be incorporated in the 
accounts submitted for approval.  

 
6. In October 2000, a statutory instrument was issued setting out the functions which 

were not to be the responsibility of an authority’s executive.  One of these functions 
was the duty to approve the authority’s statement of accounts. At its meeting in March 
2007, Council resolved that the terms of reference of the Audit Panel (now known as 
the Corporate Governance Committee) be extended to incorporate approval of the 
Statement of Accounts. 

 
Considerations 

 
7. I am pleased to report that the Statement of Accounts for 2011/12 has been 

produced, subject to audit. The production of the accounts under international 
financial reporting standards is complex and involved and requires a significant and 
concentrated staff commitment to meet the statutory deadlines. 

  
8. The contents of the Statement of Accounts are largely determined by the Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) issued by 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. The Code is updated 

Agenda Item 6Page 35



annually and is based on international financial reporting standards. The main 
financial statements are: 

 
i. a movement in reserves statement which shows all reserves and the movement in 
usable reserves, such as the general fund and housing revenue account working 
balances which can be used to provide services or keep down council tax/rent 
increases, and the movement in unusable reserves which are mainly accounting 
balances; 
 

ii. a comprehensive income and expenditure statement which combines the income 
and expenditure account and the statement of total recognised gains and losses 
and which includes a material item for 2011/12: 

 
On 28 March 2012, the Council raised a loan of £205.123 million from the Public 
Works Loan Board, a government agency, to finance the payment of a similar 
amount to the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG). 
Under accounting standards, the payment to the DCLG has to be shown in the 
comprehensive income and expenditure statement and this is the main reason 
for the deficit of £212.832 million.  
 
The amount of £205.123 million is reversed out as an adjustment between the 
accounting basis and the funding basis under regulations so it does not affect the 
working balances as at 31 March 2012 which the Council has available for future 
use. This is explained more fully in note 10 to the accounts “Material items of 
income and expenditure” and the net effect is shown in the balance sheet where 
a new item of long term borrowing £205.123 million appears with a corresponding 
reduction (in the capital adjustment account) in unusable reserves;  
 

iii. a balance sheet which again reflects the distinction between usable and unusable 
reserves; and 

 
iv. much of the detail in the above statements, and the cash flow statement, is now 
shown in the notes to the accounts. 

 
9. The Code for 2011/12 also introduces a change in accounting policies which affect 

this Council with regard to heritage assets which are maintained principally for their 
contribution to knowledge and culture. 

 
10. The explanatory foreword is intended to explain in overall terms and in an easily 

understandable manner the Council’s financial position including a comparison of 
actual expenditure with original estimate. A more detailed report on actual 
expenditure compared to original estimate will be submitted to the Cabinet meeting 
on 12 July.  

 
11. In view of the detailed technical processes involved in the preparation of the 

Statement of Accounts and accompanying explanatory information, it will be helpful if 
Members provide advance notice of any questions, thereby allowing time for any 
associated research to be completed.  

 
12. The Statement of Accounts is issued subject to audit. The audit is due to take place in 

June/July/August. The accounts and other related documents will be available for 
inspection by the public for 20 working days and electors or their representatives may 
question the auditor about the accounts and make objections on an appointed day 
which is Monday 10th September 2012. 

 

Page 36



13. The Statement of Accounts will be published on the Council’s website. 
 
  
Options 

 
14. The Committee may propose amendments and improvements to the presentation of 

the Statement of Accounts.  
 

Implications 
 
 
15.  Financial The actual working balances will be incorporated in the next 

review of the Medium Term Financial Strategy. 
Legal The Code constitutes a proper accounting practice under the 

Local Government Act 2003 and local authorities are legally 
required to comply with the Code.  

Staffing In future years, there is a risk that the accounts may not be 
closed in accordance with the statutory deadlines if vacancies 
and/or sickness occur at critical times. This is a reputational risk 
– there are no financial penalties for not complying with the 
deadline.  

Risk Management The short deadlines and increasing complexity allow less time 
for preparation, checking and reviewing and there is, therefore, 
also the risk that errors may occur in the Statement of Accounts.  

Equality and 
Diversity 

None 
Equality Impact 
Assessment 
completed 

No 

Climate Change None 
 
 

Consultations 
16. None. 
 

Consultation with Children and Young People 
17. None. 
 

Effect on Strategic Aims 
18. This report has no direct implications for any of the Strategic Aims but any variation in 

the expenditure on individual services might have affected the achievement of the 
aims, approaches and actions. 

 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report:  

Statement of Accounts distributed as a separate document and associated working 
papers 

Contact Officer:  Sally Smart - Principal Accountant 
Adrian Burns - Head of Accountancy  
Telephone: (01954) 713072 / 713076 
adrian.burns@scambs.gov.uk 
sally.smart@scambs.gov.uk 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is left blank intentionally.



!"#"$%$&"'()'*++(,&"-
./001./0.

!,23$+"'"('*,45"

!!!"#$%&'#"()*"+,

Page 39



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 1 

Statement of Accounts for year ended 31 March 2012 

Contents Page
Number

Explanatory Foreword 2

Statement of Responsibilities 11

Auditors Report 12 

Main Financial Statements 15

Movement in Reserves Statement 16

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 17

Balance Sheet 18

Cash Flow Statement 
          

20

Notes to Main Financial Statements      21

Supplementary Financial Statements 73

Housing Revenue Income and Expenditure Account 74

Statement of Movement on Housing Revenue Income and 
        Expenditure Account 

75

Collection Fund 76

Notes to Supplementary Financial Statements 78

Glossary of Financial Terms and Abbreviations 87

South Cambridgeshire District Council 
South Cambridgeshire Hall 
Cambourne Business Park 
Cambourne 
Cambridge, CB23 6EA                                                                 

Telephone: 01954 713 076 
www.scambs.gov.uk

Page 40



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 2 

Explanatory Foreword 

Introduction

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom which is based on International Financial 
Reporting Standards.  

The Statement of Accounts brings together on the following pages the major financial 
statements of the Council and consists of: 

a) Core financial statements: 

i) the Movement in Reserves Statement which shows the movement in the year on the 
different reserves analysed into usable reserves, that can be applied to fund 
expenditure or reduce local taxation, and other reserves; 

ii) the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement which shows the accounting 
cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices; 

iii) the Balance Sheet which shows the value at the year end of assets and liabilities 
recognised by the Council; and 

iv) the Cash Flow Statement which shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents 
during the year arising from the inflows and outflows of cash; 

with associated notes, including the accounting policies, grouped together for all the 
core financial statements. 

b) Supplementary financial statements: 

i) the Housing Revenue Account which shows revenue expenditure and income on 
Council housing for the year and is a ring-fenced account within the General Fund to 
prevent any cross-subsidy between general income and rents; and 

ii)  the Collection Fund which includes the council taxes and business rates collected by 
South Cambridgeshire District Council on behalf of those authorities responsible for 
services within the district and the government, and the way in which these monies 
have been distributed among the authorities and the government. 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

This Statement records the day-to-day expenditure incurred in providing services such as 
salaries and wages, other running costs and financing costs and income due from fees and 
charges and government grants. Also included are various costs to comply with the generally 
accepted accounting practices which do not impact on the level of council tax. This 
Statement consolidates the General Fund (services for the whole community) and the 
Housing Revenue Income and Expenditure Account (Council housing).

The additional costs to comply with accounting practices are reversed out in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. If the two Statements are combined, then the position for General Fund 
Services and the council tax can be summarised as: 

Page 41



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 3 

   

General Fund Original Actual 
estimate

Expenditure £'000 £'000 
Net Portfolio expenditure excluding depreciation  15,375 14,559  
Internal drainage boards 144 143  
Interest and investment income (550) (604) 
Amount to be met from Government Grant and local     

taxpayers 14,969 14,098  

Income
Principal sources of finance 

District element of Council Tax (6,934) (6,934) 
Formula Grant 

(a general Government grant towards expenditure) (6,026) (6,026) 
New Homes Bonus (800) (925) 
Council Tax Freeze Grant (173) (173) 
Other items (7) (7) 

(13,940) (14,065) 

Deficit for the year 1,029 33  
     
                                                                                                          

When the council tax for the financial year ending 31 March 2012 was set in February 2011, 
the deficit was estimated at £1,028,610. The variance of £995,452 is attributable to the 
following: 

General Fund Underspending/slippage( )
Actual to Original Estimate Overspending+
Services Reason for variance % £'000 £'000

Council Tax Benefit Less demand and lower payments net of 
subsidy (1) (68)

Rent rebates More demand and higher payments net of 
subsidy 1 58 

Corporate Management Pension costs not anticipated; higher 
recharges 14 166 

Environmental Health General Consultants' costs lower than estimated; 
lower recharges (15) (79)

Refuse Collection and Recycling Additional income/savings on recycling; 
lower salary costs (4) (189)

Homelessness
Lower expenditure on preventative 
measures (15) (57)

Development Control Recharges switched from Growth Agenda 
partly offset by more fee income 9 204 

Growth Agenda Recharges switched to Development 
Control (45) (585)

Net cuts/savings now allocated to services 100 134 
Reduction for vacancies now allocated to services 100 200 

(216)
Precautionary Items Contingency not needed (100) (75)
Support for Economic Downturn Slippage on business workshops, etc. (96) (144)
Interest on Balances Higher interest rates (10) (54)
New Homes Bonus Scheme not finalised at time of estimate (16) (125)
Other items individually under £50,000 (382)

(996)
Less underspendings in 2011-12 which will now be incurred in 2012-13 210 

(786)

Page 42



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 4 

Housing Revenue Account

This Account deals with the provision, management and maintenance of Council dwellings, 
as summarised below: 

Housing Revenue Account Original Actual 
estimate

Expenditure £'000 £'000 
Repairs and maintenance 3,288 3,234  
Management and services 5,315 5,402  
Major Repairs Allowance  3,334 3,334  
Payment to Government 12,600 12,527  
Interest payable  0 59  
Capital expenditure met from revenue 1,082 892  
Other 38 129  

25,657 25,577  
Income
Rents and charges (25,428) (25,802) 
Receipt from General Fund (165) (157) 
Interest (24) (18) 

(25,617) (25,977) 

Deficit/(Surplus) for the year 40 (400) 

These figures exclude items which are subsequently reversed in or out through the 
Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement. 
            
When rents for the financial year ending 31 March 2012 were set in February 2011, the 
estimated rent increase was set in line with government guidance at 7.6% and the deficit was 
estimated at £40,370. The variance of £439,908 is attributable to the following:    

                                

                            

Housing Revenue Account Underspending/slippage( )
Actual to Original Estimate Overspending+
Services Reason for variance % £'000 £'000

Dwellings Rents Shorter void periods; more new tenants (1) (248)
Charges for Services and Facilities Service and recoverable charges; sales (6) (99)
Repairs and Maintenance Lower expenditure on non-response (2) (53)
Supervision and Management - repairs and 
maintence

Stock condition survey; contract 
negotiations; ICT 9 71 

Payment to Government - negative subsidy Payment reduced by interest on debt (1) (73)
Treasury Management Arrangement fee on £205m originally 

expected to be in 2012-13 440 81 (321)
Interest Payable Interest on £205m originally expected to 

start in 2012-13 59 
Capital Expenditure met from revenue Fewer repurchases; more grant income (18) (190)
Other items individually under £50,000 12 

(440)

Page 43



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 5 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) – material item of expenditure 

The figures above exclude items which are subsequently reversed in or out through the 
Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement. In 2011-12, a material item charged 
to the Housing Revenue Account and then reversed out is the statutory payment to the 
Government of £205 million in respect of HRA self-financing. 

The Government has replaced the previous subsidy system, whereby the Council paid 
around £12.5 million in 2011-12 (about 54% of its rent income) to the Government, with a 
self-financing system under which the Council will keep all its rent income but would take on 
a debt calculated at £205 million on 28 March 2012. This change benefits the Council in 
future years as the cost of servicing the debt is fixed at £7.2 million whereas the portion of 
the rents paid over was £12.5 million in 2011/12 and would have been likely to increase in 
later years. 

This material item is shown as a separate line in the comprehensive income and expenditure 
core financial statement and in the Housing Revenue Account supplementary financial 
statement but is then reversed out and is also shown in the balance sheet as long term 
borrowing.

Capital

Capital expenditure produces assets capable of providing benefits to the community for 
several years to come. Total expenditure for the year amounted to £7.72 million. The major 
part of the programme involved the provision of housing; with £4.31 million being invested in 
the Council’s own housing stock.  

Treasury Management 

At the 31 March 2012, investments (excluding accrued interest) totalled £15.34 million, an 
increase of £5.79 million over the previous year-end (although this increase is largely offset 
by a decrease in short term debtors). These investments produced interest of over £0.60 
million, which was used towards the cost of services. 

The Council had been debt free since 1 April 1996 but now has debt of £205 million as 
mentioned above

Balances and Reserves 

The balances on the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account were at £7.37 million 
and £2.69 million respectively as at 31 March 2012 - this compares to the proposed minimum 
level of balances of £2.5 million (General Fund) and £2.0 million (Housing Revenue 
Account). These will be used to meet the cost of services in future years and to keep down 
any increases in council tax/rents. 

Reserves available for capital expenditure stood at £1.72 million, consisting of the usable 
capital receipts reserve and capital grants unapplied. After having to reduce the capital 
programme for several years, it is now projected to increase from an original estimate of 
£8.33 million in 2011-12 to £12.71 million in 2016-17 as a result of additional funding 
available on the housing account. 

Page 44



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 6 

Pensions

The accounting policy relating to pensions reflects International Accounting Standard 19 
Employee Benefits whereby pension liabilities incurred during the year are charged to the 
cost of services and then reversed out with the pension deficit being shown as a liability in 
the balance sheet. 

South Cambridgeshire’s pension deficit is estimated at £39.7 million as at 31 March 2012 on 
an IAS 19 basis. With 72% of the pension fund attributable to South Cambridgeshire invested 
in equities, the deficit can vary greatly from one year to the next.  

The employer’s contribution rate for 2011-12 was 21.7%. The formal triennial valuation as at 
31 March 2010 of assets and liabilities, for the purposes of determining contribution rate to 
be effective from 1 April 2011, showed a 70% funding level, being the extent to which assets 
cover liabilities. The Council’s five-year financial projections allow for an increase in predicted 
rates up to a maximum of 25% in view of the Government’s intention to review the long-term 
affordability of public sector pensions. 

The triennial valuation discounts future liabilities at a rate based on the expected return from 
the pension fund’s investments which are mainly stocks and shares. A valuation using a risk 
free discount rate, that is, based on Government Bonds, would give a much lower funding 
level and the employer’s contribution rate would be substantially higher. 

In view of the uncertainty over future pension costs, an additional 1.8% of pensionable pay 
has been charged against the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account and placed 
in a reserve for use in future years.  

Change in Accounting Policy 

The 2011-12 Code includes the adoption of financial reporting standard 30 heritage assets 
which has resulted in the recognition of an asset not previously recognised in the Balance 
Sheet and the disclosure of other assets as set out in note 28 Property, Plant and 
Equipment, Surplus Assets held for Sale and Heritage Assets. 

Page 45



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 7 

Council Tax

The council tax is set in terms of a band D property which is in the valuation band from 
£68,001 to £88,000 at 1991 prices. For a band D property, the council tax for 2011-12 was 
£1,456.09. This was one of the lowest tax levels in the country and most of the money was 
raised on behalf of the County Council as shown below: 

Total council tax bill  

However, looking only at the district element of the overall tax bill, South Cambridgeshire is 
the 13th lowest in 2011-12 at £115.46 in a range of £65.50 to £309.69, with the average 
being £165.65: 

The ranking is: 
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

South Cambridgeshire 10th 13th 12th 13th 13th 13th 
lowest lowest lowest lowest lowest lowest 

Total number of shire 
districts 238 238 201 201 201 201 

0
200
400
600
800

1,000
1,200
1,400
1,600
1,800

South
Cambridgeshire

Average Total
Council Tax in
Shire Districts

Highest Total
Council Tax in
Shire Districts

£

Parish

District

Fire

Police

County

£1,456.09
£1,495.60   

£1,677.70

 -

 50.00

 100.00

 150.00

 200.00

 250.00

 300.00

 350.00

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

£

Lowest district

South Cambridgeshire

Average

Highest

Page 46



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 8 

The Council has to provide the same services and meet the same demands as other district 
councils but with substantially less council tax income and is not compensated for this lower 
council tax income through the system of Government grants. 

With the exception of parishes,  
! the council taxes for 2011-12 are the same as for 2010-11 as all local authorities 

accepted the Government grant payable for four years in return for freezing the 2011-
12 council tax and  

! the council taxes for 2012/13 show a small increase over 2011-12 as most  local 
authorities accepted the Government grant payable for one year in return for freezing 
the 2012-13 council tax 

Current and future developments 

Council Tax 

Council Tax was introduced in 1993-94 and since then the Council Tax set by this Council 
has been substantially below the average charged by other shire districts as the Council was 
using its reserves (savings) to keep down the amount of Council Tax residents would have to 
pay. Without the use of reserves, the Council Tax would be at its underlying level and this 
use of reserves continues in future years 

This use of reserves is not sustainable beyond 2016-17. The Council’s financial strategy is 
monitored and reviewed on a regular basis.

Corporate plan 

The Council has published its Aims, Approaches and Actions for 2011-12 on its website at: 

http://www.scambs.gov.uk/documents/retrieve.htm?pk_document=909537

and has recently agreed its Corporate Plan for 2012 -17: 

http://www.scambs.gov.uk/documents/retrieve.htm?pk_document=911735

 -

 20.00

 40.00

 60.00

 80.00

 100.00

 120.00

 140.00

 160.00

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

£

Actual CT

Underlying
CT(Estimate)

Page 47



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 9 

Population growth 

The District population of 131,000 people in 2001 is projected to increase to 174,000 by 
2021, the estimate for June 2012 being 149,611. This is a reflection of the development of 
large numbers of additional houses in the district, particularly through the creation of a new 
settlement at Northstowe and the development of the Cambridge fringe areas. The officer 
capacity to develop these policies has to be paid for now. These initial costs are not reflected 
in Government grants or in the Council’s tax base for raising income locally. However, when 
new dwellings come into use, the Council now receives the New Homes Bonus government 
grant.

The Current Economic Climate and other significant risks 

The Government’s actions to reduce the fiscal deficit mainly by reducing public spending 
have resulted in substantial cuts for local government. The Council’s medium term financial 
strategy is in its strategic risk register with an assessed risk of high impact / possible 
likelihood. The financial situation is dependent amongst other things on the continuation of 
New Homes Bonus and the outcome of the redistribution of retained business rates from 
2013-14 onwards. 

Other items which are on the Council’s strategic risk register above the tolerance line and 
thereby requiring active management are: 

welfare reform including localised council tax benefits with reduced Government 
funding; 

 lack of development progress and not meeting housing needs; 
 implementation of the national job evaluation scheme; 
 supported housing with reduced funding; 
 illegal traveller encampments/developments; and 
 HRA business plan may be subject to Government policy changes.  

Affordable housing 

In the last few years the Council has transferred some of its non-traditionally built dwellings, 
some sheltered bedsits and various land sites to housing associations for the development of 
affordable and supported housing. These show in the relevant year as disposals written out 
of the balance sheet but in most cases the disposal is at nominal consideration. These 
transfers are an important contribution to the Council approaches of working through 
partnership and making affordable housing more available to local people. 

In 2011-12, the last tranches of Council land/houses were transferred to Accent Nene 
housing association at the Windmill Estate, Fulbourn, where there will be about 270 new 
dwellings for rent/share/sale.   

The housing self-financing system mentioned above under Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
– material item of expenditure will generate an investment surplus which will enable the 
council to build several hundred new homes. 

Page 48



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 10 

Auditor’s Opinion 

The Statement of Accounts is issued subject to audit.  

Alex Colyer 
Executive Director and Chief Finance Officer                                    

Dated: 21 June 2012 

Page 49



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 11 

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of 
Accounts

The Authority’s responsibilities 

The Authority is required to: 

! make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that 
one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this 
authority, that officer is the Executive Director (Corporate Services) who is the chief 
financial officer; 

! manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 
safeguard its assets; and 

! approve the Statement of Accounts. 

The responsibilities of the Executive Director (Corporate Services) as chief 
financial officer 

The Executive Director (Corporate Services) as chief financial officer is responsible for the 
preparation of the Authority’s Statement of Accounts, in accordance with proper practices as 
set out in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom - (the Code). 

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Executive Director (Corporate Services) as chief 
financial officer has: 

! selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 
! made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and 
! complied with the local authority Code. 

The Executive Director (Corporate Services) as chief financial officer has also: 

! kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and 
! taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Authority at 31 March 2012 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended. 

Alex Colyer 
Executive Director (Corporate Services) as Chief Financial Officer 
Dated: 21 June 2012 

I confirm that these accounts were approved by the Corporate Governance Committee held 
on 28 September 2012. 

Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee 

Dated: 28 September 2012 

Page 50



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 12 

Independent auditors’ report to the Members of South 
Cambridgeshire District Council 

Page 51



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

13

Independent auditors’ report to the Members of South 
Cambridgeshire District Council 

Page 52



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

14

Independent auditors’ report to the Members of South 
Cambridgeshire District Council 

Page 53



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

15

Main Financial Statements 

! Movement in Reserves Statement

! Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

! Balance Sheet 

! Cash Flow Statement 

Page 54



S
O

U
T

H
 C

A
M

B
R

ID
G

E
S

H
IR

E
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

1
6

M
o

ve
m

en
t 

in
 R

es
er

ve
s 

T
hi

s 
st

at
em

en
t s

ho
w

s 
th

e 
m

ov
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
ye

ar
 o

n 
th

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 r

es
er

ve
s 

he
ld

 b
y 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

, a
na

ly
se

d 
in

to
 u

sa
bl

e 
re

se
rv

es
 (

i.e
. t

ho
se

 th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 fu

nd
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 o

r 
re

du
ce

 lo
ca

l t
ax

at
io

n)
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 r
es

ou
rc

es
. T

he
 s

ur
pl

us
 o

r 
de

fic
it 

on
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

lin
e 

sh
ow

s 
th

e 
tr

ue
 e

co
no

m
ic

 c
os

t o
f 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
’s

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 m

or
e 

de
ta

ils
 o

f w
hi

ch
 a

re
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 th
e 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 In

co
m

e 
an

d 
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 S

ta
te

m
en

t. 
T

he
se

 a
re

 d
iff

er
en

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
st

at
ut

or
y 

am
ou

nt
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
to

 th
e 

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
 a

nd
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
 B

al
an

ce
 b

ef
or

e 
an

y 
di

sc
re

tio
na

ry
 tr

an
sf

er
s 

to
 o

r 
fr

om
 

ea
rm

ar
ke

d 
re

se
rv

es
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 
E

ar
m

ar
ke

d
H

ou
si

ng
C

ap
ita

l
C

ap
ita

l
R

es
ta

te
d

R
es

ta
te

d
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d
R

ev
en

ue
R

ec
ei

pt
s

G
ra

nt
s

To
ta

l U
sa

bl
e

U
nu

sa
bl

e
To

ta
l A

ut
ho

ri
ty

B
al

an
ce

R
es

er
ve

s
A

cc
ou

nt
 (H

R
A

)
R

es
er

ve
U

na
pp

lie
d

R
es

er
ve

s
R

es
er

ve
s

R
es

er
ve

s
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
N

ot
e

(N
ot

e 
6)

(N
ot

e 
11

)
(N

ot
e 

11
)

(N
ot

e 
11

)
(N

ot
e 

12
)

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 3

1s
t M

ar
ch

 2
01

0
(7

,1
49

,0
65

)
(3

,7
84

,1
44

)
(2

,7
46

,0
93

)
(1

,7
00

,3
35

)
(5

89
,8

50
)

(1
5,

96
9,

48
7)

(4
09

,4
18

,7
03

)
(4

25
,3

88
,1

90
)

M
ov

em
en

t i
n 

re
se

rv
es

 d
ur

in
g 

20
10

-1
1

D
ef

ic
it 

/ (
S

ur
pl

us
) o

n 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 s

er
vic

es
 (a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
ba

si
s)

(6
,0

23
,7

03
)

38
,4

75
,2

18
 

0 
0 

32
,4

51
,5

15
 

0 
32

,4
51

,5
15

 
O

th
er

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 a

nd
 in

co
m

e
5 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

19
,9

84
,0

05
 

19
,9

84
,0

05
 

To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
an

d 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

(6
,0

23
,7

03
)

0 
38

,4
75

,2
18

 
0 

0 
32

,4
51

,5
15

 
19

,9
84

,0
05

 
52

,4
35

,5
20

 

A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

ba
si

s 
an

d 
fu

nd
in

g 
ba

si
s 

un
de

r r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

5 
6,

36
0,

17
3 

0 
(3

8,
01

9,
54

3)
27

4,
41

9 
0 

(3
1,

38
4,

95
1)

31
,3

84
,9

51
 

0 

N
et

 (i
nc

re
as

e)
 / 

de
cr

ea
se

 b
ef

or
e 

tr
an

sf
er

s 
to

 e
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

re
se

rv
es

33
6,

47
0 

0 
45

5,
67

5 
27

4,
41

9 
0 

1,
06

6,
56

4 
51

,3
68

,9
56

 
52

,4
35

,5
20

 

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
(to

) /
 fr

om
 e

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
re

se
rv

es
6 

(5
94

,6
40

)
59

4,
64

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

(In
cr

ea
se

) /
 D

ec
re

as
e 

in
 y

ea
r

(2
58

,1
70

)
59

4,
64

0 
45

5,
67

5 
27

4,
41

9 
0 

1,
06

6,
56

4 
51

,3
68

,9
56

 
52

,4
35

,5
20

 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 3

1s
t M

ar
ch

 2
01

1
(7

,4
07

,2
35

)
(3

,1
89

,5
04

)
(2

,2
90

,4
18

)
(1

,4
25

,9
16

)
(5

89
,8

50
)

(1
4,

90
2,

92
3)

(3
58

,0
49

,7
47

)
(3

72
,9

52
,6

70
)

M
ov

em
en

t i
n 

re
se

rv
es

 d
ur

in
g 

20
11

-1
2

D
ef

ic
it 

/ (
S

ur
pl

us
) o

n 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 s

er
vic

es
 (a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
ba

si
s)

2,
43

8,
26

3 
21

0,
09

1,
64

6 
0 

0 
21

2,
52

9,
90

9 
0 

21
2,

52
9,

90
9 

O
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 a
nd

 in
co

m
e

5 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
6,

17
1,

70
6 

6,
17

1,
70

6 

To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
an

d 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

2,
43

8,
26

3 
0 

21
0,

09
1,

64
6 

0 
0 

21
2,

52
9,

90
9 

6,
17

1,
70

6 
21

8,
70

1,
61

5 

A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

ba
si

s 
an

d 
fu

nd
in

g 
ba

si
s 

un
de

r r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

5 
(2

,1
27

,2
72

)
0 

(2
10

,4
91

,1
83

)
32

9,
03

7 
(3

2,
17

2)
(2

12
,3

21
,5

90
)

21
2,

32
1,

59
0 

0 

N
et

 (i
nc

re
as

e)
 / 

de
cr

ea
se

 b
ef

or
e 

tr
an

sf
er

s 
to

 e
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

re
se

rv
es

31
0,

99
1 

0 
(3

99
,5

37
)

32
9,

03
7 

(3
2,

17
2)

20
8,

31
9 

21
8,

49
3,

29
6 

21
8,

70
1,

61
5 

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
(to

) /
 fr

om
 e

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
re

se
rv

es
6 

(2
77

,8
33

)
27

7,
83

3 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

In
cr

ea
se

 / 
D

ec
re

as
e 

in
 y

ea
r

33
,1

58
 

27
7,

83
3 

(3
99

,5
37

)
32

9,
03

7 
(3

2,
17

2)
20

8,
31

9 
21

8,
49

3,
29

6 
21

8,
70

1,
61

5 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 3

1s
t M

ar
ch

 2
01

2
(7

,3
74

,0
77

)
(2

,9
11

,6
71

)
(2

,6
89

,9
55

)
(1

,0
96

,8
79

)
(6

22
,0

22
)

(1
4,

69
4,

60
4)

(1
39

,5
56

,4
51

)
(1

54
,2

51
,0

55
)

Page 55



S
O

U
T

H
 C

A
M

B
R

ID
G

E
S

H
IR

E
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

1
7

C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 In

co
m

e 
an

d
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

T
hi

s 
st

at
em

en
t s

ho
w

s 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

co
st

 in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 o

f p
ro

vi
di

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 g

en
er

al
ly

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

pr
ac

tic
es

, r
at

he
r 

th
an

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 to

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 ta

xa
tio

n.
 A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
ra

is
e 

ta
xa

tio
n 

to
 c

ov
er

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
; t

hi
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 fr
om

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
co

st
. T

he
 ta

xa
tio

n 
po

si
tio

n 
is

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 th

e 
M

ov
em

en
t i

n 
R

es
er

ve
s 

S
ta

te
m

en
t. 

20
10

-1
1

20
10

-1
1

20
10

-1
1

20
11

-1
2

20
11

-1
2

20
11

-1
2

G
ro

ss
G

ro
ss

N
e

t
G

ro
ss

G
ro

ss
N

e
t

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
In

co
m

e
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
In

co
m

e
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

£
£

£
N

o
te

£
£

£
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

3,
21

4,
80

6 
(1

07
,5

51
)

3,
10

7,
25

5 
C

en
tr

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

3,
12

9,
82

9 
(1

77
,9

44
)

2,
95

1,
88

5 
8,

59
0,

86
4 

(7
,4

86
,9

36
)

1,
10

3,
92

8 
C

en
tr

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 t

he
 P

ub
lic

8,
64

9,
50

8 
(7

,5
20

,9
07

)
1,

12
8,

60
1 

C
ul

tu
ra

l, 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l a

nd
 P

la
nn

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

21
3,

60
2 

(1
75

,0
64

)
1,

03
8,

53
8 

  
C

ul
tu

ra
l a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

1,
09

5,
96

3 
0 

1,
09

5,
96

3 
7,

56
1,

02
4 

(1
,8

31
,4

70
)

5,
72

9,
55

4 
  

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s
7,

64
0,

38
3 

(2
,1

64
,1

57
)

5,
47

6,
22

6 
6,

19
0,

15
0 

(2
,0

56
,1

44
)

4,
13

4,
00

6 
  

P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

S
er

vi
ce

s
5,

63
1,

27
5 

(1
,8

08
,3

16
)

3,
82

2,
95

9 
70

1,
40

5 
(7

7,
31

1)
62

4,
09

4 
H

ig
hw

ay
s,

 R
oa

ds
 a

nd
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s
35

,3
83

 
0 

35
,3

83
 

N
on

 H
R

A
 H

ou
si

ng
31

9,
54

8 
(1

32
,4

15
)

18
7,

13
3 

  
P

er
so

na
l S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s
36

1,
98

0 
(4

0,
49

2)
32

1,
48

8 
24

,6
87

,1
07

 
(2

4,
56

1,
97

6)
12

5,
13

1 
  

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

an
d 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

27
,1

29
,3

28
 

(2
6,

86
2,

15
0)

26
7,

17
8 

1,
04

9,
64

5 
(4

75
,9

98
)

57
3,

64
7 

  
P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 R

en
ew

al
1,

02
8,

50
4 

(4
82

,8
17

)
54

5,
68

7 
37

6,
33

9 
(2

56
,1

29
)

12
0,

21
0 

  
S

up
po

rt
in

g 
P

eo
pl

e
35

3,
46

3 
(2

52
,7

65
)

10
0,

69
8 

1,
45

4,
72

2 
(5

05
,8

96
)

94
8,

82
6 

  
O

th
er

 N
on

 H
R

A
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

1,
17

7,
29

1 
(5

22
,6

27
)

65
4,

66
4 

13
7,

39
9 

0 
13

7,
39

9 
O

th
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 t

o/
fro

m
 H

R
A

13
3,

68
2 

0 
13

3,
68

2 
(1

0,
77

7,
00

0)
0 

(1
0,

77
7,

00
0)

N
on

 -
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 C
os

ts
23

,0
00

 
0 

23
,0

00
 

44
,7

19
,6

11
 

(3
7,

66
6,

89
0)

7,
05

2,
72

1 
  

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s-

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

56
,3

89
,5

89
 

(3
9,

83
2,

17
5)

16
,5

57
,4

14
 

61
,8

51
,4

18
 

(2
4,

49
7,

62
0)

37
,3

53
,7

98
 

  
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
 A

cc
ou

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

27
,5

53
,5

61
 

(2
5,

97
5,

55
5)

1,
57

8,
00

6 
0 

0 
0 

  
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
 A

cc
ou

nt
 S

el
f-f

in
an

ci
ng

20
5,

12
3,

00
0 

0 
20

5,
12

3,
00

0 
10

6,
57

1,
02

9 
(6

2,
16

4,
51

0)
44

,4
06

,5
19

 
N

e
t 

co
st

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s
28

9,
06

6,
15

0 
(6

5,
80

7,
73

0)
22

3,
25

8,
42

0 

5,
44

3,
43

4 
O

th
er

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

N
ot

e 
7

7,
26

5,
27

0 
90

5,
85

6 
F

in
an

ci
ng

 a
nd

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
co

m
e

N
ot

e 
8

35
1,

52
6 

(1
8,

30
4,

29
3)

Ta
xa

tio
n 

an
d 

no
n-

sp
ec

ifi
c 

gr
an

t 
in

co
m

e
N

ot
e 

9
(1

8,
34

5,
30

7)
32

,4
51

,5
16

 
D

e
fi

ci
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

o
n

 p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s
21

2,
52

9,
90

9 

31
,3

05
,0

23
 

(S
u

rp
lu

s)
/D

e
fi

ci
t 

o
n

 r
e

va
lu

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

n
o

n
-c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

ss
e

ts
(1

,5
06

,2
93

)
(1

1,
29

2,
00

0)
A

ct
u

a
ri

a
l 

(g
a

in
)/

lo
ss

 o
n

 p
e

n
si

o
n

 a
ss

e
ts

 a
n

d
 l

ia
b

il
it

ie
s

N
ot

e 
22

7,
67

8,
00

0 

52
,4

64
,5

39
 

T
o

ta
l 

co
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

ve
 i

n
co

m
e

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

21
8,

70
1,

61
6 

Page 56



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

18

Balance Sheet 

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities 
recognised by the authority. The net assets of the authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by 
the reserves held by the authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of 
reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the authority may use to provide services, 
subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use 
(for example the Capital receipts Reserves that may only be used to fund capital or repay debt). 
The second category of reserves are those that the authority is not able to use to provide services. 
This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the 
Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the 
assets are sold: and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’. 

Restated Restated
31 March 2010 31 March 2011 31 March 2012

£ £ Notes £

460,218,478 392,245,512 Property, Plant and Equipment 28 387,011,331 

580,409 609,429 Heritage Assets 28 624,665 

117,745 143,815 Intangible Assets 26 308,846 

7,000,110 6,000,110 Long Term Investments 37 6,000,110 

429,696 421,540 Long Term Debtors 412,939 

468,346,438 399,420,406 Long Term Assets 394,357,891 

12,268,538 3,750,692 Short Term Investments 37 9,559,702 

55,688 46,017 Inventories 30 42,203 

2,588,989 7,641,448 Short Term Debtors 31 4,381,064 

490,620 408,372 Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 1,018,113 

2,244,337 0 Assets held for sale 28 0 

17,648,172 11,846,529 Current Assets 15,001,082 

(774,923) (509,158) Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 (937,325)

(6,610,784) (5,812,253) Short Term Creditors 32 (9,061,472)

(241,901) (278,320) Provisions 33 (228,486)

(7,627,608) (6,599,731) Current Liabilities (10,227,283)

(52,478,812) (31,714,533) Other Long Term Liabilities 22/38 (39,757,635)

(500,000) 0 Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 0 

0 0 Long Term Borrowing 38 (205,123,000)

(52,978,812) (31,714,533) Long Term Liabilities (244,880,635)

425,388,190 372,952,671 Net Assets 154,251,055 

(15,969,487) (14,902,924) Usable reserves 11 (14,694,604)

(409,418,703) (358,049,747) Unusable Reserves 12 (139,556,451)

(425,388,190) (372,952,671) Total Reserves (154,251,055)

Page 57



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

19

Balance Sheet 

The restatement of the Balance Sheet relates to the Accounting Policy change for Heritage 
Assets, further details are included in section n of the Statement of Accounting Policies 
and Note 28. 

The unaudited accounts were issued on 21 June 2012.  

Signed:

Alex Colyer 
Executive Director (Corporate Services) as Chief Finance Officer                         

Dated: 21 June 2012

Page 58



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

20

Cash Flow Statement 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the 
authority during the reporting period. The statement shows how the authority generates 
and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and 
financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key 
indicator of the extent to which the operations of the authority are funded by way of 
taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the authority. 
Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for 
resources which are intended to contribute to the authority’s future service delivery. Cash 
flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by 
providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the authority. 

2010-11 2011-12
£ Note £

Cash Flows from operating activities
(71,609,581)    Cash receipts (78,250,617)
75,568,994    Cash payments 70,540,377 

3,959,413 Net cash flows from Operating Activities 13 (7,710,240)

(4,751,846) Investing Activities 14 8,821,587 

608,917 Financing Activities (1,292,922)

(183,516) Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents (181,575)

284,302 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 100,786

100,786 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 15 (80,789)

Page 59



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

21

Notes to Main Financial Statements 

Page 60



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

22

Notes to the Statement of Accounts 

1 Statement of Accounting Policies

a. General

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011-12 and the Service Reporting Code of 
Practice 2011-12 supported by International Financial Reporting Standards. 

The accounting convention adopted is historical cost modified by the revaluation of 
certain categories of non-current assets. 

b. Accruals of Income and Expenditure 

The accounts of the Council are maintained on an accruals basis, that is, sums due to 
the Council for goods/services provided or due from the Council for goods/services 
received during the year are included as income or expenditure whether or not the cash 
has actually been received or paid in the year. 

Exceptions to this principle relate, for example, to quarterly payments where payments 
are charged in the year rather than apportioning charges between financial years. This 
policy is consistently applied each year and, therefore, does not have a material effect 
on the year’s accounts. Grants payable to other organisations are included in the 
accounts on a payments basis.  

Where income and expenditure has been recognised in the accounts but cash has not 
been received or paid, a debtor or creditor is recorded in the balance sheet. 

c. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable 
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments 
that mature in three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash 
management. 

d. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates, and 
Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to 
correct a material error. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting 
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information on the Authority’s 

Page 61



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

23

financial position or performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively 
by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively in the current and 
future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.  

e. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 

Services, support services and trading accounts are charged with the following amounts 
to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 

! depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service; 

! revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are 
no accumulated gains in the revaluation reserve against which the losses can be 
written off; and 

! amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service. 

Any depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation charged to the 
relevant accounts is reversed out in the movement in reserves statement and 
transferred to the capital adjustment account so that these charges are not met by 
council tax or rents.  

The Authority is required to charge an annual provision to revenue as a contribution 
towards reducing its overall borrowing requirement. This provision, known as the 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), is an amount calculated on a prudent basis 
determined by the Authority in accordance with statutory guidance. 

f. Employee Benefits 

Benefits payable during employment 

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within twelve months of the 
year-end. They include salaries and wages, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, 
bonuses and non-monetary benefits for current employees and are recognised as an 
expense for services in the year in which employees render services to the Authority.  

An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements and/or other forms of leave 
earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry 
forward into the next financial year. The accrual is charged to the cost of services in the 
comprehensive income and expenditure account but then reversed out in the movement 
in reserves statement and transferred to the accumulating compensated absences 
adjustment account.  

Termination benefits  

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to 
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s 
decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the 
relevant service account in the comprehensive income and expenditure account when 

Page 62



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

24

the Authority is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an 
officer. 

Post employment benefits 

Employees and Councillors of the Authority are eligible to be members of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme, administered by Cambridgeshire County Council, which 
is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme whereby: 

! the Authority’s share of the liabilities of the pension fund are included in the balance 
sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit cost method, that is, an 
assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement 
benefits earned to date by employees based on assumptions about mortality rates, 
employee turnover rates, etc., and projections of earnings for current employees; 

! these liabilities are then discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount 
rate based on the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds; 

! the Authority’s share of the assets of the pension fund are included in the balance 
sheet at their fair value being 

quoted securities         current bid price 
unquoted securities     professional estimate 
unitised securities       current bid price 
property                       market value; 

! the change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components: 

i.current service cost being the increase in liabilities as a result of the years of 
service earned in the current year where the cost is allocated in the 
comprehensive income and expenditure account to the services on which the 
employees worked; 

ii. past service cost being the increase or decrease in liabilities arising from 
decisions in the current year affecting liabilities incurred in past years where the 
cost is charged or credited to non-distributed costs in the comprehensive income 
and expenditure account; 

iii.interest cost being the expected increase in the present value of liabilities as they 
move one year closer to being paid where the cost is charged to the financing and 
investment section of the comprehensive income and expenditure account; 

iv.expected return on assets being expected annual investment return on the fund 
assets based on the average of the expected long term returns where the return is 
credited to the financing and investment section of the comprehensive income and 
expenditure account; 

v.gains or losses on settlements, being the result of actions to relieve the Authority 
of liabilities, and curtailments, being events that reduce the expected future 
service or accrual of benefits of employees, where the gains or losses are credited 
or charged to non-distributed costs in the comprehensive income and expenditure 
account; 

vi.actuarial gains and losses being changes in the net pensions liability that arise 
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial 

Page 63



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

25

valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions where the 
gains and losses are credited or charged to the pensions reserve; and  

vii.contributions paid to the pension fund in the year being the payments made by the 
Authority as employer. 

The charges and credits to the comprehensive income and expenditure account 
mentioned above are reversed out in the movement in reserves statement to the 
pensions reserve and replaced with the contributions paid.   

The negative balance on the pensions reserve in the balance sheet measures the future 
liability in respect of benefits due to members of the fund. 

Discretionary benefits 

The Authority also has powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in 
the event of early retirement. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to 
any employee are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award. 

g. Events after the Balance Sheet Date 

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and 
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the 
Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. There are two types of events: 

! those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting 
period; the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and 

! those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the end of the reporting 
period; the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events but, where 
an event would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the event 
and its estimated financial effect.  

h. Financial Instruments 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the Authority becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at 
fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the financing and 
investment section of the Income and Expenditure Account for interest are based on the 
carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
instrument. The effective rate of interest is the rate that discounts estimated future cash 
payments over the life of the instrument to the fair value at which it was originally 
recognised. 
The only financial liabilities for this Council are trade payables of short duration, 
measured at original or estimated invoice amount, and long term borrowing which is 
shown in the balance sheet as the outstanding principal repayable with interest charged 
to the comprehensive income and expenditure account being the amount payable for 
the year in accordance with the loan agreement. 

Page 64



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

26

Financial assets  

Financial assets consist of: 

! loans and receivables and 

! available-for-sale assets – financial instruments 

The only financial assets applicable to this Council are loans and receivables which 
have the defining characteristics of fixed and determinable payments and are not quoted 
in an active market.  

Loans and receivables are recognised on the balance sheet when the Authority 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially 
measured at fair value. They are subsequently carried at amortised cost. Annual credits 
to the financing and investment section of the comprehensive income and expenditure 
account for interest are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the 
effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans and receivables owed 
to the Council, the amount shown in the balance sheet is the outstanding principal or 
invoice amount receivable and interest credited to the comprehensive income and 
expenditure account is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 

The Council has made a number of loans for disabled facilities and renovation of 
dwellings to individuals and landlords at a nil rate of interest repayable on the 
sale/transfer of the property. As these loans have no fixed or determinable repayment, 
they have not been classified as loans and receivables but have been shown as long-
term debtors. 

i. Government and Other Grants and Contributions  

Government grants and other contributions and donations are recognised as due to the 
Authority when there is a reasonable assurance that: 

! the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and  

! the grants or contributions will be received. 

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution 
have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic 
benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or 
contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future 
economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor, i.e. if the grant 
or contribution is not used as intended, then it has to be repaid. 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been 
satisfied are carried in the balance sheet as creditors (receipts in advance). When 
conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service 
(attributable revenue grants and contributions) or to the taxation and non-specific grant 
income section (non ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the 
comprehensive income and expenditure statement. 

Page 65



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

27

Where capital grants are credited to the comprehensive income and expenditure 
statement, they are reversed out in the movement in reserves statement:  
to the capital grants unapplied reserve if the grant has yet to be used to finance capital 
expenditure; or 
to the capital adjustment account if the grant has been used to finance capital 
expenditure.

Amounts in the capital grants unapplied reserve are transferred to the capital adjustment 
account when they are applied to fund capital expenditure. 

 j.   Heritage Assets 

Heritage assets have cultural, environmental or historical associations that make their 
preservation for future generations important and are maintained principally for their 
contribution to knowledge and culture. 

 Heritage assets are recognised in the balance sheet where the Council has information 
on the cost or value of the asset. Where such information is not available, and the cost 
of obtaining the information outweighs the benefits to the users of the accounts, heritage 
assets are not shown in the balance sheet but are disclosed in a note to the accounts. 

 Heritage assets may be valued by any method that is appropriate and relevant and, 
where valuations are not practicable, may be carried at historical cost. Depreciation is 
not required on heritage assets which have indefinite lives and impairment reviews are 
only required where there is evidence of physical deterioration or breakage or where 
new doubts arise as to authenticity. 

k. Intangible Assets 

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are 
controlled by the Authority (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that 
future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the 
Authority.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the 
fair value of the assets held by the Authority can be determined by reference to an 
active market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Authority meets this criterion 
and intangible assets are, therefore, carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount 
of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service in the 
comprehensive income and expenditure statement. An asset is tested for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the asset might be impaired and any impairment 
losses recognised are charged to the other operating expenditure section in the 
comprehensive income and expenditure statement. Any gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is charged to the relevant service line in 
the comprehensive income and expenditure statement. 

Amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses charged to the 
comprehensive income and expenditure statement are reversed out in the movement in 
reserves statement and transferred to the capital adjustment account and the capital 
receipts reserve for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000.

Page 66



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

28

l. Inventories 

Inventories are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost or net realisable value.  

m.  Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant and 
equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating 
leases. 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the comprehensive income and 
expenditure statement as an expense of the service benefiting from the use of the 
leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the 
life of the lease  

Arrangements such as contract hire agreements that do not have the legal status of a 
lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for payment are accounted for under 
this policy where the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific 
assets. 

n. Overheads and Support Services 

The costs of overheads and support services are charges to those services which 
benefit from the provision of the overheads and support services in accordance with the 
costing principles in the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2011-12. The full cost of 
overheads and support services are charged out to users in proportion to the benefits 
received, with the exception of: 

! the corporate and democratic core costs relating to the Authority’s status as a multi-
functional, democratic organisation; and 

! non-distributed costs include pension costs, relating to past service costs and gains 
and losses on settlements and curtailments, and any depreciation and impairment 
losses chargeable on assets held for sale. Pension costs, depreciation and 
impairment are reversed out in the movement in reserves statement.

o. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of 
goods or services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes and that are 
expected to be used during more than one financial year are classified as property, plant 
and equipment. 

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and 
equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future 
economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the Authority 

Page 67



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

29

and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does 
not add to the asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential, 
i.e. repairs and maintenance, is charged as an expense when it is incurred. 

Measurement 

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any costs 
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by the Authority. 

Assets are then carried in the balance sheet using the following measurement bases: 

! infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction  
- depreciated historical cost; 

! dwellings  
- fair value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social housing;  

! non-property assets that have short useful lives and/or low values  
-    depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value; and 

! all other assets 
- fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its 

existing use  

Assets included in the balance sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly (at 
least every five years) to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from 
their fair value at the year-end.

Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the revaluation reserve to recognise 
unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the comprehensive income 
and expenditure statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously 
charged to a service. 

Decreases in valuations are accounted for by writing down the balance (if any) of 
revaluation gains in the revaluation reserve for that asset and then charging any 
remaining decrease in value to the relevant service in the comprehensive income and 
expenditure statement. 

The revaluation reserve only contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007, 
the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been 
consolidated into the capital adjustment account. 

Impairment  

Assets are assessed at the end of each year as to whether there is any indication that an 
asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are 
estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where 
this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for 
the shortfall. 

Impairment losses are accounted for by writing down the balance (if any) of revaluation 
gains in the revaluation reserve for that asset and then charging any remaining 

Page 68



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

30

impairment to the relevant service in the comprehensive income and expenditure 
statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the 
relevant service in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement, up to the 
amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if 
the loss had not been recognised. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment calculated on a straight-
line allocation over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a 
determinable finite useful life, i.e. freehold land and certain community assets, if any, 
and assets that are not yet available for use, i.e. assets under construction, if any. 

Where property, plant and equipment assets have major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset, depreciation on the components has 
been calculated and is not materially different from depreciation on the depreciable part 
of the whole asset. Components have not, therefore, been depreciated separately.  

Revaluation gains are also depreciated by an amount equal to the difference between 
the current value depreciation charges on the assets and the historic cost depreciation 
charges on the assets, with this difference being transferred each year from the 
revaluation reserve to the capital adjustment account.  

Disposals and non-current assets held for sale 

An asset is reclassified as an asset held for sale when it becomes probable that the 
carrying amount of the asset will be recovered principally through a sale transaction. 
The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower 
of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Any subsequent decrease to fair value 
less costs to sell is posted to the other operating expenditure section in the 
comprehensive income and expenditure account but any gains in fair value are only 
recognised up to the amount of any previously recognised losses. Depreciation is not 
charged on assets held for sale. 

Assets no longer meeting the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale are 
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of  

their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale adjusted for 
depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they 
not been classified as held for sale; and  

their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell. 

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for 
sale. 

When an asset is disposed of, the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet is 
written off and any receipts on disposal are credited to the other operating expenditure 
section in the comprehensive income and expenditure account so that this section shows 
the net gain or loss on the disposal of non-current assets. The net gain or loss is then is 
reversed out in the movement in reserves statement with the carrying amount transferred 
to the capital adjustment account and the receipts on disposal credited to the capital 
receipts reserve so that the net gain or loss is not met by council tax or rents.

Page 69



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

31

Any revaluation gains in the revaluation reserve in respect of the asset are transferred to 
the capital adjustment account. 

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital 
receipts.

A proportion of capital receipts relating to housing disposals (75% for dwellings and 50% 
for land and other assets, net of statutory deductions and allowances) is payable to the 
Government and shown in the other operating expenditure section in the comprehensive 
income and expenditure. This is then is reversed out in the movement in reserves 
statement to the capital receipts reserve so that the net gain or loss is not met by council 
tax or rents.

p. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or 
constructive obligation in the future that probably requires settlement by transfer of 
economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate 
service in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement in the year that the 
Authority becomes aware of the obligation and are measured at the best estimate at the 
balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into 
account the relevant risks and uncertainties. Any payments eventually made are 
charged against the provision, provisions are reviewed at the end of each financial year 
and any reduction in the need for the provision is credited back to the relevant service.  

Contingent Liabilities  

Contingent liabilities arise where events have taken place that give the Authority 
possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or 
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Authority. 
Contingent liabilities also arise where a provision would otherwise be made but either it 
is not probable that a settlement will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot 
be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but 
disclosed in a note to the accounts.  

Contingent assets 

Contingent assets arise where events have taken place that give the Authority possible 
assets whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Authority. Contingent assets 
are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it 
is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 

q.  Reserves and Developers’ Contributions  

The Authority sets aside certain amounts as reserves for expenditure in future years by 
appropriating amounts out of the general fund balance in the movement in reserves 
statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to 
the relevant service in the comprehensive income and expenditure account and an 

Page 70



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

32

equivalent amount is appropriated back to the general fund balance in the movement in 
reserves statement so that the expenditure is not a charge against the council tax. 

Some reserves, as set out in the unusable reserves note to the accounts, are kept for 
accounting purposes and do not represent usable resources for the Authority. 

Developers’ contributions are monies received from developers under Section 106 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 for future expenditure on affordable housing, 
drainage, community costs and development, etc. Any unused balances of these 
contributions are shown as receipts in advance under creditors. 

r. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 

Expenditure which is incurred during the year and which may be capitalised under 
statutory provisions but does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been 
charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the comprehensive income and 
expenditure statement. Such expenditure which is met from capital resources or from 
borrowing is then transferred out in movement in reserves statement so that there is no 
impact on the council tax. 

s.  VAT 

VAT is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from HMRC. 
VAT receivable is excluded from income. 

2 Accounting Standards that have been issued but not yet adopted 

There are currently no accounting standards issued that have not been adopted. 

3    Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 

In applying the accounting policies set out in note 1, the Council has had to make certain 
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future 
events. There no critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts that are likely to 
have a material effect on the accounts. 

4    Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation 
uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions 
made by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made 
taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. 
However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be 
materially different from the assumptions and estimates.  

Pensions Liability 

The main item in the Council’s balance sheet as at 31st March 2012 for which there is a 
significant risk of material adjustment is the estimation of the pension liability by a 

Page 71



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

33

consulting Actuary engaged by the pension fund administrator, Cambridgeshire County 
Council. 

The estimation is over several decades where a small change in one of the assumptions 
can have a large effect on the liability and the Actuary has provided the following 
sensitivity analysis: 

2010/11 2011/12 

Change in assumption Increase in 
liability (£ million)

Increase in 
liability (£ million) 

0.5% decrease in real discount rate 9.02 9.69 

1 year increase in member life expectancy 2.87 3.09 

0.5% increase in salary increase rate 1.94 2.42 

0.5% increase in pensions increase rate 6.73 7.22 

 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the 
level of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets. If the 
Council did not sustain its current spending on repairs and maintenance the useful lives 
currently assigned to assets may be reduced. 

If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying value of the 
asset will decrease. The largest category of assets is Council dwellings and it is estimated 
that the annual depreciation charge for these would increase by approximately £429,170 
for every year that useful lives had to be reduced. 

Page 72



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

34

5     Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under 
Regulations and other comprehensive expenditure and income

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure 
recognised in the year in accordance with proper practices to arrive at the movement in funds on a 
statutory basis which are available to meet future expenditure. 

2010-11 2011-12
£ £

General Fund
Reversal of items included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Account

(725,497) Depreciation of non-current assets (622,340)
(510,196) Impairment of non-current assets (602,823)
179,851 Reversal of impairment of non-current assets 442,725 

0 Capital Grants and contributions applied to capital financing 168,106 
0 Capital Grants and contributions unapplied 32,042 

(879,975) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (778,210)
(439,657) Net gain/(loss) on sale of non-current assets 387,013 

Amount by which pension costs calculated in accordance with the Code
are different from the contributions due under the pension

9,683,552 scheme regulations (466,679)
Amount by which Council tax income in the Comprehensive Income and
   Expenditure Statement is different from the amount taken to the General

(52,808)    Fund in accordance with regulations (1,276)
Amount by which officer remuneration on an accruals basis is different from

(39,093) remuneration chargeable by statute 25,546 
Insertion of items not included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account

Transfer from Capital Receipts Reserve to finance payment to the Government
(856,003) housing capital receipts pool (829,758)

0 Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 51,512 
0 Statutory provision for financing of capital investment 66,870 

6,360,174 Total adjustments (2,127,272)

Housing Revenue Account
Reversal of items included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Account

(32,041,460) Impairment of non-current assets 3,379,305 
Excess of depreciation over major repairs allowance element of housing

(6,626,343) subsidy (6,901,925)
0 Capital Grants and contributions applied to capital financing 101,716 

(351,461) Net gain/(loss) on sale of non-current assets (2,750,120)
Amount by which pension costs calculated in accordance with the Code

are different from the contributions due under the pension
(300,552) scheme regulations (113,321)

Amount by which officer remuneration on an accruals basis is different from
2,674 remuneration chargeable by statutue 24,288 

0 Housing Revenue Account Self-financing (205,123,000)
Insertion of items not included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account

1,297,599 Capital expenditure charged against the Housing Revenue Account 891,874 

(38,019,543) Total adjustments (210,491,183)

Capital Receipts Reserve
Transfer of sale proceeds credited to net gain/loss on disposal of non-current

(2,111,496) assets in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (2,390,958)
1,553,146 Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 1,842,402 

(23,234) Capital receipts transferred to reserves 47,835 
Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance payment to the Government housing

856,003    capital receipts pool 829,758 

274,419 Total adjustments 329,037 

(31,384,950) Total adjustments (212,289,418)

Page 73



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

35

Movement in other comprehensive income and expenditure 

Restated 
Decrease / Decrease / 
(Increase) (Increase) 
2010-11 2011-12 

£ £ 
Movement in Unusable Reserves 

32,328,529  Revaluation Reserve (310,133)
39,635,401  Capital Adjustment Account 210,727,210 

(20,675,000) Pensions Reserve 8,111,000 
52,808  Collection Fund Adjustment Account 1,276 
(9,202) Deferred Capital Receipts 13,777 

36,419
Accumulating Compensated Absences 
Adjustment Account (49,834)

51,368,955  218,493,296 
Adjustment between accounting basis 
and funding basis under regulations 

6,360,174  General Fund (2,127,272)
(38,019,543) Housing Revenue Account (210,491,183)

274,419  Capital Receipts 329,037 
0  Capital Grants Unapplied (32,172)

(31,384,950) (212,321,590)

19,984,005  6,171,706 

Page 74



S
O

U
T

H
 C

A
M

B
R

ID
G

E
S

H
IR

E
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

3
6

6 
  M

o
ve

m
en

t 
in

 R
es

er
ve

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t 
– 

T
ra

n
sf

er
s 

(t
o

)/
 f

ro
m

 E
ar

m
ar

ke
d

 R
es

er
ve

s 

T
hi

s 
no

te
 s

et
s 

ou
t t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 s

et
 a

si
de

 fr
om

 th
e 

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
ba

la
nc

es
 in

 e
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

re
se

rv
es

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 fi

na
nc

in
g 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
pl

an
s 

an
d 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
s 

po
st

ed
 b

ac
k 

fr
om

 e
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

re
se

rv
es

 to
 m

ee
t G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 in

 2
01

1/
12

. 

31
 M

a
rc

h
 

20
10

T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 
o

u
t 

20
10

-1
1

T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 i
n

 
20

10
-1

1
31

 M
a

rc
h

 
20

11
T

ra
n

sf
e

rs
 

o
u

t 
20

11
-1

2
T

ra
n

sf
e

rs
 i

n
 

20
11

-1
2

31
 M

a
rc

h
 

20
12

£
£

£
C

a
p

it
a

l
P

re
se

rv
at

io
n 

of
 H

is
to

ric
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 F
un

d
(5

4,
62

2)
0

0
(5

4,
62

2)
0

0
(5

4,
62

2)
A

rt
s 

G
ra

nt
s

(7
2,

67
6)

67
,0

26
(4

0,
00

0)
(4

5,
65

0)
12

,2
60

(4
0,

00
0)

(7
3,

39
0)

D
ua

l U
se

 R
ec

re
at

io
na

l F
ac

ili
tie

s
(3

18
,0

00
)

11
1,

87
5

0
(2

06
,1

25
)

18
3,

47
7

0
(2

2,
64

8)
P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ro

je
ct

s
(1

0,
00

0)
10

,0
00

0
0

0
0

0
C

om
m

un
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
(1

54
,4

17
)

17
3,

72
8

(9
9,

97
8)

(8
0,

66
7)

62
,7

27
(1

35
,3

07
)

(1
53

,2
47

)
S

po
rt

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

(2
67

,5
45

)
10

3,
62

4
(9

9,
98

1)
(2

63
,9

02
)

16
1,

30
7

(6
4,

69
3)

(1
67

,2
88

)
O

th
er

(2
27

,8
34

)
76

,3
87

(7
4,

58
8)

(2
26

,0
35

)
87

,3
98

(5
4,

18
3)

(1
92

,8
20

)
R

e
ve

n
u

e
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

R
es

er
ve

s
(1

,0
90

)
0

0
(1

,0
90

)
42

2
0

(6
68

)
B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
on

tr
ol

 R
es

er
ve

(2
90

,2
23

)
87

,4
46

0
(2

02
,7

77
)

60
,1

96
0

(1
42

,5
81

)
A

rt
s 

R
es

er
ve

(1
3,

19
5)

8,
56

6
(3

0,
24

2)
(3

4,
87

1)
29

,8
92

0
(4

,9
79

)
P

la
nn

in
g 

R
es

er
ve

(1
,3

15
,0

62
)

29
9,

48
0

(1
6,

83
5)

(1
,0

32
,4

17
)

32
0,

13
0

0
(7

12
,2

87
)

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
&

 G
ra

nt
s 

R
es

er
ve

(3
8,

06
5)

16
,6

70
(9

00
)

(2
2,

29
5)

10
,9

40
(2

,0
00

)
(1

3,
35

5)
S

po
rt

s 
R

es
er

ve
(3

3,
74

8)
44

,7
48

(4
4,

31
3)

(3
3,

31
3)

28
,4

28
(7

,3
00

)
(1

2,
18

5)
Tr

av
el

le
rs

 R
es

er
ve

(5
49

,1
61

)
53

,2
74

(1
32

,5
13

)
(6

28
,4

00
)

56
,4

57
(1

31
,9

88
)

(7
03

,9
31

)
O

th
er

(4
38

,5
07

)
19

9,
99

3
(1

18
,8

27
)

(3
57

,3
41

)
18

,3
79

(3
18

,7
08

)
(6

57
,6

70
)

(3
,7

84
,1

45
)

1,
25

2,
81

7
(6

58
,1

77
)

(3
,1

89
,5

05
)

1,
03

2,
01

3
(7

54
,1

79
)

(2
,9

11
,6

71
)

T
o

ta
l 

- 
C

a
p

it
a

l
(1

,1
05

,0
94

)
54

2,
64

0
(3

14
,5

47
)

(8
77

,0
01

)
50

7,
16

9
(2

94
,1

83
)

(6
64

,0
15

)
  

  
  

  
 R

e
ve

n
u

e
(2

,6
79

,0
51

)
71

0,
17

7
(3

43
,6

30
)

(2
,3

12
,5

04
)

52
4,

84
4

(4
59

,9
96

)
(2

,2
47

,6
56

)

(3
,7

84
,1

45
)

1,
25

2,
81

7
(6

58
,1

77
)

(3
,1

89
,5

05
)

1,
03

2,
01

3
(7

54
,1

79
)

(2
,9

11
,6

71
)

Page 75



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

37

7      Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - Other Operating 
Expenditure

             
2010-11 2011-12 

Net Net
Expenditure Expenditure

£ Other operating expenditure Note £ 
3,655,380 Precepts of Local Precepting Authorities 3,929,068  

140,933 Internal Drainage Boards 143,336  

856,003 Payment to the Government for Housing Pooled Capital 
receipts 829,758  

791,118 Loss on disposal of non-current assets 5 2,363,108  

5,443,434       7,265,270
             

The loss on disposal of non-current assets relates to the transfer of properties at nil 
consideration to housing associations. 

8      Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - Financing and 
Investment Income

               
2010-11 2011-12 

Net Net
Expenditure Expenditure

£ Financing and investment income Note £ 

  1,467,000 
Pensions interest cost and expected return on 
pension assets 22 898,000  

  0 Interest Payable 59,119  
(561,144) Interest and investment income (605,593)  

905,856         351,526
               

9      Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - Taxation  
               

2010-11 2011-12 
Net Net

Expenditure Expenditure
£ Taxation and non-specific grant income Note £ 

(10,440,056) Income from Council Tax (10,868,526)  
(6,831,343) Distribution from Non-Domestic Rate Pool (4,603,491)  
(1,032,894) Non-ringfenced Government Grants 39 (2,571,426)  

0 Capital Grants and contributions (301,864)  

(18,304,293)         (18,345,307)
               

Page 76



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

38

10    Material items of income and expenditure  

The main material item in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement is: 

! In 2011-12, a material item charged to the Housing Revenue Account and then 
reversed out is the statutory payment to the Government of £205 million in 
respect of HRA self-financing. 

The Government has replaced the previous subsidy system, whereby the Council 
paid around £12.5 million in 2011-12 (about 54% of its rent income) to the 
Government, with a self-financing system under which the Council will keep all its 
rent income but would take on a debt calculated at £205 million on 28 March 
2012. This change benefits the Council in future years as the cost of servicing the 
debt is fixed at £7.2 million whereas the portion of the rents paid over was £12.5 
million in 2011/12 and would have been likely to increase in later years. 

This material item is shown as a separate line in the comprehensive income and 
expenditure core financial statement and in the Housing Revenue Account 
supplementary financial statement but is then reversed out and is also shown in 
the balance sheet as long term borrowing.  

11    Usable Reserves
          
         Movements in the Authority’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in 

Reserves Statement and notes 5 and 6. 

             
31 March 31 March 

2011 2012 
£     Note £ 

(1,425,916) Usable Capital Receipts Reserve (1,096,879)  
(3,189,504) Earmarked Reserve 6 (2,911,671)  

(589,850) Capital Grants Unapplied (622,022)  
(7,407,235) General Fund (7,374,077)  
(2,290,419) Housing Revenue Account (2,689,955)  

(14,902,924)       (14,694,604)
             

Page 77



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

39

Usable Capital Receipts Reserve 

             
2010-11 2011-12 

£       £ 
(1,700,335) Balance at 1 April (1,425,916)
(2,111,496) Capital receipts received (2,390,958)  

1,553,146 Capital receipts applied 1,842,402  
856,003 Payments to DCLG 829,758  
(42,856) Transfers to/ (from) reserves 47,835  

19,622 Deferred capital receipts 0

(1,425,916)   Balance at 31 March   (1,096,879)
             

Capital Grants Unapplied 

             
2010-11 2011-12 

£       £ 

(584,050) Planning Delivery Grant (584,050)  
(5,800) Council Tax - efficiency changes (5,800)  

0 Improvement East - Information Technology and 
energy  (31,894)  

0 Other (278)  

(589,850)   Balance at 31 March   (622,022)
             

Page 78



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

40

12     Unusable Reserves 

Movements in the Authority’s unusable reserves are detailed in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and detailed below. 

                
Restated Restated 
2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 

£ £      £ 

  (46,938,895) (14,610,365) Revaluation Reserve (14,920,498)  
  (414,925,848) (375,290,447) Capital Adjustment Account (164,563,237)  
  52,267,000  31,592,000  Pensions Reserve 39,703,000

  (11,952) 40,856
Collection Fund Adjustment 
Account 42,132  

  (50,909) (60,111) Deferred Capital Receipts (46,334)  
  241,901  278,320  Accumulated Absences 228,486

(409,418,703)   (358,049,747)  Balance at 31 March   (139,556,451)
            

The Revaluation Reserve has been restated to reflect changes required for Heritage 
Assets as noted in the Council’s Accounting Policy.  Deferred capital receipts are 
amounts derived from the sales of assets that will be received in instalments over agreed 
periods of time. They arise principally from mortgages on sales of council houses, which 
form the main part of mortgages under long term debtors. 

Revaluation Reserve 

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases 
in the value of its property, plant and equipment. The balance is reduced when the gain 
is lost through a downward revaluation or impairment, when used in the provision of 
services and the gains are consumed through depreciation or, when the assets are 
disposed of and the gains realised. 

              
Restated Restated 31 March  
31 March 

2010
31 March 

2011 2012  
£ £ £  

  (2,557,426) (46,938,895)  Balance at beginning of year (14,610,365)

  (49,232,380) (6,984,581) Revaluation gains  (6,100,572)  
  3,982,352  4,105,071 Reversal of impairment  4,021,198  
  221,631  34,462,595 Revaluation impairment 33,784  

  633,351  440,673 
Release of revaluation gains on 
disposal 1,395,090  

  13,577  304,772 Depreciation adjustment 340,367  

  (46,938,895) (14,610,365)  Balance at 31 March  (14,920,498)
              

Page 79



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

41

Capital Adjustment Account 

The Capital adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for the 
financing of the acquisition or enhancement of assets. The account is debited with the 
cost of depreciation, impairment losses or reversals and amortisation which are charged 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, with reconciling postings from 
the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historic basis. The account is 
credited with amounts provided by the Council for the costs of acquisition and 
enhancement of assets. 

            
  31 March 31 March  
  2011 2012  
  £    Balance at 1 April   £ 
  (414,925,848) (375,290,447)
  Capital expenditure financed from;  
  (1,556,015)     Capital Receipts (1,842,402)  
  (1,301,299)     Revenue (943,385)  
  (1,402,726)     Grants and Reserves (1,283,305)  
  (3,275,871)     Major Repairs Allowance (3,334,144)  
  0     Internal financing (66,870)  
  0 HRA Self Financing 205,123,000  
  (440,673) Write out of revaluation gain on disposal (1,395,090)  
  2,878,272 Disposal of assets 5,042,218  
  47,127,180 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 11,682,951  
  (4,105,071) Reversal of impairment on revaluation (4,021,198)  

Write out of revenue expenditure funded 
from  

  1,711,604      capital under statute and loans repaid 1,765,435  

  (375,290,447)  Balance at 31 March   (164,563,237)
            

Pensions Reserve 

            
2010-11 2011-12 

£'000 £'000 

52,267 Balance at 1 April 31,592 

  (20,675) Movement in pension reserve 8,111   

31,592   Balance at 31 March 39,703 
            

Page 80



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

42

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the 
recognition of council tax income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as it falls due from council tax payers compared with the statutory 
arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund. 

          

2010-11 2011-12 
£ £ 

(11,952)     Balance at 1 April   40,856 

Amount by which council tax income credited 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  
Statement is different from council tax 
income
calculated for the year in accordance with  

52,808 statutory requirements 1,276 

40,856 Balance at 31 March  42,132
              

Accumulated Absences 

The Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account absorbs the differences 
that would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated 
absences earned but not taken in the year. The amounts accrued at the end of each year 
reflect untaken leave, time off in lieu and flexitime balances. Statutory arrangements 
require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or 
from the Account. 

          

2010-11 2011-12 
£ £ 

241,901     Balance at 1 April   278,320 

Amount by which officer remuneration 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
expenditure Statement on an accruals basis 
is different from remuneration chargeable in 
the year in accordance with statutory 
requirements36,419 (49,834) 

278,320 Balance at 31 March  228,486
             

Page 81



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

43

13     Operating Activities 

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items: 

               
2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 

£ £   £ 
    

(28,504,534) Housing Benefit grant (32,541,179) 
(17,806,724) Cash received for goods and services (15,192,942) 
(10,521,588) Housing rents (11,319,452) 

(6,827,785) Council tax receipts - Council share (6,934,204) 
(2,487,759) Other grants and contributions (5,311,275) 
(6,831,343) Council share of National Non-Domestic Rates 

from National pool 
(4,603,491)

(1,032,894) Revenue Support Grant (2,347,601) 
20,147  Collection Fund  -Council share  (473) (78,250,617)

11,672,371  Negative Housing Subsidy 12,526,981 
19,230,166  Housing Benefit  20,394,780 
16,845,984  Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 16,647,357 
26,985,139  Other operating cash payments 18,476,418 

1,711,604  Revenue funded from capital under statute 1,765,435 
1,506,629  Payments to the Capital Receipts Pool 729,406 70,540,377

    

3,959,413     (7,710,240)
               

14     Investing Activities 

The cash flows for investing activities include the following items: 

           
2010-11 2011-12  

£   £

  7,636,467  Purchase of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets 

5,944,835

  (9,717,848) Purchase of Short-term and long-term investments 5,809,010  

  (2,119,652) 
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and 
equipment (2,399,559)  

  (561,375) Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments (546,474)  
  10,562  Other receipts from investing activities 13,775  
           

(4,751,846)     8,821,587  
           

Page 82



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

44

Financing Activities 

           
2010-11 2011-12  

£   £

Cash receipts of short and long term borrowing   0  (205,123,000)  
  608,917  Other receipts from financing activities (1,292,922)  
  0  Other payments for financing activities 205,123,000  
           

608,917      (1,292,922)  
           

15     Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The balance of Cash and cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements: 

             
2010-11 2011-12 

£       £ 

183,516 (Increase) /decrease in cash 181,575  

183,516 Increase in net debt from cash flow 181,575  

(284,302) Net debt at 1 April (100,786)  

(100,786)   Net debt at 31 March    80,789 
           

Page 83



S
O

U
T

H
 C

A
M

B
R

ID
G

E
S

H
IR

E
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

4
5

16
   

  A
m

o
u

n
ts

 R
ep

o
rt

ed
 f

o
r 

R
es

o
u

rc
e 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 -
 2

01
1-

12
 

F
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

e
d

 3
1
st

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1
2

T
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

In
te

rn
a
l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

s
 a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

b
e
lo

w
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 b
a
s
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
n
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ile

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

e
t 

c
o
s
t 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 o

r 
d
e
fic

it
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
vi

s
io

n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t.

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il
it
y

N
o
rt

h
s
to

w
e

F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l
H

o
u
s
in

g
H

o
u
s
in

g
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d

a
n
d
 N

e
w

L
e
a
d
e
r

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
T
o
ta

l
P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
S

ta
ffi

n
g

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

(G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
)R

e
ve

n
u
e
 A

/c
C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

F
e
e
s
, 

c
h
a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
(7

0
4
,2

8
2
)

(2
,0

9
9
,0

3
6
)

(7
2
4
,4

9
3
)

(2
5
,7

4
7
,2

0
1
)

(1
,8

9
5
,2

3
0
)

(8
3
,1

5
4
)

0
 

(7
9
,5

6
7
)

(1
2
,5

6
6
)

(3
1
,3

4
5
,5

2
9
)

G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

g
ra

n
ts

(3
2
,3

2
0
,7

5
7
)

0
 

(1
0
3
,2

6
2
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

(7
0
,0

0
0
)

(4
1
,0

8
0
)

0
 

(3
2
,5

3
5
,0

9
9
)

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
(3

3
,0

2
5
,0

3
9
)

(2
,0

9
9
,0

3
6
)

(8
2
7
,7

5
5
)

(2
5
,7

4
7
,2

0
1
)

(1
,8

9
5
,2

3
0
)

(8
3
,1

5
4
)

(7
0
,0

0
0
)

(1
2
0
,6

4
7
)

(1
2
,5

6
6
)

(6
3
,8

8
0
,6

2
8
)

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

2
3
1
,7

4
1
 

1
1
,3

4
1
 

0
 

1
,3

4
0
,0

4
2
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
,5

8
3
,1

2
4
 

O
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

3
2
,5

9
4
,6

8
7
 

5
,0

6
0
,9

2
9
 

7
1
1
,5

4
2
 

1
6
,2

2
1
,6

1
1
 

2
8
4
,0

6
5
 

2
4
3
,0

8
7
 

2
4
6
,5

8
9
 

1
5
6
,7

6
1
 

6
9
,1

5
2
 

5
5
,5

8
8
,4

2
3
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s

3
,8

7
5
,6

7
7
 

2
,3

4
9
,2

6
7
 

1
,2

6
2
,5

9
6
 

3
,5

0
0
,8

7
4
 

3
,5

3
4
,7

7
5
 

1
,4

9
7
,3

4
3
 

1
4
6
,7

7
7
 

5
0
9
,6

3
4
 

8
2
,6

9
3
 

1
6
,7

5
9
,6

3
6
 

F
in

a
n
c
in

g
, 

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
, 

e
tc

.
1
,6

0
0
 

2
0
2
,7

4
7
 

8
1
,1

2
7
 

4
,2

2
6
,0

1
8
 

1
5
,3

5
8
 

4
,4

0
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

4
,5

3
1
,2

5
0
 

In
te

re
s
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

0
 

0
 

0
 

5
9
,1

1
9
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

5
9
,1

1
9
 

T
o
ta

l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
6
,7

0
3
,7

0
5
 

7
,6

2
4
,2

8
4
 

2
,0

5
5
,2

6
5
 

2
5
,3

4
7
,6

6
4
 

3
,8

3
4
,1

9
8
 

1
,7

4
4
,8

3
0
 

3
9
3
,3

6
6
 

6
6
6
,3

9
5
 

1
5
1
,8

4
5
 

7
8
,5

2
1
,5

5
2
 

N
e
t 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,6

7
8
,6

6
6
 

5
,5

2
5
,2

4
8
 

1
,2

2
7
,5

1
0
 

(3
9
9
,5

3
7
)

1
,9

3
8
,9

6
8
 

1
,6

6
1
,6

7
6
 

3
2
3
,3

6
6
 

5
4
5
,7

4
8
 

1
3
9
,2

7
9
 

1
4
,6

4
0
,9

2
4
 

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 b
a
s
is

 t
o
 N

e
t 

C
o
s
t 

o
f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t

C
o
s
t 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
 S

e
g
m

e
n
ta

l 
R

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 (

P
o
rt

fo
lio

) 
b
a
s
is

1
4
,6

4
0
,9

2
4
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
e
g
m

e
n
ts

 n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

A
m

o
u
n
ts

 n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t

o
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 H
o
ld

e
rs

 b
u
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

n
e
t 

c
o
s
t 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
m

o
u
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t

o
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 H
o
ld

e
rs

 b
u
t 

n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

n
e
t 

c
o
s
t 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

N
e
t 

c
o
s
t 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
4
,6

4
0
,9

2
4
 

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 b
a
s
is

 t
o
 t

o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t

P
o
rt

fo
lio

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 n

o
t 
in

N
o
t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 in

A
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f
N

e
t 

c
o
s
t 

o
f

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
H

R
A

 s
e
lf

T
o
ta

l
a
n
a
ly

s
is

a
n
a
ly

s
is

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

C
o
m

p
 I
 &

 E
re

c
h
a
rg

e
s

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
m

o
u
n
ts

fin
a
n
c
in

g
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

F
e
e
s
, 

c
h
a
rg

e
s
 &

 o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
(3

1
,3

4
5
,5

2
9
)

0
 

0
 

1
8
,2

0
9
 

(1
0
0
,4

3
7
)

(3
1
,4

2
7
,7

5
7
)

0
 

(3
1
,4

2
7
,7

5
7
)

S
u
rp

lu
s
 o

r 
d
e
fic

it
 o

n
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
s
 a

n
d
 j
o
in

t 
ve

n
tu

re
s

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

In
te

re
s
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
ve

s
tm

e
n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

(6
0
5
,5

9
3
)

(6
0
5
,5

9
3
)

In
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

(1
0
,8

6
8
,5

2
6
)

(1
0
,8

6
8
,5

2
6
)

G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

g
ra

n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s

(3
2
,5

3
5
,0

9
9
)

0
 

0
 

5
0
,4

7
0
 

(8
2
,5

4
9
)

(3
2
,5

6
7
,1

7
8
)

(7
,4

7
6
,7

8
1
)

(4
0
,0

4
3
,9

5
9
)

T
o
ta

l 
In

c
o
m

e
(6

3
,8

8
0
,6

2
8
)

0
 

0
 

6
8
,6

7
9
 

(1
8
2
,9

8
6
)

(6
3
,9

9
4
,9

3
5
)

(1
8
,9

5
0
,9

0
0
)

(8
2
,9

4
5
,8

3
5
)

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

1
,5

8
3
,1

2
4
 

0
 

(3
6
7
,8

3
4
)

(1
9
5
,9

3
7
)

1
5
,9

6
4
,6

4
8
 

1
6
,9

8
4
,0

0
1
 

8
9
8
,0

0
0
 

1
7
,8

8
2
,0

0
1
 

O
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

5
5
,5

8
8
,4

2
3
 

5
,8

6
1
 

2
1
9
,9

6
6
 

1
,0

3
2
,0

1
5
 

6
6
7
,3

3
6
 

5
7
,5

1
3
,6

0
1
 

0
 

5
7
,5

1
3
,6

0
1
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s

1
6
,7

5
9
,6

3
6
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

(1
6
,7

6
6
,1

0
7
)

(6
,4

7
1
)

0
 

(6
,4

7
1
)

F
in

a
n
c
in

g
, 

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
, 

e
tc

.
4
,5

3
1
,2

5
0
 

0
 

3
,6

8
2
,7

4
0
 

(8
9
1
,8

7
4
)

3
1
7
,1

0
9
 

7
,6

3
9
,2

2
5
 

0
 

2
0
5
,1

2
3
,0

0
0
 

2
1
2
,7

6
2
,2

2
5
 

In
te

re
s
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

5
9
,1

1
9
 

0
 

0
 

(5
9
,1

1
9
)

0
 

0
 

5
9
,1

1
9
 

5
9
,1

1
9
 

P
re

c
e
p
ts

 &
 l
e
vi

e
s

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

4
,0

7
2
,4

0
4
 

4
,0

7
2
,4

0
4
 

P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

ts
 p

o
o
l

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

8
2
9
,7

5
8
 

8
2
9
,7

5
8
 

G
a
in

 o
r 

lo
s
s
 o

n
 d

is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
n
o
n
-c

u
rr

e
n
t 

a
s
s
e
ts

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
,3

6
3
,1

0
7
 

2
,3

6
3
,1

0
7
 

T
o
ta

l 
o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

7
8
,5

2
1
,5

5
2
 

5
,8

6
1
 

3
,5

3
4
,8

7
2
 

(1
1
4
,9

1
5
)

1
8
2
,9

8
6
 

8
2
,1

3
0
,3

5
6
 

8
,2

2
2
,3

8
8
 

2
0
5
,1

2
3
,0

0
0
 

2
9
5
,4

7
5
,7

4
4
 

S
u
rp

lu
s
 o

r 
d
e
fic

it
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
vi

s
io

n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
4
,6

4
0
,9

2
4
 

5
,8

6
1
 

3
,5

3
4
,8

7
2
 

(4
6
,2

3
6
)

0
 

1
8
,1

3
5
,4

2
1
 

(1
0
,7

2
8
,5

1
2
)

2
0
5
,1

2
3
,0

0
0
 

2
1
2
,5

2
9
,9

0
9

Page 84



S
O

U
T

H
 C

A
M

B
R

ID
G

E
S

H
IR

E
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

4
6

A
m

o
u

n
ts

 R
ep

o
rt

ed
 f

o
r 

R
es

o
u

rc
e 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 -
 2

01
0-

11
 

F
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

e
d

 3
1
st

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1
1

T
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

In
te

rn
a
l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

s
 a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

b
e
lo

w
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 b
a
s
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
n
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ile

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

e
t 

c
o
s
t 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 o

r 
d
e
fic

it
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
vi

s
io

n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t.

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il
it
y

N
o
rt

h
s
to

w
e

F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l
H

o
u
s
in

g
H

o
u
s
in

g
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d

a
n
d
 N

e
w

L
e
a
d
e
r

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
T
o
ta

l
P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
S

ta
ffi

n
g

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

(G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
)R

e
ve

n
u
e
 A

/c
C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

F
e
e
s
, 

c
h
a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
(8

4
0
,2

5
1
)

(1
,7

0
4
,1

5
0
)

(7
9
4
,7

6
3
)

(2
4
,1

7
7
,1

0
4
)

(1
,7

5
8
,5

9
9
)

(7
8
4
,5

2
8
)

0
 

(1
1
9
,2

2
9
)

0
 

(3
0
,1

7
8
,6

2
4
)

G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

g
ra

n
ts

(3
0
,2

0
3
,2

0
0
)

0
 

(6
9
,2

9
0
)

0
 

(7
6
,6

6
6
)

(1
6
,8

3
5
)

(2
3
,6

1
8
)

(6
0
,2

7
9
)

0
 

(3
0
,4

4
9
,8

8
8
)

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
(3

1
,0

4
3
,4

5
1
)

(1
,7

0
4
,1

5
0
)

(8
6
4
,0

5
3
)

(2
4
,1

7
7
,1

0
4
)

(1
,8

3
5
,2

6
5
)

(8
0
1
,3

6
3
)

(2
3
,6

1
8
)

(1
7
9
,5

0
8
)

0
 

(6
0
,6

2
8
,5

1
2
)

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

2
9
9
,8

3
8
 

1
0
,9

2
1
 

0
 

1
,3

3
9
,4

7
5
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
,6

5
0
,2

3
4
 

O
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

3
0
,4

1
0
,0

8
4
 

4
,9

4
9
,6

1
0
 

6
4
5
,9

4
9
 

1
5
,1

1
3
,0

4
8
 

1
,1

6
6
,9

2
8
 

3
5
3
,5

7
6
 

2
2
4
,7

8
4
 

1
6
0
,5

5
0
 

5
0
,2

7
4
 

5
3
,0

7
4
,8

0
3
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s

3
,8

3
5
,5

4
8
 

2
,2

6
2
,1

7
4
 

1
,2

9
6
,1

6
9
 

3
,6

0
6
,7

8
6
 

3
,2

6
7
,9

2
7
 

1
,9

0
0
,6

8
2
 

1
5
5
,0

4
7
 

5
9
5
,0

4
9
 

6
4
,3

8
3
 

1
6
,9

8
3
,7

6
5
 

F
in

a
n
c
in

g
, 

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
, 

e
tc

.
1
,6

0
0
 

1
6
6
,3

9
4
 

7
0
,5

9
5
 

4
,5

7
3
,4

7
0
 

6
3
,4

7
4
 

4
2
,8

2
7
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

4
,9

1
8
,3

6
0
 

T
o
ta

l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
4
,5

4
7
,0

7
0
 

7
,3

8
9
,0

9
9
 

2
,0

1
2
,7

1
3
 

2
4
,6

3
2
,7

7
9
 

4
,4

9
8
,3

2
9
 

2
,2

9
7
,0

8
5
 

3
7
9
,8

3
1
 

7
5
5
,5

9
9
 

1
1
4
,6

5
7
 

7
6
,6

2
7
,1

6
2
 

N
e
t 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,5

0
3
,6

1
9
 

5
,6

8
4
,9

4
9
 

1
,1

4
8
,6

6
0
 

4
5
5
,6

7
5
 

2
,6

6
3
,0

6
4
 

1
,4

9
5
,7

2
2
 

3
5
6
,2

1
3
 

5
7
6
,0

9
1
 

1
1
4
,6

5
7
 

1
5
,9

9
8
,6

5
0
 

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 b
a
s
is

 t
o
 N

e
t 

C
o
s
t 

o
f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t

C
o
s
t 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
 S

e
g
m

e
n
ta

l 
R

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 (

P
o
rt

fo
lio

) 
b
a
s
is

1
5
,9

9
8
,6

5
0
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
e
g
m

e
n
ts

 n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

3
0
,3

5
9
 

A
m

o
u
n
ts

 n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t

o
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 H
o
ld

e
rs

 b
u
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

n
e
t 

c
o
s
t 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

2
9
,0

6
4
,5

4
2
 

A
m

o
u
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t

o
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 H
o
ld

e
rs

 b
u
t 

n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

n
e
t 

c
o
s

t 
o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

(6
8
7
,0

3
2
)

N
e
t 

c
o
s
t 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

4
4
,4

0
6
,5

1
9
 

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 b
a
s
is

 t
o
 t

o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t

P
o
rt

fo
lio

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 n

o
t 
in

N
o
t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 in

A
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f
N

e
t 

c
o
s
t 

o
f

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
T
o
ta

l
a
n
a
ly

s
is

a
n
a
ly

s
is

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

C
o
m

p
 I
 &

 E
re

c
h
a
rg

e
s

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
m

o
u
n
ts

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

F
e
e
s
, 

c
h
a
rg

e
s
 &

 o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
(3

0
,1

7
8
,6

2
4
)

0
 

0
 

1
,0

0
3
,1

1
9
 

(4
3
,1

0
6
)

(2
9
,2

1
8
,6

1
1
)

0
 

(2
9
,2

1
8
,6

1
1
)

S
u
rp

lu
s
 o

r 
d
e
fic

it
 o

n
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
s
 a

n
d
 j
o
in

t 
ve

n
tu

re
s

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

In
te

re
s
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
ve

s
tm

e
n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

(5
6
1
,1

4
4
)

(5
6
1
,1

4
4
)

In
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

(1
0
,4

4
0
,0

5
6
)

(1
0
,4

4
0
,0

5
6
)

G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

g
ra

n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s

(3
0
,4

4
9
,8

8
8
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

(3
9
,0

2
8
)

(3
0
,4

8
8
,9

1
6
)

(7
,8

6
4
,2

3
7
)

(3
8
,3

5
3
,1

5
3
)

T
o
ta

l 
In

c
o
m

e
(6

0
,6

2
8
,5

1
2
)

0
 

0
 

1
,0

0
3
,1

1
9
 

(8
2
,1

3
4
)

(5
9
,7

0
7
,5

2
7
)

(1
8
,8

6
5
,4

3
7
)

(7
8
,5

7
2
,9

6
4
)

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

1
,6

5
0
,2

3
4
 

0
 

(1
0
,8

1
3
,5

8
1
)

0
 

1
5
,4

4
6
,3

1
1
 

6
,2

8
2
,9

6
4
 

1
,4

6
7
,0

0
0
 

7
,7

4
9
,9

6
4
 

O
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

5
3
,0

7
4
,8

0
3
 

3
0
,3

5
9
 

8
7
9
,9

7
5
 

(1
,6

9
0
,1

5
1
)

1
,2

4
5
,7

7
3
 

5
3
,5

4
0
,7

5
9
 

0
 

5
3
,5

4
0
,7

5
9
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s

1
6
,9

8
3
,7

6
5
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

(1
6
,9

8
3
,7

6
5
)

0
 

0
 

0
 

F
in

a
n
c
in

g
, 

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
, 

e
tc

.
4
,9

1
8
,3

6
0
 

0
 

3
8
,9

9
8
,1

4
8
 

0
 

3
7
3
,8

1
5
 

4
4
,2

9
0
,3

2
3
 

0
 

4
4
,2

9
0
,3

2
3
 

In
te

re
s
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

P
re

c
e
p
ts

 &
 l
e
vi

e
s

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
,7

9
6
,3

1
3
 

3
,7

9
6
,3

1
3
 

P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

ts
 p

o
o
l

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

8
5
6
,0

0
3
 

8
5
6
,0

0
3
 

G
a
in

 o
r 

lo
s
s
 o

n
 d

is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
n
o
n
-c

u
rr

e
n
t 

a
s
s
e
ts

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

7
9
1
,1

1
8
 

7
9
1
,1

1
8
 

T
o
ta

l 
o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

7
6
,6

2
7
,1

6
2
 

3
0
,3

5
9
 

2
9
,0

6
4
,5

4
2
 

(1
,6

9
0
,1

5
1
)

8
2
,1

3
4
 

1
0
4
,1

1
4
,0

4
6
 

6
,9

1
0
,4

3
4
 

1
1
1
,0

2
4
,4

8
0
 

S
u
rp

lu
s
 o

r 
d
e
fic

it
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
vi

s
io

n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
5
,9

9
8
,6

5
0
 

3
0
,3

5
9
 

2
9
,0

6
4
,5

4
2
 

(6
8
7
,0

3
2
)

0
 

4
4
,4

0
6
,5

1
9
 

(1
1
,9

5
5
,0

0
3
)

3
2
,4

5
1
,5

1
6
 

Page 85



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

47

17    Acquired and Discontinued Operations 

There are no transactions to report under these headings in 2011-12 or in 2010-11. 

18     Trading Operations 

           
2010-11 2011-12 

£ Direct Labour Organisation £ 
  Building Maintenance  
  2,786,394        Turnover 2,216,586  

  (27,875) (Surplus)/ Deficit 453  

  (2,964) Accounting adjustments for pensions and impairment (16,248)  

(30,839)   Total (Surplus)/ Deficit (15,795)
           

19     Members Allowances 

The total of Members’ allowances paid in the year was £368,943 (£369,121 in 
2010-11). Further information is available upon request from the Democratic 
Services Manager, South Cambridgeshire District Council, South Cambridgeshire 
Hall, Cambourne Business Park, Cambourne, Cambridge, CB23 6EA. 

Page 86



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

48

20     Officers’ Remuneration 

The number of employees, excluding Senior Officers shown below, whose 
remuneration was £50,000 or more were: 

          

Remuneration band 

2011-12
number of 
employees

2010-11
number of 
employees 

    

£50,000 - £54,999 3 6 

£55,000 - £59,999 2 3 

£60,000 - £64,999 1 4 

£65,000 – £69,999 2 3 

£70,000 - £74,999 2 1 

£75,000 – £79,999 0   1 

Remuneration for these purposes includes all sums paid to or receivable by an employee 
and sums due by way of expenses allowances (as far as these sums are chargeable to 
UK income tax) and the money value of any other benefits other than in cash. As 
remuneration includes redundancy and compensation for loss of office, the number of 
employees in each salary band can vary from year to year. Pension contributions 
payable by either the employee or employer are excluded.

Exit Packages 
Exit packages are those that have been agreed by the Authority, i.e. those packages for 
which the Authority is demonstrably committed and, have been paid in 2011-12 or are 
committed to be paid within 12 months. The costs included are those termination benefits 
defined and measured in accordance with the Code of Practice and include all relevant 
redundancy costs, pension contributions in respect of early retirement, ex gratia 
payments and other departure costs. 

Exit package cost 
band (including 

special payments) 

No. of compulsory 
redundancies

No. of other 
departures agreed 

Total cost of exit 
packages in each 

band

2010-11 2011-12 2010-11 2011-12 
2010-11

£
2011-12

£
            

£0 - £20,000 8 6 7 4 134,820 87,667
              
£20,001 - £40,000 4 7 0 0 113,948 202,317
              
£40,001- £80,000* 3 2 1 0 194,602 105,713
              
£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 1 0 133,335 0
              

Total 15 15 9 4 576,705 395,697

*Bands have been combined to ensure individual exit packages cannot be identified.

Page 87



S
O

U
T

H
 C

A
M

B
R

ID
G

E
S

H
IR

E
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

4
9

S
en

io
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
em

un
er

at
io

n 

In
 2

01
1-

12
 S

en
io

r 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 w

ho
se

 s
al

ar
y 

is
 le

ss
 th

an
 £

15
0,

00
0 

bu
t e

qu
al

 to
 o

r 
m

or
e 

th
an

 £
50

,0
00

 p
er

 y
ea

r 
w

er
e:

 

T
o

ta
l

T
o

ta
l

B
en

ef
it

s 
in

C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n
R

em
u

n
er

at
io

n
R

em
u

n
er

at
io

n
A

ct
u

al
R

et
u

rn
in

g
K

in
d

 (
e.

g
.

fo
r 

lo
ss

 o
f

ex
cl

u
d

in
g

E
m

p
lo

ye
rs

in
cl

u
d

in
g

S
al

ar
y

O
ff

ic
er

C
ar

 
o

ff
ic

e
p

en
si

o
n

 
P

en
si

o
n

p
en

si
o

n
 

P
ai

d
F

ee
s

A
llo

w
an

ce
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
1  

20
11

-1
2 

12
0,

00
0

13
,7

77
0

0
13

3,
77

7
26

,0
40

15
9,

81
7

20
10

-1
1 

61
,3

33
47

7
56

6
0

62
,3

76
13

,3
09

75
,6

86

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 2  

20
11

-1
2 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
20

10
-1

1 
51

,6
37

12
,6

96
2,

94
4

10
3,

38
6

17
0,

66
3

41
,1

54
21

1,
81

7
  

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 D
ir

ec
to

r 
3  

20
11

-1
2 

10
2,

83
5

0
0

0
10

2,
83

5
22

,3
15

12
5,

15
0

(O
p

er
at

io
n

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
20

10
-1

1 
10

4,
07

5
0

1,
36

2
0

10
5,

43
7

22
,5

84
12

8,
02

1

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

20
11

-1
2 

10
2,

83
5

30
0

0
0

10
3,

13
5

22
,3

15
12

5,
45

0
(C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
20

10
-1

1 
99

,3
19

0
56

0
99

,3
75

21
,5

52
12

0,
92

7

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
1

da
te

 o
f c

om
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
: 2

7 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

10
 

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 2

da
te

 o
f t

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
: 3

1 
A

ug
us

t 2
01

0 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

3
da

te
 o

f t
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

: 3
0 

A
pr

il 
20

12
 

Page 88



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

50

21       External Audit Costs 

Expenditure during the year on audit costs was: 

             
2010-11 Audit Commission 2011-12  

£       £

  120,000  Auditing Fee 114,000   
  (9,116) Rebate (9,120)  
  110,884  104,880   
  36,954  Certifying grant claims 34,374   
  147,838  139,254   
  21,491  Inspection fee 0   

169,329        139,254   
             

22    Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

The Council participates in the national Local Government Pension Scheme 
which is a funded defined benefit (final salary) scheme and which also provide 
historic unfunded discretionary benefits, both of which are administered by 
Cambridgeshire County Council. With the funded scheme, the Council (the 
employer) and employees both pay contributions into the pension fund with the 
employer’s contribution calculated every three years at a level intended to 
balance the scheme assets and liabilities over a twenty year period. 

The pension costs allocated to services and shown in the revenue accounts in 
the Net Cost of Services section is the present value of the cost of retirement 
benefits earned by employees during the year, which will eventually be paid out 
as pensions. These costs are reversed out in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement with the cash contributions payable to the pension fund during the 
year being included as shown: 

The net position of the pension fund is: 

31 March 31 March
2011 2012
£'000 £'000

64,135  Fair value of scheme assets 63,267 
(95,703) Present value of scheme liabilities (102,946)
(31,568) (39,679)

Less capital contribution to early retirement 
(293) included in scheme assets (147)

Liability for cost of early retirement shown separately 
269  under creditors in balance sheet 123 

(31,592)   Amount recognised in balance sheet (39,703)

Page 89



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

51

Transactions in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account 

2010-11 2011-12 
£'000 £'000 

Net cost of services 
2,396  Current service cost apportioned to services 2,162 

(10,983) Past service costs (non-distributed cost) 127 
99  Losses on curtailment (non-distributed cost) 10 

Net operating expenditure 
5,715  Interest cost 5,220 

(4,248) Expected return on assets (4,322)
(7,021)       3,197 

Transactions in the Movement in Reserves Statement 

2010-11 2011-12 
£'000 £'000 

7,021  Reversal of pension costs earned in year (3,197)
2,469  Employer's payment to pension fund 2,503 

114  Employer's payment for unfunded pensions 114 
9,604  (580)

15  Additional liability accrued for in 2009/10 0 
(236) Movement in creditor 0 

9,383        (580)

The movement in the fair value of scheme assets is: 

2010-11 2011-12 
£'000 £'000 
59,864    Opening balance as at 1 April 64,135 

4,248  * Expected return on assets 4,322 
772  Contributions by Members 739 

2,762  ** Contributions by Employer 2,650 
114  Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits 114 

4  Actuarial gain / (losses) (4,041)
(114) Unfunded benefits paid (114)

(3,515) Benefits paid (4,538)

64,135    Closing balance as at 31 March 63,267 

* The expected return on assets is based on the long-term future expected investment 
return for each asset class as at the beginning of the period. 
**The estimated contributions by the employer in 2012-13 are £2,351,000. In addition, 
the employer is contributing approximately £300,000 in 2012-13 to an internal reserve. 

Page 90



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

52

The movement on the present value of scheme liabilities is: 

2010-11 2011-12 
£'000 £'000 

(112,621)   Opening balance as at 1 April (95,703)
(2,396) Current service cost (2,162)
(5,715) Interest cost (5,220)

(772) Contributions by Members (739)
11,288  Actuarial gains / (losses) (3,637)
10,983  Past service (costs) / gains (127)

(99) Losses on curtailment (10)
114  Estimated unfunded benefits paid 114 

3,515  Estimated benefits paid 4,538 

(95,703)   Closing balance as at 31 March (102,946)

The analysis of the fair value of scheme assets is: 

31 March 2011 31 March 2012 
£'000 % £'000 % 

46,819  73% Equities 45,553  72% 
9,620  15% Bonds 8,857  14% 
5,131  8% Property 5,694  9% 
2,565  4% Cash 3,163  5% 

64,135  100% Total 63,267  100% 

The amounts recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement are: 

2010-11 2011-12 
£'000 £'000 

11,288  Actuarial (loss) / gain on scheme liabilities (3,637)
4  Actuarial loss /(gain) on scheme assets (4,041)

11,292      Actuarial gains /(losses) (7,678)

(28,183) Cumulative actuarial (losses) at year end (35,861)

Page 91



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

53

The principal assumptions used by the Actuary are: 

31 March 31 March 
2011 2012 

Financial assumptions 
2.8% Inflation/pensions increase rate 2.5% 
5.1% Salary increase rate *4.8% 

* (1% to 31 March 2015, 4.8% thereafter) 
6.8% Expected return on assets 5.6% 
5.5% Discount rate 4.8% 

Analysis of the expected return on assets 
7.5% Equities 6.3% 
4.9% Bonds 3.3% 
5.5% Property 4.4% 
4.6% Cash 3.5% 

Life expectancy at age 65 
Current pensioners 

21 years Males 21 years 
23.8
years Females 

23.8
years

Future pensioners 
22.9
years Males 

22.9
years

25.7
years Females 

25.7
years

Employees electing to take additional tax-free lump sum 
up to HMRC limits 

25% pre April 2008 service 25% 
63% pre April 2008 service 63% 

The five year scheme history as stated in the Actuary’s report before any accounting 
adjustments is:

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Fair value of scheme assets 54,650 44,858 59,864  64,135 63,267 
Present value of scheme liabilities (70,075) (68,964) (112,621) (95,703) (102,946)
Surplus/deficit (15,425) (24,106) (52,757) (31,568) (39,679)

Actuarial gains/ (losses) on asset 
obligation 
Experience gains/(losses) on assets (2,690) (14,294) 11,777  4 (4,041)
Experience (gains)/losses on liabilities 7,445 6,664 (39,637) 11,288 (3,637)

4,755 (7,630) (27,860) 11,292 (7,678)

Experience (gains)/ losses on liabilities (10.6%)     (9.7%) 35.2% (11.8%) 3.5%
as % of present value of scheme liabilities 

Page 92



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

54

23       Events after the Balance Sheet Date

The un-audited Statement of Accounts were authorised for issue by the 
Executive Director – Corporate Services on 28 June 2012. This is the date up 
to which events after the balance sheet date have been considered. 

24      Related Parties 

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – 
bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council 
or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these 
transactions allows the reader to assess the extent to which the Council might 
have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have 
secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the 
Council. 

Central Government is responsible for providing the statutory framework within 
which the Council operates and provides the majority of its funding in the form 
of grants and prescribes the terms of many transactions that the Council has 
with other parties, for example Collection Fund surplus or deficit. Details of 
transactions with government departments and Precepting authorities are set 
out in Notes 35 and 51. 

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and 
operating policies. The total of Members’ allowances paid in 2011-12 is shown 
in Note 19. 

In 2011-12, there were no reported material related party transactions that are 
not disclosed elsewhere in the accounts.  

25      Leases

There were no finance lease agreements during 2011-12.  

The Council has no operating leases. Payments of £1,142,472 in respect of 
vehicle contract hire were made in 2011-12 (£998,382 in 2010-11). 

The future minimum contract hire payments due under non-cancellable 
agreements in future years are: 

           
2010-11 2011-12 

£ £ 
  1,057,065  Not later than one year 1,017,523  
  3,382,456  Later than one year and not later than five years 3,009,864  
  575,271  Later than five years 39,723  

5,014,792      4,067,110 
           

Page 93



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

55

26    Intangible Assets 

The Authority accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that 
the software is not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for 
as part of the hardware item of Property, Plant and Equipment. The intangible 
assets include both purchased licences and software. 
All software is given a finite useful life based on assessments of the period that 
the software is expected to be of use to the Authority and is reviewed annually, 
the useful lives assigned to the software used by the Authority are: 

Cash Receipting System 5 years 
Financial Management System 5 years 
Corporate DIP System 5 years 
Other 5 years 

The carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised on a straight-line basis. 
The amortisation of £37,914 charged to revenue in 2011-12 was charged to the 
IT administration cost centre and then absorbed as an overhead across all the 
service headings in the Net Expenditure of Services. It is not possible to quantify 
exactly how much of the amortisation is attributable to each service heading. 

The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows: 

    

Intangible
Assets

Intangible
Assets

    2011-12   2010-11 
Balance at start of year 

Gross carrying amount 294,610 217,893 

accumulated amortisation (150,794) (100,148)

Net carrying amount at start of 
year 143,816 117,745 

Additions
Purchases 202,944 76,717 

Amortisation for the period (37,914) (50,646)

Net carrying amount at end of year 308,846   143,816 

Comprising:
Gross carrying amounts 497,554 294,610 
Accumulated depreciation (188,708) (150,794)

    308,846   143,816 
             

Page 94



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

56

27    Impairment Losses 

 Impairment is first charged to the Revaluation Reserve where an existing credit 
is available, the balance being recognised and charged to the surplus or deficit 
on the provision of services. Revaluation impairment incurred during the year 
and the reversal of prior year impairment previously recognised in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account, is identified below: 

                 
Property, Plant and Equipment 2011-12 2010-11 

£ £ 
Council dwellings (Housing Revenue Account and General Fund) 

Impairment 1,104,444 69,038,057
Charge to Revaluation Reserve  (371,490) (34,088,092)
Reversal (3,694,728) (3,900,899)

Other Land and Buildings 
Impairment 59,809 5,174
Charge to Revaluation Reserve  (2,661) (11,684)
Reversal (326,471) (163,636)

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 
Impairment 0 58,250
Reversal 0 0

  Infrastructure  
Impairment 11,890 0  

Surplus assets not held for sale 
Impairment 0 (1,676,833)
Charge to Revaluation Reserve  0 (657,929)
Reversal (40,580)  

                 

28    Property, Plant and Equipment, Surplus assets held for sale and 
Heritage Assets 

Depreciation starting in the year after acquisition is provided for on non-current 
assets by writing down the cost (or re-valued amount) less estimated residual 
value, on a straight-line basis to the appropriate revenue account over the 
following periods:  
Council dwellings – 16/45 years,  
Buildings other than dwellings – 10/51 years,  
Vehicles, plant and equipment – 7/10 years.  
No depreciation is charged on Heritage assets or freehold land in accordance 
with standard accounting policies. The depreciation charged on dwelling stock is 
reversed out at 31 March each year when the housing stock is re-valued so this 
charge has no impact on the fair value of the housing stock as recorded in the 
Balance Sheet.

Page 95



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

57

Property, Plant and Equipment for the financial year 2011-12 

Council 
dwellings

Other land 
and 

buildings

Vehicles, 
Plant and 

Equipment
Infrastructure 

assets

Surplus 
Assets held 
not for sale

Total 
Property 

Plant and 
Equipment

£ £ £ £ £ £

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2011 369,225,419 18,582,390 4,658,137 95,404 2,403,000 394,964,350

Additions 5,218,448 59,809 448,741 11,890 3,000 5,741,888

Revaluation increases / (decreases) 
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve (4,929,723) (30,993) 0 (11,890) 150 (4,972,456)

Revaluation increases / (decreases) 
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on 
the Provision of Services (732,953) (57,148) 0 0 0 (790,101)

Derecognition-disposals (3,142,465) (83,753) (10,000) 0 (1,806,000) (5,042,218)

Other movements in cost or valuation 0 0 0 0 0 0

At March 2012 365,638,726 18,470,305 5,096,878 95,404 600,150 389,901,463

Accumulated Depreciation and impairment

At 1 April 2011 0 (318,290) (2,355,434) (45,114) 0 (2,718,838)

Depreciation Charge (10,310,602) (205,615) (315,550) (11,279) 0 (10,843,046)

Depreciation written out to the 
Revaluation Reserve 337,706 0 0 0 0 337,706

Depreciation written out to the 
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 9,972,896 361,150 0 0 0 10,334,046

Impairment losses/ (reversals) 
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairment losses/ (reversals) 
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 0 0 0 0 0 0

Derecognition-disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other movements in Depreciation and 
Impairment 0 0 0 0 0 0

At March 2012 0 (162,755) (2,670,984) (56,393) 0 (2,890,132)

Net Book Value
At March 2011 369,225,419 18,264,100 2,302,703 50,290 2,403,000 392,245,512
At March 2012 365,638,726 18,307,550 2,425,894 39,011 600,150 387,011,331

Page 96



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

58

Property, Plant and Equipment for the financial year 2010-11 

Council 
dwellings

Other land 
and 

buildings

Vehicles, 
Plant and 

Equipment
Infrastructure 

assets

Surplus 
Assets held 
not for sale

Total property 
Plant and 

Equipment
£ £ £ £ £ £

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2010 438,696,550 18,669,064 3,260,847 95,404 1,587,500 462,309,365

Additions 6,000,615 243 1,538,790 0 0 7,539,648

Revaluation increases / (decreases) 
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve (38,315,218) 166,930 0 0 371,937 (37,776,351)

Revaluation increases / (decreases) 
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the 
Provision of Services (35,403,672) (11,684) (58,250) 0 (978,324) (36,451,930)

Derecognition-disposals (1,794,523) (242,163) (83,250) 0 (758,336) (2,878,272)

Other movements in cost or valuation 41,667 0 0 0 2,180,223 2,221,890

At March 2011 369,225,419 18,582,390 4,658,137 95,404 2,403,000 394,964,350

Accumulated Depreciation and impairment

At 1 April 2010 0 (124,164) (1,932,887) (33,835) 0 (2,090,886)

Depreciation Charge (9,965,153) (200,635) (422,547) (11,279) 0 (10,599,614)

Depreciation written out to the 
Revaluation Reserve 306,653 7,124 0 0 0 313,777

Depreciation written out to the 
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 9,658,500 0 0 0 0 9,658,500

Impairment losses/ (reversals) 
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 0 4,560 0 0 0 4,560

Impairment losses/ (reversals) 
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 0 (5,175) 0 0 0 (5,175)

Derecognition-disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other movements in Depreciation and 
Impairment 0 0 0 0 0 0

At March 2011 0 (318,290) (2,355,434) (45,114) 0 (2,718,838)

Net Book Value
At March 2010 438,696,550 18,544,900 1,327,960 61,569 1,587,500 460,218,479
At March 2011 369,225,419 18,264,100 2,302,703 50,290 2,403,000 392,245,512

Page 97



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

59

Surplus assets held for sale 

Assets held 
for sale 
2011-12

Assets held 
for sale 
2010-11

£ £

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 0 2,244,337

Inter-asset transfer 0 (2,244,337)

At March 0 0

Accumulated  impairment

At 1 April 0 0

Impairment losses/ (reversals) recognised 
in the Revaluation Reserve 0 0

Impairment losses/ (reversals) recognised 
in the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 0 0

At March 0 0

Net Book Value
At March 2011 0 2,244,337
At March 2012 0 0

Page 98



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

60

Heritage Assets 

Heritage assets are those assets that are intended to be held in trust for future 
generations because of their cultural, environmental or historical associations and 
include historical buildings, civic regalia and works of art. Heritage assets held include 
St Denys’ Church, East Hatley which is maintained by the Council and is included in 
the Council’s accounts at insurance valuation, and reviewed annually, in accordance 
with the Statement of Accounting Policies, other heritage assets held include civic 
regalia, Landbeach Tithe Barn, a woven wall hanging and two vases, these items not 
considered to be of material value. 

Heritage 
Assets 

2011-12

Heritage 
Assets 

2010-11

Heritage 
Assets 

2009-10

Heritage 
Assets 

2008-09

Heritage 
Assets 

2007-08
£ £ £ £ £

Valuation
At 1 April 609,429 580,409 552,770 526,448 506,200

Additions 0 0 0 0 0

Revaluation increases / (decreases) 
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 15,236 29,020 27,639 26,322 20,248

At March 624,665 609,429 580,409 552,770 526,448

Accumulated  impairment

At 1 April 0 0 0 0 0

Impairment losses/ (reversals) 
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 0 0 0 0 0

Impairment losses/ (reversals) 
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 0 0 0 0 0

At March 0 0 0 0 0

Net Book Value
At March 2011 609,429 580,409 552,770 526,448 506,200
At March 2012 624,665 609,429 580,409 552,770 526,448

Page 99



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

61

Revaluations

The Council carries out a programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and 
Equipment required to be measured at fair value is re-valued at least every five years. 

Valuations on the bases set out in the statement of accounting policies have been 
carried out for: 

a) Council dwellings and non-operational assets relating to the Housing 
Revenue Account as at 31 March 2010 by Mr Andrew Wilcox, MRICS, District 
Valuer, East of England; and reviewed by him as at 31 March 2012 and 

b) Other land and buildings and valued as at 31 March 2010 by Mr Gary 
Bradbury, MRICS, District Valuer, East of England, and reviewed as at 31 
March 2012 by Mr Andrew Wilcox, MRICS, District Valuer, East of England 

The Council is not aware of any events or circumstances which indicate that the 
amounts stated in the balance sheet for non-current assets may not be 
realisable, as at the balance sheet date. Council dwellings are valued on the 
prescribed basis set out in note 40. In the event that the dwellings are 
transferred to a housing association, then the valuation method for such a 
transfer is entirely different and produces a much lower valuation. 

An analysis of non-current assets is: 

31 March      31 March 
2011 2012 

(numbers)       (numbers)
    
          5,523  Council dwellings (HRA & GF)          5,479 
                 1  Office                 1 
                 1  Depot and workshop (leased)                 1 

   

0

Country Park, visitors centre and toilet block 
(99 year lease granted to Cambridge Sports 
Lake Trust Ltd at 31 March 2008) 0

0 Car parks: 0
  Histon and Melbourn - 99 year lease  
  Linton - 125 year lease granted in 2010-11  
  Sawston - 99 year lease granted in 2009-10  
   

30.23 acres   Land   30.23 acres

Page 100



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

62

Capital commitments as at 31 March 2012 were £0.1 million on Housing and £1.4 
million on General Fund, but these commitments are more than covered by 
usable housing capital receipts and from earmarked reserves in the General 
Fund.

29    Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table 
below together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital 
expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are 
used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the 
Council that has yet to be financed. 

Capital expenditure was financed as follows: 

             
2011-12 2010-11 

    £ £

Opening Cash overdrawn 1,794,926 0

Expenditure
Intangible assets 202,944 76,717
Non-current assets 5,741,889 7,539,648
Revenue funded from capital 
 under statute 1,765,435 1,711,605
Long term debtors 5,174 20,102

Financing 
Capital Receipts (1,847,576) (1,573,250)
Revenue (1,010,255) (1,301,299)
Grant and contributions (794,470) (1,097,307)
Major Repairs Allowance (3,334,144) (3,275,871)
Reserves (488,835) (305,419)

     
Closing cash overdrawn  2,035,088 1,794,926

             

Page 101



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

63

Legislation allows some items to be funded from capital resources that under normal 
accounting practice would be charged to surplus or deficit on the provision of 
Services; expenditure for this purpose is shown below. 

              
2011-12 2010-11 

    £ £

Balance as at 1 April 0 0

Improvement Grants 715,508 746,344

Other 1,049,927 965,261

Written out (1,765,435) (1,711,605)

Balance as at 31 March    0   0

              

30     Inventories 

             
31

March 
31

March  
  2011 2012  

£ £ 

  39,991  DSO - Recycling and refuse bins and sacks 38,258  
  1,948  Catering 1,502  
  4,078  Post 2,443  

46,017        42,203 
             

Page 102



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

64

31      Short Term Debtors 

             
31 March 31 March 

2011 2012
£ Debtors £

1,706,122 Government Departments - other 1,108,315
4,006,605 Government Departments - Business Rates 0

98,045 Council Tax - District Council share 109,161
337,628 Housing Rents 317,469
179,446 Cambridgeshire County Council 242,894

2,548,355 Sundry Debtors 4,041,978
        

8,876,201 5,819,817

Provision for Doubtful Debts 
(72,759) Council Tax (46,613)

(321,738) Housing (301,677)
(840,256) Sundry Debtors   (1,090,463)

(1,234,753)     (1,438,753)

7,641,448   Total Debtors   4,381,064
             

The credit risk associated with accounts payable to the Council is reflected in 
the provisions made in the accounts for doubtful debts the methodology 
applied being given in Note 36. 

Page 103



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

65

32     Short Term Creditors 

         
31 March 31 March 

2011 2012
£       £

  (577,162) Government Departments - other (679,761)
  0 Government Departments - Business Rates (2,214,765)
  (86,290) Council Tax -District Council share (1,607,960)
  (241,394) Housing Rents (237,108)
  (956,178) Cambridgeshire County Council (609,655)
  (38,174) Cambridgeshire Police Authority (38,969)
  (13,089) Cambridgeshire Fire Authority (13,333)
  (73,632) Cambridge City Council (65,998)
  (2,522,724) Sundry Creditors (2,275,461)
  (56,611) Provision (380,411)
  (1,246,999) ** Developers Contributions (938,051)

(5,812,253)   Total Creditors    (9,061,472)

             

Developer’s contributions 
**Developers’ contributions are monies received from developers under section 106 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 which contribute to the infrastructure costs 
for drainage and to community arts and development and are detailed below: 

Balance at 
31 March 

2011

Movement 
during 
year

Balance at 
31 March 

2012
£ £ £

Commuted Sums (81,989) 0 (81,989)
Partnership works on Awarded Watercourses (421,127) 101,543 (319,584)
Affordable Housing S106 (502,918) 166,673 (336,245)

Sustainability S106 Arbury Camps (68,908) 0 (68,908)
Public Art S106 Arbury Camps (153,324) 46,985 (106,339)
Community Development S106 (11,517) 0 (11,517)
Electoral Arrangements (7,216) 0 (7,216)
Waste Management 0 (6,253) (6,253)

(1,246,999) 308,948 (938,051)

Capital (1,006,034) 268,216 (737,818)
Revenue (240,965) 40,732 (200,233)

(1,246,999) 308,948 (938,051)

Capital

Revenue

Page 104



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

66

33   Provisions

Provisions included in the balance sheet consist of provisions for bad and 
doubtful debts which have been netted off debtors, and Accumulated 
Compensated Absences of £228,486 as shown in the Balance Sheet and Note12.

34    Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities as at the balance sheet date include: 

1. the Council has an equity share scheme for the elderly under which 
Council owns part shares in approximately 305 properties. The terms of 
the leases include an obligation for the Council to buy back the equity 
share upon surrender by the tenant or his/her executors. There are also 
other equity share schemes covering approximately 74 properties where a 
similar obligation exists. The Council would then look to resell the 
properties under the equity share schemes so that the in and out 
transactions would have had an approximately nil financial effect. As a 
result of the introduction of the pooling of capital receipts arrangements in 
local government from 1 April 2004, the Council may be exposed to a 
liability to pay 75% of the value of any capital receipts from the resale of 
these properties to Central Government. During 2010-11, 213 properties 
were transferred from the Housing revenue Account to the General Fund. 
Any potential liability relates to the remaining properties in the Housing 
Revenue Account and cannot be quantified at this time; 

2.  the Council has undertaken an equal pay audit; there might be claims for 
back-pay plus interest and legal costs together with additional pension and 
redundancy costs and possibly additional future payroll costs.  

Page 105



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

67

35 Grant Income 

The Council credited the following grants and contributions to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2011-12. 

              
2010-11 2011-12  

£ £
Credited to services  

Department of Social Security and Department of Communities and 
Local Government 

  (701,775) 
Housing Benefit Administration, Discretionary and 
Fraud (653,238)  

  Department of Communities and Local Government  
  (220,600) NNDR Cost of Collection Allowance (216,443)  
  (16,385) Habitat regulation 0  
  (36,050) Homelessness (5,258)  
  (1,622) Mortgage Rescue (1,500)  
  (9,183) Council tax /Business Rates (10,206)  
  (325,288) Improvement Grant (311,301)  

  Cambridgeshire County Council  

  (60,279) 
Building Safer Communities -Safer, Stronger 
Communities Fund (41,080)  

  (77,167) Supporting People (52,390)  
  0 LPSA Reward Grant (70,000)  

Cambridge Horizons and Department of Communities and Local 
Government  

  (631,537) Growth Agenda/ New Communities 0  

  Private Sector  
  (180,000) Housing Association Support (201,333)  
  0 S106 contributions (41,027)  

  (227,873) Contributions from other authorities (1,136,072)  

(2,487,759)        (2,739,848)  

Credited to Taxation and Non-specific Grant 
Income

  Department of Communities and Local Government  
  (991,974) Revenue Support Grant (1,422,952)  
  0 New Homes Bonus (924,649)  
  (40,920) Area Based Grant 0  

0 Council Tax Freeze Grant (173,355)  
0 Local Services Support  Grant (50,470)  
           

(1,032,894)        (2,571,426)  
           

Page 106



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

68

36    Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one 
entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. The Council 
has the following financial instruments: 

! financial liabilities: trade payables and long term borrowing 
! financial assets: loans and receivables comprising bank deposits, trade 
receivables, investments and long term mortgages 

For trade payables, bank deposits and trade receivables, being of short 
duration, and for long term mortgages, being at variable rates, and PWLB loan 
at fixed rates, the carrying value in the balance sheet is considered approximate 
to their fair value. 

For investments, which are mainly at fixed rates, fair value has not been 
calculated and the Code has not been complied with in this respect. 

Fair value is the amount determined by knowledgeable, willing parties in an 
arm’s length transaction. 

The Council has given interest free loans, repayable on the sale/transfer of 
charged properties, which have not been classified as financial instruments. 
These loans are included in the balance sheet as long term debtors’, the 
outstanding amount was £386,228 as at 31 March 2012 (£381,053 in 2010-11). 

The financial risks arising from financial instruments are: 

a) Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as 
credit exposures to the Council’s customers. Deposits are only made with banks 
and financial institutions which are included as counterparties in the Council’s 
Investment Strategy, which regards the successful identification, monitoring and 
control of risk to be the prime criteria. The Council has a policy of tiered 
maximum investments with the up-most limit not more than £5 million of its 
surplus balances to any one institution. 
With no historical experience of default, the exposure to credit risk on bank 
deposits and investments is not considered material. The main exposure to 
credit risk relates to housing rents where a provision for bad debts is made. 

Where sums are owed by the Council’s customers and contractual debtors the 
Council makes provision for doubtful debt based on an assessment of the risks 
for each type and the age of those debts, the Council does not generally extend 
credit beyond 21 days. 

b) Liquidity Risk

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year. The 
PWLB loans have maturities of between 25 and 45 years, interest being paid 
half yearly, a Repayment Reserve being used to manage the future repayment 
of principal. 

Page 107



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

69

c) Market Risk

The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate 
movements on its investments as most investments are at fixed rates. 
Movement in interest rates can have an impact on the Council’s interest receipts 
from investments; for example, a rise in interest rates would have the following 
effects: 

Investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Income and 
Expenditure Account will rise 
Investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall (but the carrying 
amount will not change) 

As most investments are at fixed rates, a sensitivity analysis for interest rate 
changes has not been carried out. 

The treasury management team has an active strategy for assessing interest 
rate exposure that feeds into the setting of the annual budget which is used to 
update the Council’s medium term financial strategy periodically during the year, 
this allows any adverse changes to be accommodated. 
Price risk and foreign exchange risk are not applicable. 

Page 108



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

70

37 Nature and extent of risks arising from Financial Instruments 

Credit risk arises from investments with banks and other financial institutions, as well 
as credit exposures to the Council’s customers. 

Investments 

The following shows the original principal sum invested at 31 March analysed by the 
nature of the financial institution and by maturity, these investments are fixed time and 
callable deposits where the deposits are redeemed for the same value as the amount 
invested. The deposits are with United Kingdom banks and building societies and, 
therefore, no provision is made for possible loss of principal. 

             
31 March 31 March 

2011 2012 
£      £ 

Local Authorities 
1,597,768 Clearing Banks 5,390,639 
2,000,263 Banks, other 2,502,463 

193 Money Market Funds 0 
Building Societies with assets: 

5,107,853    greater than £10,000 million 7,123,596 

1,044,846
   between £1,500 million and £5,000 
million 1,044,673 

110  Government Securities 110  
9,751,033  16,061,481  

Less: 
(231) Cash and cash equivalents (501,669) 

9,750,802    Total  15,559,812  

Principal Investments analysed by maturity 
3,550,690  2011/12 0 
2,000,000  2012/13 9,336,464  
2,000,000  2013/14 4,000,000  
2,000,000  2014/15 2,000,000  

110  Government Securities 110  
9,550,800  15,336,574  

200,002  Accrued interest 223,238  
9,750,802  15,559,812  

             

Page 109



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

71

38    Long Term Liabilities 

             
31 March 31 March 

2011 Note 2012 
£ £

0 Borrowing for HRA Self Financing (205,123,000)
(31,592,000) Liability related to defined benefit  22 (39,703,000)

   pension scheme 
(122,533) Deferred Liability -Pension (54,635)

(31,714,533)   Total   (39,757,635)

             

Long term borrowing 

Housing Revenue Account self-financing has given the Council an obligation to pay 
the Government a lump sum to ‘buy out’ of a negative housing subsidy position, the 
Council has obtained 41 individual loans with maturity dates between 2037 and 2057 
from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) to finance the one-off payment. The loans 
have been included in the Balance Sheet at fair value, administration charges have 
been charged to directly to the Housing Revenue Income and Expenditure Account. 
An analysis of the PWLB long term liability is provided below: 

      
Financial Instrument PWLB loan £,000' 

   
 Repayable in 25 years 5,000   
 Repayable within 30 years 50,000   
 Repayable within 35 years 50,000   
 Repayable within 40 years 50,000   
 Repayable within 45 years 50,123   
   

Total commitment 205,123 
        

Page 110



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

72

39   Non ring-fenced Government Grant

             
2010-11 2011-12 

£ Note £ 

  (991,974) Revenue Support Grant (1,422,952)  
  0 New Homes Bonus (924,649)  
  0 Council Tax Freeze Grant (173,355)  
  (40,920) Area Based Grant 0  
  0 Local Services Support Grant (50,470)  

(1,032,894)     9 (2,571,426) 
             

Page 111



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

73

Supplementary Financial 
Statements

! Housing Revenue Income and Expenditure 
Account

! Collection Fund 

Page 112



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

74

Housing Revenue Income and Expenditure Account 
This statement sets out details of the income and expenditure in relation to the provision 
of council dwellings. 

2010-11 2011-12
£ INCOME £

(21,893,430) Dwelling Rents(Gross) (23,547,577)
(348,589) Non-dwelling Rents(Gross) (368,338)

(1,938,463) Charges for Services and Facilities (1,886,473)
(25,802,388)

Contributions towards expenditure
(163,799)    General Fund (157,372)
(122,500)    Other sources 0 

(157,372)
(30,839) Transfer of DLO surplus Note 18 (15,795)

(24,497,620) Total Income (25,975,555)

EXPENDITURE
3,203,348 Repairs and Maintenance 3,234,540 

Supervision and Management
1,519,457    General 1,450,877 

945,732    Repairs and Maintenance 861,135 
2,451,338    Special Services 2,400,554 

90,478 Rent, Rates and Other Charges 93,614 
11,672,371 Payment to Government in to National Pool Note 45 12,526,981 
41,943,674 Depreciation and impairment of Fixed Assets Notes 42 & 43 6,856,764 

0 Self Financing Settlement Note 38 205,123,000 
17,794 Treasury Management Costs 99,400 
7,226 Increased/(Decreased) Provision for Bad or Doubtful Debt 29,696 

61,851,418 Total Expenditure 232,676,561 

37,353,798 Net Cost of Services as included in the whole authority 206,701,006 
  Income and Expenditure Account

HRA services share of Corporate and 
469,595   Democratic Core 518,628 

(2,428)   Mortgage Interest (2,064)

37,820,965 Net Cost of HRA Services 207,217,570 

351,461 Loss on sale of HRA non-current assets Note 5 2,750,120 
0 Interest payable on Self Financing Debt Note 8 59,119 

(13,499) Interest and investment income (16,145)
Pensions Interest Cost and Expected Return

316,291 on Pension Assets 182,698 
0 Capital grants and contributions Note 5 (101,716)

38,475,218 Deficit for the year on HRA services 210,091,646 

Page 113



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

75

Statement of Movement on the Housing Revenue Income and 
Expenditure Account 

Additional items required by statute and proper practices to be taken into account in 
determining the movement in the Housing Revenue Account balance; 

2010-11 2011-12
£ Note £

38,475,218  (Surplus)/deficit for the year on the HRA Income and 210,091,646  
     Expenditure Account
Amount by which officer remuneration on an accruals

2,674    basis is different from remuneration chargeable by statute 24,288  
(32,041,460) Impairment taken to Capital Adjustment Account 3,379,305  

(351,461) Loss on sale of HRA  assets (2,750,120)
0  Self Financing Settlement (205,123,000)

(300,552) HRA share of contributions to the Pensions Reserve (113,321)
(6,626,343) Transfer from Major Repairs Reserve (6,901,925)

Capital expenditure funded by the Housing 
1,297,599          Revenue Account 891,874  

0
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis 
under statute 5 101,716

455,675  Decrease/(increase) in Housing Revenue Account (399,537)
   balance for the year

(2,746,092) Housing Revenue Account balance brought forward (2,290,417)

(2,290,417) Housing Revenue Account balance carried forward (2,689,954)

Page 114



South Cambridgeshire District Council 

76

The Collection Fund 

This shows the transactions in relation to the collection of council tax and national non-
domestic rates. The account shows how the amounts collected have been distributed to 
Cambridgeshire County Council, Police and Fire Authorities, parish councils and to the 
District Council’s General Fund, and to the National Pool for non-domestic rates. 

                   
2010-11 2011-12

£ INCOME Note £ 

(79,773,962) Income from Council Tax (81,271,612)
Transfers from General Fund 

(6,038,279) Council Tax Benefits 49 (6,148,182)
(62,023,105) Income collectable from Business Ratepayers (62,940,593)

(147,835,346) (150,360,387)
EXPENDITURE 

Demands and Precepts 
Precepts

61,960,994 Cambridgeshire County Council 62,926,733 
10,027,015 Cambridgeshire Police Authority 10,183,299 

3,422,171 Cambridgeshire Fire Authority 3,475,510 
  76,585,542

Demands - District Council 
6,827,785 General Expenses 6,934,204 
3,655,380 Special Expenses - Parish Precepts 3,929,068 10,863,272

87,448,814
Contribution towards previous year's estimated 

Collection Fund Surplus 
57,110 Cambridgeshire County Council 38,596 

9,246 Cambridgeshire Police Authority 6,246 
3,163 Cambridgeshire Fire Authority 2,132 
9,700 District Council 6,530 53,504

Business Rate 
61,802,506 Payment to National Pool 62,724,150 

220,600 Cost of Collection 216,443 62,940,593
Bad and Doubtful Debts 

154,856 Write Offs 127,480 
110,458 Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts (202,758) (75,278)

148,260,984 150,367,633
425,638 Deficit/(Surplus) of income over expenditure 7,246
(97,686) Fund Balance at Beginning of year 327,952

327,952   Fund Balance at end of year     335,198

                   

Page 115



South Cambridgeshire District Council 

77

Collection Fund balance: 

Attribution of (surplus) / deficit carried forward: 

              
31 March 31 March 

2011 2012 
£ £ 

235,893 Cambridgeshire County Council 240,765 
38,174 Cambridgeshire Police Authority 38,969 
13,029 Cambridgeshire Fire Authority 13,332 
40,856 District Council 42,132 

327,952       335,198 

              

Page 116



South Cambridgeshire District Council 

78

Notes to Supplementary Statements 

! Notes to the Housing Revenue Income and 
Expenditure Account

! Notes to the Collection Fund

Page 117



South Cambridgeshire District Council 

79

Notes to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

40.  Housing stock 

The Housing Revenue Account includes all the expenditure and income associated 
with the following stock of Housing Revenue Account dwellings: 

Conversions/
As at transfers to Additions Disposals As at

31 March General Fund during during 31 March
2011 during year year year 2012

1 Bedroom 1,103  (25) 1 (3) 1,076 

2 Bedroom 2,315  (9) 1 (7) 2,300 

3 Bedroom 1,971  (3) 0 (4) 1,964 

4 or more 
Bedrooms 75  3 0 0  78 

5,464  (34) 2 (14) 5,418 

Disposals 
Right to buy 5  
Equity
Share 7  
Other 2  

14

The total balance sheet values of dwellings and other property and land within the HRA 
are;

             

31 March 2011 31 March 2012 
Asset value Depreciation Asset value Depreciation

£ £      £ £ 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment   

365,956,555  9,895,808  Council Dwellings (HRA only) 362,302,456  10,229,475  

4,484,000  6,406  Other land and Buildings 4,400,000  6,594  

  2,403,000  0  Surplus assets not held for sale 600,150  0    
                

372,843,555  9,902,214       367,302,606  10,236,069  
                 

Page 118



South Cambridgeshire District Council 

80

The dwellings are valued in accordance with Guidance on Stock Valuation for Resource 
Accounting issued by the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister. This requires the dwellings 
to be valued at open market value with vacant possession, which is then adjusted to 
reflect tenancies at less than open market rents by using an adjustment factor based on 
the ratio of local authority rents to open market rents for the relevant region. The 
adjustment factor for the eastern region is 39%.

The value of council dwellings (Housing Revenue Account and General Fund) at 31 
March 2012, based on vacant possession, was £937,534,631. 

41.  Capital expenditure, financing and receipts 

Capital expenditure and financing relating to the HRA during the financial year was: 

               
2010-11 2011-12 

£         £
Expenditure

  0  Acquisition of land 3,000   
  1,027,282  Acquisitions of existing dwellings 206,195   
  4,111,545  Improvement of housing stock 4,105,660   

5,138,827         4,314,855

Financing
  490,560  Capital receipts  
  3,275,871  Major Repairs Allowance 3,334,144   
  1,297,599  * Revenue 878,995   
  74,797  Grants and Contributions 101,716   

5,138,827         4,314,855
               

*In addition, £12,879 was spent relating to the HRA contribution to capital 
expenditure on the Council chamber. 

Capital receipts relating to the HRA during the financial year were: 

               
2010-11 2011-12 

£         £

  0  Sale of Land 72,424   
  Sale of dwellings  
  854,408  Right to Buy 734,243   
  1,233,045  Other 889,776   

2,087,453          1,696,443  
               

Page 119



South Cambridgeshire District Council 

81

42.  Depreciation 

In 2011-12, depreciation on buildings is based on the asset lives as assessed by the 
District Valuer. Land is not depreciated. 

The charge for depreciation within the HRA was: 

              
2010-11 2011-12 

£ £ 
Operational Assets 

0    Prior period adjustments/transfers 0  
9,902,214    In year 10,236,069  

0  Non Operational 0  

(9,902,214)
Depreciation adjustment on 
revaluation (10,236,069) 

0        0  
              

43.  Impairment 

Impairment is a reduction in the value of non-current assets. When this occurs 
through the clear consumption of economic benefit or through market value 
reduction, it has been identified and is written off against any revaluation gains in the 
Revaluation Reserve for that (group of) asset(s) until the gain is reduced to zero and 
then any balance is charged to Housing Revenue Income and Expenditure Account. 
In 2010-11 the total impairment charged to the Housing Revenue Account included 
impairment due to the reduction in the social housing adjustment from 46% to 39%. 

          
2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 

£ Operational assets £ £ 

  Impairment charged to Housing Revenue Income    
  31,063,136        and Expenditure Account (net) (3,379,305)   

  34,090,237  
Impairment charged to Revaluation 
Reserve 374,151    

(3,005,154)   
Non-operational assets 

  Impairment charged to Housing Revenue Income    
  978,324        and Expenditure Account 0    

  657,929  
Impairment charged to Revaluation 
Reserve 0    

0    

66,789,626        (3,005,154)
          

Page 120



South Cambridgeshire District Council 

82

          
2010-11 2011-12 

£ £ 
  Impairment charged to Housing Revenue Income    
  32,041,460        and Expenditure Account (net) (3,379,305)   
  34,748,166  Impairment charged to Revaluation Reserve 374,151    

66,789,626        (3,005,154)

Operational assets 
  66,418,229  Social housing factor adjustment 0   
  2,620,441  Impairment 573,320   
  69,038,670  573,320   
  (3,885,297) Impairment reversal (3,578,474)   
  65,153,373  (3,005,154)   

Non-operational assets 
  1,676,833  Impairment 0   
  1,676,833  0   
  (40,580) Impairment reversal 0   
  1,636,253  0   
              

44.  Major Repairs Reserve 

This reserve effectively shows how the Major Repairs Allowance element of housing 
subsidy, is used to finance capital expenditure relating to the HRA. 

         
2010-11 2011-12

£ £
0 Balance at 1 April  0 

  (9,902,214) Transfer to Capital Adjustment Account (10,236,069)  
  6,626,343  Amount transferred to Statement of Movement on the HRA balance 6,901,925   
  3,275,871  HRA Capital expenditure charged to Major Repairs Reserve 3,334,144   

0 Balance at 31 March  0 

         

Page 121



South Cambridgeshire District Council 

83

45. Housing subsidy 

The amount of negative housing subsidy payable to the Government from the HRA 
for the financial year consists of: 

          
2010-11 2011-12 

£ £ 

2,235,852 Allowance for management  2,271,138 
5,212,511 Allowance for maintenance 5,203,368 
3,275,871 Allowance for major repairs  3,334,144 

9,050 Other items 9,290 
10,733,284 10,817,940 

(22,404,227) Rent  (23,413,873)
(3,995) Interest on receipts (4,382)

(11,674,938) (12,600,315)

0
Allowance for interest on Self Financing 
debt payable in 2011-12 73,530 

2,567 Adjustment for previous year  (196)

(11,672,371)   Payable to the  Government   (12,526,981)
             

46. HRA share of contributions to or from the Pensions Reserve 

This contribution, shown in the Statement of Movement on the Housing Revenue 
Income and Expenditure Account, reverses out the pensions liabilities apportioned to 
net operating expenditure and adds back in the payments to the pension scheme so 
that the adoption of International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS 19) Employee 
Benefits has no effect on the deficit/surplus for the year.  

Page 122



South Cambridgeshire District Council 

84

47.  Rent arrears on dwellings 

          
As at  As at  

31 March 31 March 
2011 2012 

£ £ 

  £337,628 Arrears £317,470   

  1.46% Arrears as a percentage of gross rents collectable 1.24%   

  £270,000 Provision for uncollectable amounts £240,000   
          

Page 123



South Cambridgeshire District Council 

85

Notes to the Collection Fund Account 

48 General 

This account represents the transactions of the Collection Fund, which have been 
prepared on the accruals basis. 

49 Council tax 

The Council Tax is raised to finance local authority net expenditure which is not met 
from government grants, and there is one bill for each dwelling based on the 
valuation band in which the dwelling is placed. There is a discount scheme for 
dwellings with fewer than two liable persons, a benefit scheme for persons on low 
incomes and a reduction for people with disabilities. 

The Council Tax base for tax setting purposes is calculated as: 

Number of dwellings
adjusted for discount, Ratio to Band D

Band Valuation exemptions, etc. Band D equivalents
-A Upto £40,000 3.00 5/9 1.7
A Upto £40,000 1,946.20 6/9 1,297.5
B £40,001   - £52,000 5,622.00 7/9 4,372.7
C £52,001   - £68,000 17,575.15 8/9 15,622.4
D £68,001   - £88,000 10,616.45 9/9 10,616.5
E £88,001   - £120,000 9,785.75 11/9 11,960.4
F £120,001 - £160,000 6,631.60 13/9 9,579.0
G £160,001 - £320,000 3,749.75 15/9 6,249.6
H More than £320,000 329.75 18/9 659.5

56,259.65 60,359.0

Assumed rate of collection 99.5%

Tax base for tax setting purposes (number of 
  Band D equivalent dwellings) 60,057.2
Tax rate for a Band D property £1,456.09
Estimated income due £87,448,688

Actual income due
  Net of write offs and provisions £80,941,374
  Council Tax Benefit net of subsidy £6,148,182

limitation
£87,089,556

Difference in income due to variations in tax base (£359,132)
  and rate of collection

Page 124



South Cambridgeshire District Council 

86

50 Income from business rates 

The Council collects non-domestic rates for its area based on local rateable values 
multiplied by a uniform rate set by Central Government. The total non-domestic 
rateable value as at 31 March 2012 was £177,014,916 and the standard uniform 
rate was 43.3 pence in the £, and the small business uniform rate 42.6 pence in the 
£. The total amount, less certain reliefs and other deductions, is paid to a national 
pool managed by Central Government, which in turn pays back to authorities their 
share of the pool pro rata to Formula Grant. 

51 Collection Fund deficit 

The deficit relating to Council Tax transactions due to Cambridgeshire County 
Council, Cambridgeshire Police Authority and Cambridgeshire Fire Authority of 
£335,198 on the Collection Fund as at 31 March 2012 is included as a creditor in the 
Council’s Balance Sheet and will be distributed in subsequent financial years. 

Page 125



South Cambridgeshire District Council 

87

Glossary of Financial Terms and 
Abbreviations

Page 126



South Cambridgeshire District Council 

88

Accounting Period 

The period of time covered by the accounts, normally 12 months commencing on 1 April for local 
authorities. 

Accruals 

Sums included in the final accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to the accounting 
period but for which payment has not been made/received at the balance sheet date. 

Capital Charges 

A depreciation charges made to service revenue accounts based on the value of the assets they 
use.

Capital Expenditure 

Expenditure on new assets such as land, buildings, vehicles, plant or equipment, or on 
enhancements to existing assets which significantly prolong their useful life or increase their value. 

Capital Receipt 

Income received from the sale of capital assets such as council houses, land or other buildings. 

Contingent Liabilities 

Potential liabilities which are either dependent on a future event or cannot be reliably estimated. 

Creditors

Amounts owed by the Council at 31 March for goods or services rendered but not yet paid for. 

Current Assets 

Assets which can be expected to be consumed or realised during the next accounting period. 

Current Liabilities 

Amounts which will become due or could be called upon during the next accounting period. 

Debtors

Amounts owed to the Council which are collectable or outstanding at 31 March. 

Depreciation 

The estimated losses in value of an asset due to age, deterioration or obsolescence. 

Finance Lease 

A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset to the 
lessee. 

Page 127



South Cambridgeshire District Council 

89

Glossary of Financial Terms and Abbreviations (continued)

Non-current Asset 

Assets which can be expected to be of use or benefit to the Council in providing its service for 
more than one accounting period. 

Government Grant 

Payments by central government towards local authority expenditure. Grants may be specific, for 
example Housing Benefit subsidy, or general such as Revenue Support Grant. 

Impairment 

An asset is impaired when the amount at which an asset is recognised in the Balance Sheet is 
higher than the asset value. 

Operating Lease 

A lease under which the ownership of the asset remains with the lessor; for practical purposes it is 
equivalent to contract hiring. 

Precepting Authorities 

Those authorities which are not billing authorities, for example County Councils, Fire, Police, 
Parish and Town councils. 

Precepts

The levy made by precepting authorities on billing authorities, for example District Councils, 
requiring the billing authority to collect income from council tax payers on their behalf. 

Provisions

Monies set aside for liabilities which are likely to be incurred but where exact amounts or dates are 
uncertain. 

Reserves

Amounts set aside in the accounts for the purpose of meeting future expenditure. A distinction is 
drawn between reserves and provisions which are set up to meet known liabilities. 

Revenue Expenditure 

Spending on day to day items including employee’s pay, premises costs and supplies and 
services. 

Revenue Expenditure funded from capital under statute 
Capital expenditure for which there is no tangible asset, for example renovation grants. 

Revenue Support Grant 
The main grant paid by central government to a local authority towards the costs of its services. 

Page 128



South Cambridgeshire District Council 

90

Abbreviations used in the accounts 

CAA 
Capital Adjustment Account 

CIPFA 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

The Code 

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 

DLO

Direct Labour Organisation 

DSO

Direct Service Organisation 

HRA 

Housing Revenue Account 

IFRS

International Financial Reporting Standards 

IAS

International Accounting Standards 

MRA 

Major Repair Allowance 

NNDR 

National Non-Domestic Rates (Business Rates) 

RR 
Revaluation Reserve 

Page 129



Page 130

This page is left blank intentionally.



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Corporate Governance Committee 29 June 2012 
AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Corporate Services)  

 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

Purpose 
 
1. The purposes of this report are for Corporate Governance Committee to: 

(a) review the Council’s Risk Management Strategy and process and agree any 
changes considered necessary; and  

(b) invite the Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio Holder to perform the 
quarterly review and approval of the Strategic Risk Register.  

 
2. These are not key decisions, but they have been brought to this meeting because: 

(a) the Council, at its meeting on 26 April 2012, referred the Risk Management 
Strategy and Strategic Risk Register back to the Corporate Governance 
Committee for reconsideration; and  

(b) the Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio Holder has been designated as 
the lead executive Member for risk management, with responsibility for 
management of the strategic risks facing the Council.  

 
Recommendations 

 
3. That Corporate Governance Committee approves the revised Risk Management 

Strategy, as set out at Appendix C to the report. 
 

4. That the Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio Holder approves the Strategic Risk 
Register and Matrix, as set out at Appendices D and E to the report. 
 
Reasons for Recommendations 

 
5. The Risk Management Strategy represents appropriate application of risk 

management best practice to the Council’s strategy and process. 
 
6. The Strategic Risk Register and Matrix forms the record of corporate risks the Council 

currently faces in the delivery of services and the achievement of strategic aims, 
together with control measures to address / sources of assurance over the risks. 
 
Background  

 
Risk Management Strategy 

 
7. The Risk Management Strategy was first adopted in January 2004 and updated in 

September 2007, September 2008, February and March 2010, and March 2011.  
When the strategy was reviewed in September 2007, Cabinet and Corporate 
Governance Committee agreed that responsibility for risk management should rest 
with the latter; this was confirmed in September 2008.  In February 2010, recognising 
best practice that executive and governance roles should be carried out separately to 
ensure the effective exercise of risk management, Corporate Governance Committee 

Agenda Item 7Page 131



approved the reallocation of Member executive and governance roles regarding risk 
management between the Executive and Corporate Governance Committee: 

(a) agreement and ownership of the strategic risks facing the Council - the 
executive role - to the Executive, led by the appropriate portfolio holder; 

(b) approval of the risk management strategy; advice and assurance 
regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management - the 
governance role - to Corporate Governance Committee; 

(c) Corporate Governance Committee to receive quarterly, the strategic risk 
register, covering reports and other associated documents presented to the 
portfolio holder, together with the minutes of the portfolio holder meetings, to 
monitor that the strategic risk register has been properly considered by the 
portfolio holder; 

(d) Corporate Governance Committee to continue to receive an annual report on 
the risk management strategy and process, including how Executive 
Management Team (EMT) and the portfolio holder have performed the 
quarterly reviews of the Council’s strategic risk register, thus giving the 
Committee assurance over the process; 

(e) the reporting of the risk management strategy and strategic risk register once 
a year to Council. 

 
8. The changes resulted in the following procedural framework:  
 

 
 

 
SMT/ 
EMT 

 
 
Executive 

Corporate 
Governance 
Committee 

 
 
Council 

(a) review of the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the 
Council’s risk management 
strategy and process 

annually 
[February] 
 

 annually 
[March] 
 

 

(b) review and update of the 
Council’s strategic risk 
register 
 

quarterly 
[May, 
August, 
November, 
February] 

quarterly   

(c) monitoring the review of 
the Council’s strategic risk 
register 

  quarterly  

(d) reporting of the risk 
management strategy and 
strategic risk register  

   annually 
[April] 

 
9. When the Risk Management Strategy and process was revised in March 2011, 

Corporate Governance Committee agreed to receive the portfolio holder’s review and 
approval of the Strategic Risk Register at the September 2011 meeting and to 
consider whether future monitoring was required.  At that latter meeting, the 
committee agreed to monitor the portfolio holder’s review on an annual basis.   

 
10. At the meeting of the Council on 26 April 2012, following suggestions by a member of 

Corporate Governance Committee, the Leader withdrew a report on the Risk 
Management Strategy and the Council referred the strategy and the Strategic Risk 
Register back to Corporate Governance Committee for reconsideration.  Another 
Member subsequently made some comments and raised some further queries on the 
strategy.  The suggestions, comments and queries are considered in paragraph 12. 

 

Page 132



Strategic Risk Register 
 
11. The Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio Holder, as the designated lead 

executive Member for risk management, has responsibility for agreement and 
ownership of the strategic risks facing the Council and reviews the Strategic Risk 
Register quarterly.  As Cllr Hockney does not have a portfolio holder meeting this 
quarter, he will attend the meeting of Corporate Governance Committee so that the 
committee can invite him to review and approve the Strategic Risk Register. 

 
Considerations  

 
Risk Management Strategy 

 
12. The suggestions made by a member of Corporate Governance Committee and the 

comments made and queries raised by another Member are shown in Appendix A, 
together with management responses and proposed changes to the Risk 
Management Strategy.  Most of the suggestions, comments and queries have 
resulted in helpful clarifications and improvements to the strategy; however, there are 
three areas of suggestions where it is not proposed to change the strategy:  

(a) Suggestion: Amend the bullet points under paragraph 3.1 (b) to read:  
• the executive role … will be led by the Corporate Governance 

Committee; 
• the governance role … will be undertaken by the Finance and 

Staffing Portfolio Holder. 
Response: Risk management best practice is that the executive role should be 
undertaken by the Council's Executive - in this authority’s case Cabinet, led by 
the relevant portfolio holder - and that the governance role should be 
undertaken by the Council's committee responsible for overseeing governance 
arrangements - in this authority’s case Corporate Governance Committee.  
(An extract from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 
guidance on Responsibility for Risk Management is attached as Appendix B.) 
This was agreed by Corporate Governance Committee in February 2010, as 
mentioned in paragraph 7 above. 

(b) Suggestion: In paragraph 5.2.2, replace the Red / Amber / Green colour 
coding with an Increased / Unchanged / Improved notation (and so for all 
Red/Amber/Green comments).     
Response: Three areas of the Risk Management Strategy where colour was 
used previously have now been changed to black and white (the diagram 
under paragraph 4.1, Annex A and Annex F); however, the Strategic Risk 
Register is held in the Council's performance management system, CorVu, 
which uses Red/Amber/Green for performance measures and therefore for 
risks, where the colour coding shows where risks have worsened, stayed the 
same or improved.  This is a case where colour has an important purpose and 
needs to be retained. 

(c) Suggestion: In Annex H, amend the roles of Corporate Governance 
Committee and the Finance & Staffing Portfolio Holder as follows: 
• (Corporate Governance Committee) Reviews and approves the Risk 

Management Strategy and process annually at each meeting, 
updating them if necessary. 

• An This annual review will include considering the adequacy of the 
quarterly reviews of the Strategic Risk Register by the Finance & 
Staffing Portfolio Holder. 

• The Finance & Staffing Portfolio Holder reviews and approves the 
Strategic Risk Register quarterly. 

Page 133



Response: The separate executive and governance roles mean that 
Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for reviewing the Risk 
Management Strategy and process to ensure that it remains effective (the 
suggested wording about approving the strategy will be added), but this only 
needs to be done annually, not at each meeting; the relevant portfolio holder is 
responsible for reviewing and approving the Strategic Risk Register quarterly; 
and the committee has moved away from monitoring the portfolio holder's 
reviews quarterly, to now doing so as part of the annual review of the risk 
management strategy and process - agreed at Corporate Governance 
Committee on 30 September 2011, as mentioned in paragraph 9 above. 

 
13. The Risk Management Strategy is attached at Appendix C, with updates shown as 

highlighted text, to assist Members in seeing where proposed changes would be 
applied in the strategy.  The committee is invited to comment on whether it 
wishes to have proposed changes similarly highlighted for future revisions of 
the strategy. 
 
Strategic Risk Register 

 
14. In accordance with recommendations in Internal Audit’s recent Risk Maturity Review: 

(a) risks have been realigned to the new “Three ‘A’s”, i.e. to the relevant 2012/13 
Action(s);   

(b) control measures / sources of assurance that are not yet fully implemented or 
in place, are now shown under ‘Timescale to Progress’; however, some 
current control measures / sources of assurance have ongoing or future 
implications, so this is not always straightforward. 

 
15. Internal Audit also recommended that greater use be made of linking control 

measures / sources of assurance to performance indicators.  This will be 
implemented for the next review of the Strategic Risk Register.   

 
16. The Strategic Risk Register has been reviewed with the nominated risk owners and 

other members of Executive Management Team (EMT).  Changes proposed to risk 
descriptions, control measures / sources of assurance or timescales to progress are 
highlighted in Appendix D attached.  Particular risks to note are: 

(a) STR14, Employee Engagement and Development (previously 
Implementation of National Job Evaluation (JE) Scheme): The Council and 
trades unions signed the Single Status Agreement in May 2012; element (a) of 
the previous risk can therefore be removed from the Strategic Risk Register 
and is shown greyed out at the end of the risk register.     
Element (b) of the previous risk, regarding employee anxiety about Job 
Evaluation, has been reconsidered in terms of employee engagement and 
development, in the context of the Organisational Development Strategy.  
Assessments of Impact and Likelihood are that the risk comes below the risk 
tolerance line and it is therefore proposed that it be included in the Corporate 
Services service area risk register, rather than the Strategic Risk Register. 

(b) STR12, Supported Housing: With the additions to control measures / 
sources of assurance, it is proposed that the Impact score be reduced from 3 
(Medium) to 2 (Low); this would bring the risk below the Council’s risk 
tolerance line.  

(c) STR13, Potential risk once HRA reform is implemented: This risk was 
concerned with HRA self financing, leading up to the April 2012 
implementation.  £205million debt was successfully taken on, in March 2012.  
There is a viable Business Plan with its own separate risk register; Affordable 
Homes had already downgraded this risk on its service area risk register.  It is 

Page 134



therefore proposed that this risk be removed from the Strategic Risk Register 
and it is accordingly shown greyed out at the end of the risk register.   

 
17. The draft Strategic Risk Register CorVu report at Appendix C enables movement in 

strategic risk scores to be monitored, where Red / Amber / Green means:   
 

 for risks previously above the line 
 

for risks previously below the line 
Red:  • the score has increased • the score has increased to 

above the line 
Amber:  • the score has not changed, or 

has decreased but stays 
above the line 

• the score has increased but 
stays below the line 

Green:  • the score has decreased to 
below the line 

• the score has not changed, or 
has decreased  

 
18. The draft Strategic Risk Matrix, attached at Appendix E, shows risk Impact and 

Likelihood scores in diagrammatic format. 
 

Options 
 
19. Corporate Governance Committee could approve the proposed Risk Management 

Strategy (this is the recommended option).  Alternatively, the committee could 
suggest other improvements or enhancements to the Risk Management Strategy, risk 
management process or document formats.  

 
20. The Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio Holder could approve the Strategic 

Risk Register CorVu report and Matrix (this is the recommended option).  
Alternatively, the portfolio holder could: 

(a) add to, delete from, or make other changes to risks, in terms of either the title 
or detail of the risks or control measures / sources of assurance; 

(b) alter the assessment of risks, in terms of either their impact or likelihood. 
 

Implications 
 

21.  Financial, Legal, 
Staffing 

There are no immediate financial, legal or staffing implications 
resulting from this report.   
Some control measures in the Strategic Risk Register may have 
financial, legal or staffing implications; if so, these will be 
considered separately. 

Risk Management The Risk Management Strategy ensures the authority has an 
effective risk management process, reflecting the Council’s 
Aims, and providing appropriate ownership and assurance. 
Risk management is undertaken regularly in order to minimise 
the possibility of the Council being adversely affected should 
either an unforeseen risk arise or an assessed risk not be 
properly planned for.   

Equality and 
Diversity 

The Risk Management Strategy and process has no inherent 
equality and diversity implications; however, Equalities is 
included as a risk area on the Strategic Risk Register. 

Equality Impact No 

Page 135



Assessment 
completed 

A Partial Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) of the Risk 
Management Strategy was prepared with the help of the 
Equalities & Customer Services Assistant; the impacts have 
been provisionally assessed as neutral, with no issues arising.   

Climate Change The Risk Management Strategy and process has no inherent 
climate change implications; however, ‘Safeguarding the 
Council’s services against climate change’ and ‘Achieving a 
10% reduction in CO2 emissions’ are included as risks on the 
Strategic Risk Register. 

 
Consultations 

 
22. The previous review of the Risk Management Strategy took recommendations from 

Internal Audit’s risk maturity review into account.  EMT considered a proposed 
revised strategy in February 2012 and recommended that Corporate Governance 
Committee approve it, which the committee did in March 2012.  This review has 
considered further suggestions, comments and queries made by Members and 
incorporated them as appropriate into the strategy. 

 
23. Risk owners and members of EMT were consulted regarding the review of the 

Strategic Risk Register.  EMT considered the proposed updated risk register in May 
2012 and recommended that the Corporate and Customer Services Portfolio Holder 
approve it. 

 
24. There will be liaison with officers as appropriate regarding the implementation of 

decisions made by Corporate Governance Committee and the Corporate & Customer 
Services Portfolio Holder on this report. 

 
Consultation with Children and Young People 

 
25. There has been no consultation with children and young people regarding this report.  

 
Effect on Strategic Aims 
 

26. The Risk Management Strategy and the Strategic Risk Register relate to the 
Council’s commitment to listen to and engage with residents, parishes and 
businesses to ensure the Council delivers first class services and value for money: 

(a) they contribute to the Council’s corporate governance responsibilities;  
(b) they ensure that risks involved in the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan 

and in meeting its strategic Aims are identified and managed adequately and 
effectively. 

 
Conclusions / Summary 

 
27. Executive and governance roles are appropriately allocated between the Corporate & 

Customer Services Portfolio Holder, as the designated lead executive Member for 
risk management, and Corporate Governance Committee: 

(a) the committee retains the key role of ensuring that the Council’s Risk 
Management Strategy and process are adequate and effective;  

(b) the quarterly review of the Strategic Risk Register enables the Council to 
manage its strategic risks to an acceptable level. 

 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report:  

Internal Audit Risk Maturity Review 

Page 136



 
Contact Officer:  John Garnham – Principal Accountant (General Fund and Projects) 

Telephone: (01954) 713101 

Page 137



Page 138

This page is left blank intentionally.



Appendix A Suggestion, Comments and Queries from Members 
Suggestions / Comments / Queries Management responses Proposed changes in Strategy 
Amend 1.1 to read, “South Cambridgeshire 
District Council’s primary role is to fulfil its 
statutory obligations.” (i.e. remove wording 
that related to the previous Council vision 
and 3 A’s) 

The purpose of paragraph 1.1 is to set the 
strategy in the context of the Council not only 
fulfilling its statutory obligations, but also 
achieving its strategic objectives, i.e. the 3 
A's.  The strategy and risk registers have to 
relate to this wider context - I'll amend the 
paragraph by adding your wording at the 
beginning and explaining the strategic 
objectives more, including updating as 
necessary for the 2012/13 3 A's. 

The suggested wording has been added at 
the beginning of paragraph 1.1 and the rest 
of the paragraph has been amended to refer 
to the Council’s Long Term Vision. 
 
A new paragraph 1.2 has been added which 
refers to the three Strategic Aims, with 
associated Approaches and Actions. 
 
The first sentence of paragraph 1.3 
(previously paragraph 1.2) has been 
amended to, “The Council has a 
responsibility to consider risks involved in 
providing or enabling service delivery, both in 
fulfilment of its statutory obligations and in 
achieving its strategic aims.”   

1.1  My primary concern here is that the 
Council cannot alone achieve this objective: 
to make South Cambridgeshire the best 
place to live and work in the country … 
The Council is dependent on others and 
must work with them to achieve this.  By 
stating this as an objective the Council is 
setting itself up to fail.  It will certainly mean 
that 2.2 (e) ' ... enhance the Council’s 
reputation and public image.' is at risk.   
 
I would also question the validity of some of 
the language used:  'where residents have a 
superb quality of life in an exceptionally 
beautiful, rural and green environment' would 

Paragraph 1.1 is an opening statement, 
intended to mirror the Council’s 3A’s and set 
the overall context for the strategy.  This 
ensures that we don’t treat risk management 
as a bureaucratic exercise, but as an 
essential element of strategic and service 
planning and performance management.  As 
part of this, risks in risk registers are linked to 
relevant 3A’s and we’re in the process of 
linking performance indicators to risks to 
show that control measures over the risks 
are effective.   
 
We’re not saying that this strategy alone has 
to achieve this objective, nor that we can 

Paragraph 1.1 has been amended to refer to 
the Council’s Long Term Vision. 
 
New paragraph 1.2 has been added which 
refers to the three Strategic Aims, with 
associated Approaches and Actions. 
 
The first sentence of paragraph 1.3 
(previously 1.2) has been amended as,  
“The Council has a responsibility to consider 
risks involved in providing or enabling 
service delivery, both in fulfilment of its 
statutory obligations and in achieving its 
strategic aims.”   
 

P
age 139



Suggestions / Comments / Queries Management responses Proposed changes in Strategy 
probably not enhance the Council's 
reputation for equality when read by many of 
our less affluent residents on the housing 
waiting list or living in locations where 
planning matters and the enforcement 
thereof present what they view as a constant 
battle. Such a description will only serve to 
emphasise the division that exists between 
the 'haves' and the 'have nots' and will not 
encourage the engagement of the latter. 

achieve it alone – as you say, we depend on 
other authorities, agencies and partners to 
help us do so, as I think some of the 
Approaches and Actions under each Aim 
also suggest.  I’ll update the wording of 1.1 
to make sure it reflects the current 3A’s and 
explain the role of risk management more in 
1.2. 
 
What we’re saying in 2.2 (e) is that risk 
management includes consideration of risks 
to the Council’s reputation and image – 
again, I’ll make sure that the wording of 2.2 
explains this more. 

Paragraph 2.2 (e) has been amended as  
“Seek to improve the delivery of Council 
services and ensure that risks to the 
Council’s reputation and public image are 
considered.” 
 

Amend 2.2 (d) to read, “… by in managers 
responsible for the Council’s delivery of 
services.” 

2.2 (d) is setting out that risk management 
needs to be undertaken by managers - I'll 
amend the wording to more accurately reflect 
this. 

The wording has been amended to more 
accurately reflect that risk management 
needs to be undertaken by managers. 

Amend the bullet points under 3.1 (b) to 
read, 
• the executive role … will be led by the 
Finance & Staffing Portfolio Holder 
Corporate Governance Committee; 

• the governance role … will be 
undertaken by the Corporate 
Governance Committee Finance and 
Staffing Portfolio Holder. 

Risk management best practice is that the 
executive role should be undertaken by the 
Council's Executive - in our case Cabinet led 
by the relevant portfolio holder - and that the 
governance role should be undertaken by 
the Council's committee responsible for 
overseeing governance arrangements - in 
our case Corporate Governance Committee.  
This was agreed by Corporate Governance 
Committee in February 2010.  I'm not sure 
why you are suggesting that it should be the 
reverse - please could you explain ?   
(In passing, I'll be updating the strategy 
where necessary for changes to portfolio 
holders and officer post titles.) 

Strategy updated where necessary for 
changes to portfolio holder and officer post 
titles. 
 
No other changes are proposed. 

P
age 140



Suggestions / Comments / Queries Management responses Proposed changes in Strategy 
Enhance 3.1 (c) (d) and (e) as follows: 
(c) Adopt agreed [by whom?] standards of 
risk management that are monitored at 
corporate and service level and ensure 
that further action is taken where 
necessary. 

(d) Ensure [how?] that regular 
identification, assessment and 
management of significant risks is 
integral to all corporate and service 
planning. 

(e) Ensure [how?] that effective processes 
are in place to facilitate prompt remedial 
action on adverse events and their 
identification and reporting and to enable 
near misses to inform future action. 

3.1 (c) (d) and (e) set out the principles; the 
details of "by whom" and "how" are given in 
the sections that follow. 

No changes are necessary. 

In 5.2.2 what does the text shading mean?  It 
makes the text hard to read; even harder 
printed b/w. 
 
I don't see how a dotted line (- - - - - - -) 
showing the Council’s risk tolerance line can 
be the case for each risk? 

The shading was explained in the covering 
reports that went to Corporate Governance 
Committee and Council, that it highlights text 
where updates were proposed - I'll see if I 
can find a different way of doing this.   
Your point about the tolerance line not being 
possible for each risk is well made - it shows 
that the person drafting the document is 
sometimes too close to it and can miss the 
obvious - I'll remove the bullet point (and 
also under 5.2.7). 

The shading was introduced to assist 
management and Members in seeing where 
proposed changes would be applied in the 
strategy.  The Committee will be invited to 
comment on whether it wishes to retain the 
shading. 
 
The bullet points about the risk tolerance line 
have been removed. 

In 5.2.2, replace the Red / Amber / Green 
colour coding with an Increased / 
Unchanged / Improved notation (and so for 
all RAG comments below). 

The Strategic Risk Register is held in the 
Council's performance management system, 
CorVu.  CorVu uses Red/Amber/Green for 
performance measures and therefore for 
risks, where the R/A/G shows where risks 
have worsened, stayed the same or 

Having reviewed the display of risk scores 
against colour coding, no improvements 
were identified and no changes are 
proposed. 

P
age 141



Suggestions / Comments / Queries Management responses Proposed changes in Strategy 
improved.  Corporate Governance 
Committee "agreed that wherever possible 
agendas should not be printed in colour ... 
for reasons of cost" and I wholeheartedly 
concur with that, but here is a case where 
colour is important - I'll see if there is a better 
way of displaying the risk scores against 
colour coding so that they are clearly visible. 

Correct 8.4.2  as follows, “…if the risk is 
significant (e.g. i.e. has a score of 12 or 
more, and especially if it is a new risk) 

I'll change the e.g. to i.e. e.g. has been changed to i.e. 

Add the following wording at the end of the 
third sentence in 10.1, “… to their line 
managers and/or through the relevant 
form.” 

Thank you for your suggested additional 
wording - I'll include it in the document that 
goes to Corporate Governance Committee. 

The additional wording has been added as 
suggested. 

In Annex A, all the colours could be dropped 
with no loss of information, particularly since 
the areas of the wedges do not appear to be 
meaningful, so a simple list would probably 
by better and clearer. 

A simple list is what it shall be.   Annex A now comprises a simple list. 

In Annex B, under ‘Strategic technological 
risks’, I assume a specific type of “Breach of 
confidentiality” is intended here.  Breaches in 
general are not `technological’. 
 
Update ‘Global warming’ to ‘Climate 
change’ 

Yes, we were thinking of potential breaches 
of confidentiality associated with technology 
(e.g. information sent to the wrong people, 
databases etc made available publicly, etc) - 
I'll make the wording more specific.   
I'll also update "Global warming" to "Climate 
change". 

“Breach of confidentiality” has been 
amended to “Breach of confidentiality 
associated with technology / systems”. 
“Breach of confidentiality” has been added 
under ‘Strategic customer/citizen risks’. 
“Global warming” has been changed to 
“Climate change”. 

In Annex E,  
• with regard to the new guideline, ‘Could 
happen in the next year’, with what 
probability? 

• with regard to the guideline, ‘More than 
90% likely to occur in the next 12 

What the guidelines are trying to do is give 
risk managers a variety of frameworks within 
which to assess Likelihood: probability of 
occurrence within circumstances; probability 
of occurrence within a timeframe of the next 
12 months; and the new shaded one of 

No changes are proposed. 

P
age 142



Suggestions / Comments / Queries Management responses Proposed changes in Strategy 
months’, how does this differ from the 
other stated guideline of ‘Is expected to 
occur in most circumstances (more than 
90%)’ ? 

proximity of occurrence (within one year, 2 
years, 3 years etc).  Risk managers find 
different frameworks useful, according to the 
risks they are considering. 

In Annex F, remove the colours. I'll remove the colours. Colours have been removed. 
In Annex H, amend the roles of Corporate 
Governance Committee and the Finance & 
Staffing Portfolio Holder as follows: 
 
• (Corporate Governance Committee) 
Reviews and approves the risk 
management strategy and process 
annually at each meeting, updating 
them if necessary. 

• An This annual review will include 
considering the adequacy of the 
quarterly reviews of the strategic risk 
register by the Finance & Staffing 
Portfolio Holder. 

• The Finance & Staffing Portfolio Holder 
reviews and approves the strategic risk 
register quarterly. 

 
 

Following on from 3.1 (b), the separate 
executive and governance roles mean that 
Corporate Governance Committee is 
responsible for reviewing the risk 
management strategy and process to ensure 
that it remains effective (I'll add your wording 
about approving the strategy), but this only 
needs to be done annually not at each 
meeting; the relevant portfolio holder is 
responsible for reviewing and approving the 
strategic risk register quarterly (and since the 
separation of roles in February 2010 as 
mentioned above, Corporate Governance 
Committee has moved away from monitoring 
the portfolio holder's reviews quarterly, to 
now doing so as part of the annual review of 
the risk management strategy and process - 
agreed at Corporate Governance Committee 
on 30 September 2011). 

The phrase “and approves” has been added 
as suggested. 
 
No other changes are proposed. 

 

P
age 143



P
age 144

T
his page is left blank intentionally.



Appendix B  Responsibility for Risk Management 
(Source: CIPFA TISonline [Technical Information Service online], Internal Audit, Audit Environment, Risk 
Management) 
 
Responsibility for risk management rests 
ultimately with the board (or equivalent) 
which should retain responsibility for the 
major risks the organisation faces and be 
accountable for their effective management. 
 

i.e. for SCDC, Cabinet, led by the designated 
portfolio holder. 

However, it will be necessary to assign 
responsibility for the day to day management 
of specific risks to the organisation's 
managers and staff.  All levels of managers 
and staff should understand that they are 
responsible for the management of risk in 
their particular area. 
 

 

The risk management policy should identify 
the major risks the organisation faces and 
how these are to be managed.  Across the 
public sector, most organisations now place 
responsibility for monitoring risk 
management with an audit committee or 
equivalent function. 
 
The audit committee’s responsibility is to 
obtain assurance that the risk management 
process is operating effectively; not to deliver 
the process itself.  There is sector specific 
guidance available on the role of audit 
committees in this regard.  See “Audit 
Committees: Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities (CIPFA, 2005)”. 
 

i.e. for SCDC, Corporate Governance 
Committee. 

A formal risk management process should 
also be adopted at senior management and 
departmental level (and section level in 
larger organisations). 
 
Each department should develop a risk 
register as part of this process and report on 
this at least annually to the senior 
management team. 
 
The senior management team should in turn 
report at least twice a year (and perhaps 
more frequently depending on severity of 
risk) to the audit committee or the board on 
the way that the organisation as a whole is 
managing its significant risks. 

i.e. for SCDC, the Strategic Risk Register 
and service area risk registers.   
 
 
 
At SCDC, these are reported twice a year. 
 
 
 
 
At SCDC, Strategic Risk Register reports go 
to EMT and the designated portfolio holder 
quarterly, with an annual report to Corporate 
Governance Committee on the Risk 
Management Strategy and process, 
including how the Strategic Risk Register 
has been reviewed by EMT and the portfolio 
holder. 

 

Page 145



Page 146

This page is left blank intentionally.



 

 

Appendix C 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 

Draft Risk Management Strategy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To be approved by Corporate Governance Committee, 29 June 2012

Page 147



 

 

Contents 
 
 
 
1. Purpose ....................................................................................................................................... 1 
2. Objectives ................................................................................................................................... 1 
3. Guiding principles ...................................................................................................................... 1 
4. Approach to risk management ................................................................................................ 2 
5. Identifying and recording risks ................................................................................................. 3 
6. Assessing and prioritising risks ............................................................................................... 4 
7. Managing risks ........................................................................................................................... 5 
8. Reviewing and reporting risks ................................................................................................. 6 
9. Communication and learning ................................................................................................... 9 
10. Organisational arrangements ................................................................................................ 10 
 
 
 
Annex A The scope of risk; areas to consider 
Annex B Some of the risks to consider when making strategic decisions 
Annex C Strategic Risk Register CorVu report template 
Annex D Service Area Risk Register template 
Annex E Likelihood Assessment guidelines 
Annex F Impact Assessment guidelines 
Annex G Prioritisation matrix template 
Annex H Chart summarising the Council’s arrangements for risk management 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 148



 

1 

1. Purpose 
 
1.1 South Cambridgeshire District Council’s primary role is to fulfil its statutory 

obligations.  The Council also has a Long Term Vision that: 
(a) South Cambridgeshire will continue to be the best place to live and work in the 

country, the district will demonstrate impressive and sustainable economic 
growth and its residents will have a superb quality of life in an exceptionally 
beautiful, rural and green environment; 

(b) The Council will be recognised as consistently innovative and a high performer 
with a track record of delivering value for money by focusing on the priorities, 
needs and aspirations of our residents, parishes and businesses. 

 
1.2 Supporting the Vision are three strategic Aims, which have associated Approaches 

and Actions: 
(a) We will listen to and engage with residents, parishes and businesses to ensure 

we deliver first class services and value for money; 
(b) We will work with partners to create and sustain opportunities for employment, 

enterprise, and world-leading innovation; 
(c) We will make sure that South Cambridgeshire continues to offer outstanding 

and sustainable quality of life for our residents. 
 
1.3 The Council has a responsibility to consider risks involved in providing or enabling 

service delivery, both in fulfilment of its statutory obligations and in achieving its 
strategic aims.  This strategy is a key part of strategic planning and an integral part of 
service planning and performance management.  It sets out the arrangements for the 
identification, assessment, management and review of risks that may adversely affect 
the Council’s services or the achievement of its aims and objectives. 

 
2. Objectives 
 
2.1 The Council’s concern is to manage risk effectively, eliminating or controlling risk to 

an acceptable level.  This is done by identification, assessment and management of 
potential risks, rather than reaction and remedy to past events. 

 
2.2 The objectives of the strategy are to: 

(a) Integrate risk management into the culture of the Council, including a process 
to identify and report upon existing and emerging risks to the Council. 

(b) Anticipate and respond to changing social, environmental, legislative, etc 
requirements. 

(c) Manage risks in accordance with best practice, so that they are eliminated or 
controlled to an acceptable level. 

(d) Raise awareness of the need for managers responsible for the Council’s 
delivery of services to undertake risk management. 

(e) Seek to improve the delivery of Council services and ensure that risks to the 
Council’s reputation and public image are considered.  

 
2.3 It will not always be feasible completely to eliminate risk.  Indeed, calculated risk-

taking may be required in certain circumstances to achieve innovative or creative 
solutions that will help to improve services to customers.  However, reckless or 
unplanned risk-taking would never be acceptable. 

 
3. Guiding principles 
 
3.1 To fulfil its risk management objectives, the Council will: 

Page 149



 

2 

(a) Develop a culture that involves the participation of all appropriate staff in risk 
management. 

(b) Secure the commitment of Members and management at all levels to promote 
risk management and provide leadership and direction: 
• the executive role - agreement and ownership of the Council’s strategic risk 

register, i.e. the strategic risks facing the Council - will be led by the 
Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio Holder;   

• the governance role - advice and assurance regarding the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s risk management strategy and process - will 
be undertaken by the Corporate Governance Committee. 

(c) Adopt agreed standards of risk management that are monitored at corporate 
and service level and ensure that further action is taken where necessary. 

(d) Ensure that regular identification, assessment and management of significant 
risks is integral to all corporate and service planning. 

(e) Ensure that effective processes are in place to facilitate prompt remedial action 
on adverse events and their identification and reporting and to enable near 
misses to inform future action. 

(f) Have effective communication to make sure everyone is sufficiently informed 
about risk management. 

(g) Provide information, training, guidance and advice, as appropriate, to meet 
these objectives. 

 
4. Approach to risk management 
 
4.1 The Council employs a simple four step process to manage its risks: 
 
   

 
 
 
 

   

      
   

 
 
 
 

   

      
   

 
 
 
 

   

 
4.2 These steps are outlined in the sections below. 

 
4.3 In accordance with best practice, risk management at the Council incorporates the 

identification and management of strategic risks, service area risks, project risks and 
partnership risks.  The process is thus embedded throughout the Council.   

 

 

Identifying &  
Recording 

Risks 

 

Communication 
& Learning 

 

Assessing & 
Prioritising 

Risks 

 
Managing 

Risks 

 
Reviewing & Reporting 

Risks 
 

Page 150



 

3 

5. Identifying and recording risks 
 
5.1 Identifying risks 
 
5.1.1 A risk is an event that may occur, which will have an impact on the Council’s 

services, or the achievement of its objectives and priorities.  This strategy requires 
the Council to identify strategic, service area (i.e. operational), project and 
partnership risks.   

 
5.1.2 Types of risks are listed in Annex A.  While not exhaustive, the list provides a 

starting point for identifying potential risks, including reputational risks, at both 
strategic and service area levels, as well as for projects and partnerships. 

 
5.1.3 Further illustrations of some of the risks that should be considered when taking 

strategic decisions are suggested in Annex B (again, the categories are neither 
prescriptive nor exhaustive). 

 
5.2 Recording risks 
 
5.2.1 Identified risks will be recorded in the relevant strategic or service area risk register, 

project or partnership risk register.  Risks will be described in terms of: the risk event 
(i.e. what could happen), the consequence that it might lead to for service(s)/ Aim(s)/ 
Action(s), and the possible outcome(s) that it could result in.   

 
5.2.2 The strategic risk register CorVu report template is attached at Annex C.  The 

strategic risk register will identify the top risks facing the Council from a corporate 
perspective and will note for each risk identified:   
• relevant Actions or Aims in the current Corporate Plan;   
• the person nominated as the responsible “Risk Owner”;  
• “Target” and “Actual” Risk Scores resulting from assessed Impact and 

Likelihood scores (see 6.1.1 below); 
• Control measures to address / sources of assurance over the risk; 
• for risks assessed ‘above the line’, the “Timescale to progress”, i.e. the Month/ 

Year by which it is planned that the risk will be mitigated to below the line.   
(Note: “Target” risk scores are only for CorVu to measure whether risk scores have 
increased, decreased, or stayed the same and apply a Red / Amber / Green colour 
coding accordingly – see 5.2.6 below.) 

 
5.2.3 Control measures may be defined as: 

• actions to reduce either the likelihood of the risk occurring, or the potential 
impact of it materialising; 

• control measures may be either already in place, or those additional ones 
considered necessary to manage the risk. 

 
5.2.4 Sources of assurance may be defined as:   

• evidence that control measures in place to mitigate a risk are operating 
effectively; 

• sources of assurance can include documents, reports, performance indicators 
or other methods of verification; 

• independent and substantiated evidence provides the strongest assurance. 
 

5.2.5 Control measures to address / sources of assurance over the risk, which are not yet 
in place, will be shown under “Timescale to Progress”.   

 

Page 151



 

4 

5.2.6 The CorVu report enables movement in strategic risk scores to be monitored, where 
Red / Amber / Green means:   

 
 for risks previously above the line 

 
for risks previously below the line 

Red:  • the score has increased • the score has increased to 
above the line 

Amber:  • the score has not changed, or 
has decreased but stays above 
the line 

• the score has increased but 
stays below the line 

Green:  • the score has decreased to 
below the line 

• the score has not changed, or 
has decreased  

 
5.2.7 The service area risk register template is attached at Annex D.  Service area risk 

registers will identify potential operational risks affecting the services for which they 
are responsible and will note for each risk identified:   
• relevant Actions or Aims in the current Corporate Plan;   
• Control measures to address / sources of assurance over the risk, already in 

place; 
• the assessed Impact and Likelihood scores and resulting Total scores (see 

6.1.1 below); 
• the Direction of Travel of the risk (i.e. whether the risk is “new” or the Impact 

and Likelihood assessments have stayed the same, reduced or increased); 
• the person nominated as the responsible “Risk Owner”;  
• the Review Frequency, i.e. the frequency at which the control measures/ 

sources of assurance are being reviewed; 
• Additional control measures / sources of assurance considered necessary to 

manage the risk; 
• Additional resources/cost required to manage the risk; 
• any Adjusted risk score resulting from re-evaluation of the Impact and 

Likelihood taking the additional control measures / sources of assurance into 
account; 

• for risks assessed ‘above the line’, the “Timescale to progress”, i.e. the Month/ 
Year by which it is planned that the risk will be mitigated to below the line.   

   
5.2.8 The Council will require projects (see section 8.2 below) to use the same format as 

the service area risk register template.  The Project Management Toolkit will be 
updated to reflect this and guidance will be made available within the Toolkit. 

 
5.2.9 The Council will encourage partnerships (see section 8.3 below) to use the same 

format as the service area risk register template; however, the Council acknowledges 
that a partnership may choose to use another format appropriate to its needs.  If a 
partnership chooses not to use the same format, the Council’s lead officer for that 
partnership should liaise with the Principal Accountant (General Fund and Projects) 
(PA(GFP)) for guidance on how to structure the risk register/log.  Guidance will also 
be made available in the Partnership Toolkit. 

 
6. Assessing and prioritising risks 
 
6.1 Assessing risks 
 
6.1.1 Each of the identified risks, at both strategic and service area levels and for projects 

and partnerships, will be assessed in terms of the likelihood of the risk occurring and 

Page 152



 

5 

the potential impact of it materialising, according to the guidelines in Annex E and 
Annex F, respectively. 

 
6.2 Prioritising risks 
 
6.2.1 A matrix of these assessments will be used to prioritise risks (see Annex G), 

enabling the Council to make decisions about their significance and prioritise action.  
The numbers in the matrix boxes represent Total risk scores, obtained by multiplying 
the Impact score by the Likelihood score.  The Total risk scores indicate the order of 
priority of assessed risks.  The risk registers will be re-scheduled in line with the order 
resulting from the prioritisation matrix.  (Where the same Total risk score can be 
obtained in more than one area of the matrix, the Impact score will take priority over 
the Likelihood score.) 

 
6.2.2 The dotted line running through the matrix (- - - - - - -) shows the Council’s risk 

tolerance line, between the level of risk the Council is prepared to accept without 
putting in place additional control measures / sources of assurance and the level at 
which risks are considered to require further action.   

 
6.2.3 The Council’s risk appetite is defined thus: “The Council will ensure that all risks 

identified are appropriately managed; however, it will require further attention to be 
given to: 
• risks having an Extreme or High impact, with a likelihood of Possible or higher; 

and   
• risks having a Medium impact, with a likelihood of Likely or higher.”   

 
6.2.4 Those assessed risks that fall ‘above the line’ are considered to require further action 

to reduce either the likelihood of the risk occurring or its impact if and when it does 
occur; additional control measures / sources of assurance will be identified and 
recorded for these risks (see 7.1 below). 

 
7. Managing risks 
 
7.1 Risks above the risk tolerance line (i.e. with a Total risk score of 12 or higher) require 

additional control measures / sources of assurance to be put in place to manage 
them, i.e.:   
• active management (including considering terminating the activity or project); 
• contingency plans – robust plans in place to detect any variation from 

expectations; and/or 
• mitigation to reduce likelihood (if cost effective). 

 
7.2 At the strategic level, risk owners (i.e. the officers named in the strategic risk register) 

will work with the PA(GFP) to develop and implement additional control measures / 
sources of assurance for managing risks assessed above the risk tolerance line.  
Where additional control measures / sources of assurance affect other Aims, 
Approaches and/or Actions, services, projects or partnerships, require additional 
resources or will incur additional costs, risk owners will discuss these with the 
managers/officers concerned. 

 
7.3 At the service area level, service managers will develop and implement additional 

control measures / sources of assurance for managing risks assessed above the risk 
tolerance line. Managers will re-evaluate the Impact and Likelihood scores taking the 
additional control measures / sources of assurance into account - any changes to the 
scores will be shown in the ‘Adjusted risk score’ column.  Where additional control 

Page 153



 

6 

measures / sources of assurance affect other Aims, Approaches and/or Actions, 
services, projects or partnerships, require additional resources or will incur additional 
costs, service managers will discuss these with the managers/officers concerned. 

 
7.4 Project and partnership risks will be managed in accordance with their governance 

arrangements. 
 
7.5 Risks below the risk tolerance line (i.e. with a Total risk score of 10 or lower) will be 

reassessed quarterly to ensure there is no change to the underlying risk or control 
measures / sources of assurance.   

 
7.5 When a risk is considered to be “managed”, i.e. it either no longer exists, or it is now 

an integral part of day to day management of the service area concerned, it will be 
removed from the relevant risk register by agreement at the appropriate review 
meeting (see 8.1.1 below). 

 
8. Reviewing and reporting risks 
 
8.1 Reviewing risks 
 
8.1.1 Reviews of risk registers will include consideration of any new risks.  Approval of risk 

registers will include both the acceptance of new risks and also the removal of risks 
considered to be “managed”.  

 
8.1.2 Risks are reviewed at service planning, corporate management teams, Executive 

Management Team (EMT), Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio Holder, project 
management and partnership meetings, as appropriate:   
• EMT will review the strategic risk register quarterly, including consideration of 

the impact and likelihood assessments and the control measures / sources of 
assurance in place to address risks, recommending its approval to the 
Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio Holder. 

• The Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio Holder will similarly review and 
approve the strategic risk register quarterly. 

• Directors will review and approve their service areas’ risk registers, collated to 
give a comprehensive set of risks coming under their responsibility and to 
enable moderation of impact and likelihood assessments, as part of the annual 
preparation of service plans and at quarterly intervals, as a minimum.  The 
Executive Director (Corporate Services) will similarly review and approve the 
collated risk registers for service areas reporting direct to him. 

• Project managers and partnership lead officers will facilitate the review and 
approval of the risk logs/registers for which they are responsible, at frequencies 
set out in their project or partnership plans. 

 
8.1.3 Should significant risks arise between reviews, they will be considered when they are 

identified, as necessary. 
 
8.2 Project risks 
 
8.2.1 Projects, such as those of a corporate or significant service nature, major ICT related 

projects, etc, are required to have their own risk registers, using the same format as 
the service area risk register template (see paragraph 5.2.7 above).  Project 
managers will review project risk registers in accordance with their project 
management arrangements.   

 

Page 154



 

7 

8.3 Partnership risks 
 
8.3.1 This strategy covers the way that the Council manages the risks facing it in the 

delivery of its services and the achievement of its objectives and priorities.  Where 
these are delivered in partnership with other organisations, the application of this 
strategy may extend outside the Council’s direct control.   

 
8.3.2 The Council must therefore identify all the partnerships in which it participates and 

have an understanding of its involvement and the implications of that involvement in 
each partnership.  Equally, each of the partnerships must have clearly set out 
objectives and an understanding of the Council’s role in the partnership.   

 
8.3.3 The Council must review its partnerships to identify those that are most strategic and 

important for it and the wider community.  For these significant partnerships, a two 
stage approach will be adopted by those managing them: 
(a) Identify and assess, from the Council’s perspective, the risks that face the 

Council from participating in the partnership.  This analysis should identify the 
controls and contingency plans (including an appropriate exit strategy) that are 
or should be in place.  This will be informed by the extent to which the 
partnership has effective controls and risk management procedures in place 
and whether it is able to provide the Council with the relevant assurances in 
this regard. 

(b) Champion effective risk and performance management procedures within the 
partnership (including the risk of fraud and corruption), so that the threats to the 
achievement of the partnership’s objectives are properly identified, assessed 
and managed. 

 
8.3.4 Partnership lead officers will review partnership risk registers in accordance with the 

partnerships’ governance arrangements.   
 

8.4 Links 
 

8.4.1 When reviewing the strategic risk register, EMT may cascade a strategic risk to an 
appropriate service area, project or partnership risk register, so that the relevant 
service manager, project manager or partnership lead officer can take a corporate 
lead on managing it.    

 
8.4.2 When reviewing their service area risk registers, service managers and directors / the 

Executive Director (Corporate Services), may escalate a service area risk for EMT to 
consider including in the strategic risk register, if the risk is significant (i.e. has a 
score of 12 or more, and especially if it is a new risk) or has a corporate nature.  The 
PA(GFP) may similarly escalate a risk if it, or a similar one, is being recorded in more 
than one service area risk register. 

 
8.4.3 The strategic risk register may also include project and partnership risks, if these are 

of a corporate or significant nature.  The project/ partnership risk registers will record 
the detailed risks and control measures / sources of assurance relating to the 
particular project/partnership.   

 
8.4.4 The PA(GFP) will facilitate these links.  The PA(GFP) will also keep a record of the 

risks included in the strategic risk register and the impact and likelihood assessments 
of them, so that the priority of identified strategic risks can be tracked over time. 

 

Page 155



 

8 

8.5 Reporting risks 
 
8.5.1 The PA(GFP) will report the draft strategic risk register to EMT quarterly, for review 

and recommendation to the Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio Holder.  
(Corporate Governance Committee will review the adequacy of this as part of its 
annual review of the risk management strategy and process, as described in 8.5.11 
below.  Corporate Governance Committee may report to full Council, if the 
Committee considers it necessary to ensure that strategic risks are appropriately 
managed.)   

 
8.5.2 Directors / the Executive Director (Corporate Services) will record service area risks 

above the line in the Overview section of their service plans published annually.  
They will update their service area risk registers and control measures / sources of 
assurance to the PA(GFP) quarterly, for EMT to consider in its quarterly review of the 
strategic risk register.   
 

8.5.3 In addition, EMT will review service area risk registers, collated by corporate 
area/direct reports, on a rolling programme throughout the year.  As part of this, EMT 
will consider whether risks scoring 12 or more should also be included in the strategic 
risk register.  (It will be assumed not, unless minuted otherwise.)   

 
8.5.4 A portfolio holder may request a briefing/update from relevant director(s) / the 

Executive Director (Corporate Services) on the service area risk register(s) 
appropriate to their portfolio. 
 

8.5.5 Project managers and partnership lead officers will report project and partnership risk 
registers in accordance with their project management/governance arrangements 
and reporting frequencies.  Project managers and partnership lead officers will 
update their risk registers, including control measures / sources of assurance, to the 
PA(GFP) quarterly, for EMT to consider in its quarterly review of the strategic risk 
register. 
 

8.5.6 Updates of risk registers will be provided to the Council’s insurance officer, to 
facilitate discussion of insurance cover and negotiation of any premium discounts or 
reductions with the Council’s insurers. 
 

8.5.7 If a risk materialises, it will be reported as follows: 
• strategic: a report to the next meeting of EMT by the risk owner, in conjunction 

with the PA(GFP), outlining the event that occurred, the consequence for the 
service, objective or priority and the outcome that resulted, together with 
recommendations for the application of any lessons to be learnt; 

• service area: a similar report to the service manager by the risk owner; 
• EMT or the service manager, as appropriate, will decide how the 

recommendations regarding lessons to be learnt will be implemented; 
• for project or partnership risks materialising: a similar report by the project 

manager or partnership lead officer; decisions about how recommendations 
regarding lessons to be learnt will be implemented will be taken in accordance 
with the project management or partnership governance arrangements. 

 
8.5.8 Reports to Members contain as standard a Risk Management Implications section.  

Report writers use this section to describe risks associated with the report’s 
proposals, possible consequences, the likelihood and potential impact of the risk 
occurring.  Where the risk is assessed above the Council’s tolerance line, report 
writers also outline the additional actions that will be taken to mitigate the risk and 
copy the report to the PA(GFP), so that the risk can be incorporated in the strategic 

Page 156



 

9 

risk register and/or relevant service area risk register, project risk log, or partnership 
risk log/register, as appropriate.  Members should be fully briefed on risks identified 
in the report. 
 

8.5.9 Reports to Members also include as standard, Options and Financial Implications 
sections.  Where reports relate to major options appraisal or capital investment 
decisions, report writers will also review relevant risk registers and logs, to identify 
any risks that need to be considered in the report.   
 

8.5.10 Positive aspects of the matter under consideration will generally be mainly described 
in the body of the report to Members, alongside the various “Implications” sections 
(Financial, Legal, Staffing, Equality & Diversity, Climate Change).  Report writers can 
also use the Risk Management Implications section to highlight any positive risks 
(opportunities) not mentioned elsewhere in the report.   

 
8.5.11 The PA(GFP) will report to EMT on the risk management strategy and process 

(including staffing resources) annually, or if there is a material change during the 
year, for EMT to review the strategy and process and make any recommendations 
regarding them to Corporate Governance Committee.  (The Corporate & Customer 
Services Portfolio Holder will similarly be invited to review the risk management 
strategy and process and recommend changes.)  Corporate Governance Committee 
will review and approve changes to the risk management strategy and process 
annually, or if there is a material change during the year. 

 
9. Communication and learning 
 
9.1 Communication 
 
9.1.1 Relevant staff and Members will be given timely guidance and advice relating to their 

risk management responsibilities, including particular aspects such as review of risk 
registers. 

 
9.1.2 Staff and Members will also be kept informed through a risk management page on In-

Site, the Council’s intranet, on which the following will be posted: 
• the risk management strategy,  
• the latest version of the strategic risk register,  
• the latest versions of service area risk registers; 
• guidance and advice concerning risk management, including assessment 

criteria for the potential impact and likelihood of risks occurring; 
• risk management templates. 

 
9.2 Learning 
 
9.2.1 The Council will keep its risk management strategy and processes up to date by 

learning from a variety of sources: 
• applying best practice from other local authorities and organisations, as 

appropriate; 
• ascertaining whether risk management matters identified in one service area 

also apply elsewhere across the Council;  
• providing relevant training for appropriate staff and Members (including at least 

a refresher session annually), facilitated by external specialists if necessary:   
o EMT will decide the training to be provided to staff, following a 

recommendation by the PA(GFP). 

Page 157



 

10 

o The Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee and the 
Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio Holder (the portfolio holder 
responsible for both risk management and for Member development), will 
decide the training to be provided to Members, following a 
recommendation from EMT.   

o A record will be kept of risk management training attended by staff and 
Members. 

o Corporate Governance Committee will review risk management training 
and the attendance records annually, to ensure that capabilities remain 
adequate. 

(Note: Funding for external training is currently available under the Council’s 
insurance contract.) 

 

10. Organisational arrangements 
 
10.1 All staff, at every level, have a role to play in risk management, since they are often 

best placed to identify many of the risks faced by the Council.  All staff therefore have 
a responsibility to identify and minimise risk.  This includes taking prompt remedial 
action on adverse events and near misses, when necessary, and the reporting of 
these to their line managers and/or through the relevant form.  Staff also have a 
responsibility to follow Council policies and procedures designed to manage risk and 
maintain a general level of risk awareness. 

 
10.2 The prompt alerting of something going wrong can help prevent a situation from 

becoming worse.  Staff are therefore encouraged to alert their line manager to 
potential risks at the earliest opportunity, without the fear of blame being attributed as 
a result.  This will enable action to be taken as soon as possible to reduce either the 
likelihood of the risk occurring or the possible effects of it doing so and also promote 
a culture of openness, transparency and support.  

 
10.3 A chart summarising the Council's arrangements for risk management is shown in 

Annex H. 
 

Page 158



 

 

Annex A  
 
The scope of risk; areas to consider 
 
 
 

Political / Reputation 
 
Partnership 
 
Governance 
 
Economic 
 
Social  
 
Technological 
 
Legislative / Regulatory 
 
Environmental  
 
Competitive 
 
Customer / Citizen 
 
Managerial / Professional 
 
Fraud / Corruption 
 
Financial 
 
Legal / Contractual 
 
Physical 
 
Health & Safety 
 
Performance 
 

Page 159



 

 

Annex B   
 
Some of the risks to consider when making strategic decisions 
 
 
 
The following categories are neither prescriptive nor exhaustive, but illustrate some of the 
risks Members should consider when taking strategic decisions. 
 
 
 
Strategic political risks - associated with failure to deliver either local or central 
government policy, or to meet the Council’s commitments.  Includes things such as: 
• Wrong strategic priorities 
• Not meeting the government's agenda 
• Decisions based on faulty or incomplete information 
• Too slow to innovate/modernise 
• Unfulfilled promises to electorate 
• Community planning oversights/errors 

 
Strategic economic risks - affecting the ability of the Council to meet its financial 
commitments.  Includes things such as: 
• Internal budgetary pressures 
• Inadequate insurance cover 
• External macro level economic changes (e.g. interest rates, inflation) 
• The consequences of proposed investment decisions 
• General/regional economic problems 
• High cost of capital 
• Treasury risk 
• Missed business and service opportunities 
• Failure to meet efficiency targets 

 
Strategic social risks - relating to the effects of changes in demographic, residential or 
socio-economic trends on the Council's ability to deliver its objectives. Includes things such 
as: 
• Failing to meet the needs of a disadvantaged community 
• Impact of demographic change 
• Failures in partnership working 
• Problems in delivering life-long learning 
• Crime and disorder 

 
Strategic technological risks - associated with the capacity of the Council to deal with the 
pace/scale of technological change, or its ability to use technology to address changing 
demand. They may also include the consequences of internal technological failures on the 
Council's ability to deliver its objectives. Includes things such as: 
• Obsolescence of technology 
• Hacking or corruption of data 
• Breach of confidentiality associated with technology / systems 
• Failure in communications 

 
Strategic legislative risks - associated with current or potential changes in national or 
European law. Includes things such as: 
• Inadequate response to new legislation 

Page 160



 

 

• Intervention by regulatory bodies and inspectorates 
• Judicial review 
• Human Rights Act, Disability Discrimination Act etc. breaches 

 
Strategic environmental risks - relating to the environmental consequences of progressing 
the Council’s corporate objectives or service priorities (e.g. in terms of energy, efficiency, 
pollution, recycling, landfill requirements, emissions etc). Includes things such as: 
• Noise, contamination and pollution 
• Impact of planning and transport policies 
• Climate change 
• Flood defences 

 
Strategic competitive risks - affecting the competitiveness of the service (in terms of cost 
or quality) and/or its ability to deliver best value. Includes things such as: 
• Takeover of services by government/agencies 
• Failure to show best value and/or value for money 
• Failure of bids for government funds 

 
Strategic customer/citizen risks - associated with failure to meet the current and changing 
needs and expectations of customers and citizens. Includes things such as: 
• Lack of appropriate consultation 
• Bad public and media relations 
• Breach of confidentiality 

 

Page 161



 

 

Annex C Strategic Risk Register CorVu report template 
 
 
 
Risk Reference, Title and Description, plus associated Aims 
The risk event, leading to consequence for service/ Aim(s)/ Action(s), 
resulting in possible outcome(s).  Plus associated 3 A’s. 

Risk Owner 
Risk Score Risk Owner’s Comments 

Target Actual 
Reference - Title 
The risk event, 
leading to consequence for service/ Aim(s)/Action(s), 
resulting in possible outcome(s). 
 
Associated 3 A’s 

Risk owner   

IMPACT SCORE: X.  
LIKELIHOOD SCORE: Y.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE: Detail. 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS: Detail. 

Reference - Title 
The risk event, 
leading to consequence for service/ Aim(s)/Action(s), 
resulting in possible outcome(s). 
 
Associated 3 A’s 

Risk owner   

IMPACT SCORE: X.  
LIKELIHOOD SCORE: Y.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE: Detail. 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS: Detail. 

Reference - Title 
The risk event, 
leading to consequence for service/ Aim(s)/Action(s), 
resulting in possible outcome(s). 
 
Associated 3 A’s 

Risk owner   

IMPACT SCORE: X.  
LIKELIHOOD SCORE: Y.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE: Detail. 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS: Detail. 

Reference - Title 
The risk event, 
leading to consequence for service/ Aim(s)/Action(s), 
resulting in possible outcome(s). 
 
Associated 3 A’s 

Risk owner   

IMPACT SCORE: X.  
LIKELIHOOD SCORE: Y.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE: Detail. 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS: Detail. 

 
 
 

3 A’s (Aims, Approaches, Actions) Impact Likelihood Notes 
 
Risks should be cross referenced to the relevant 
Corporate Plan Actions adopted by Council on 23 
February 2012 with effect from 1 April 2012 (e.g. A5 
or C2, etc).   
Where risks relate to previous objectives since 
embedded, the cross-referencing should be to the 
relevant 2012/13 Aim. 
  

 
5  Extreme 
4  High 
3  Medium 
2  Low 
1  Insignificant 

 
5  Almost certain 
4  Likely 
3  Possible 
2  Unlikely 
1  Rare 

 
1. The “Reference” will be a unique risk reference, retained by the risk throughout the period of its inclusion in the 

risk register. 
2. Criteria and guidelines for assessing “Impact” and “Likelihood” are available on In-Site under Corporate 

Information > Risk Management. 
2. The “Actual” risk score is obtained by multiplying the Impact score by the Likelihood score. 
3. The dotted line (- - - - - - -) shows the Council’s risk tolerance line. 
4. The “Timescale to progress” is the date (Month Year) by which it is planned that the risk will be mitigated to 

below the line. 
 
 
 

Red / Amber / Green shading in the Actual Column indicates the following movement in risk scores:   
 

 
 Red Amber Green 

for risks previously above the line: • the score has increased • the score has not changed, or has decreased but stays above the line • the score has decreased to below the line 
for risks previously below the line: • the score has increased to above the line • the score has increased but stays below the line • the score has not changed, or has decreased  
 

P
age 162



 

 

Annex D Service Area Risk Register template 
 
 
 
Ref. 
 
 

Title and Description of risk 
The risk event, leading to consequence 
for service/ Aim(s)/ Action(s), resulting 
in possible outcome(s). 

3 A’s Control measures/ 
sources of 
assurance in place 

Risk score Direction 
of travel 

Risk owner / 
Review 
frequency 

Additional control 
measures/sources 
of assurance 

Additional cost 
resources required 

Adjusted risk 
score  
(where relevant) 

Timescale 
to 
progress 

 Title 
The risk event, 
leading to consequence for service/ 
Aim(s)/Action(s), 
resulting in possible outcome(s). 

  Impact 
Likelihood 
Total 

 ��� 
(  ) 
new 

Risk owner / 
Review frequency  

  Impact 
Likelihood 
Total 

  

 Title 
The risk event, 
leading to consequence for service/ 
Aim(s)/Action(s), 
resulting in possible outcome(s). 

  Impact 
Likelihood 
Total 

 ��� 
 (  ) 
new 

Risk owner / 
Review frequency  

  Impact 
Likelihood 
Total 

  

 Title 
The risk event, 
leading to consequence for service/ 
Aim(s)/Action(s), 
resulting in possible outcome(s). 

  Impact 
Likelihood 
Total 

 ��� 
 (  ) 
new 

Risk owner / 
Review frequency  

  Impact 
Likelihood 
Total 

  

 Title 
The risk event, 
leading to consequence for service/ 
Aim(s)/Action(s), 
resulting in possible outcome(s). 

  Impact 
Likelihood 
Total 

 ��� 
 (  ) 
new 

Risk owner / 
Review frequency  

  Impact 
Likelihood 
Total 

  

 
 
3 A’s (Aims, Approaches, Actions) Impact Likelihood Direction of Travel 
Risks should be cross referenced to the relevant Corporate Plan Actions adopted 
by Council on 23 February 2012 with effect from 1 April 2012 (e.g. A5 or C2, etc).   
Where risks relate to previous objectives since embedded, the cross-referencing 
should be to the relevant 2012/13 Aim. 
  

5  Extreme 
4  High 
3  Medium 
2  Low 
1  Insignificant 

5  Almost certain 
4  Likely 
3  Possible 
2  Unlikely 
1  Rare 

� 
� 
� 
new 

Priority reduced from last review (give the previous Total score in the brackets) 
Priority equal to last review 
Priority increased from last review (give the previous Total score in the brackets) 
Risk included in the risk register for the first time 

 
Notes: 1. The “Ref.” will be a unique risk reference, retained by the risk throughout the period of its inclusion in the risk register. 
 2. Criteria and guidelines for assessing Impact and Likelihood are available on In-Site under Corporate Information > Risk Management. 
 3. The “Total” risk score is obtained by multiplying the Impact score by the Likelihood score. 
 4. The “Adjusted risk score” would result from re-evaluation of the Impact and Likelihood taking the additional control measures / sources of assurance into account. 
 5. The dotted line (- - - - - - -) shows the Council’s risk tolerance line. 
 6. The “Timescale to progress” is the date (Month Year) by which it is planned that the risk will be mitigated to below the line. 

P
age 163



 

 

Annex E Likelihood assessment guidelines 
 
 
 

Likelihood Guidelines Score 
 
 
 

Almost certain 
 
 
 

• Is expected to occur in most circumstances (more than 90%),  
or  

• Could happen in the next year,  
or  

• More than 90% likely to occur in the next 12 months 
5 

 
 
 

Likely 
 
 
 

• Will probably occur at some time, or in most circumstances    
(66% - 90%),  
or  

• Could happen in the next 2 years,  
or  

• 66% to 90% likely to occur in the next 12 months 

4 

 
 
 

Possible 
 
 
 

• Fairly likely to occur at some time, or in some circumstances  
(36% - 65%),  
or  

• Could happen in the next 3 years,  
or  

• 36% to 65% likely to occur in the next 12 months  

3 

 
 
 

Unlikely 
 
 
 

• Is unlikely to occur, but could, at some time (11% - 35%),  
or  

• Could happen in the next 10 years,  
or  

• 11% to 35% likely to occur in the next 12 months 
2 

 
 
 

Rare 
 
 
 

• May only occur in exceptional circumstances (up to 10%),  
or  

• Unlikely to happen in the next 10 years,  
or  

• Up to 10% likely to occur in the next 12 months 
1 

 
 

Page 164



 

 

Annex F Impact assessment guidelines 
 
 
 
Impact Giving rise to one or more of the following: Score 
 Service disruption People Financial loss  

(including claim 
or fine) 

Environment Statutory service/  
legal obligations 
 

Management Reputation  

Extreme Serious disruption 
to services (loss of 
services for more 
than 7 days) 

Loss of life Financial loss 
over £500k 

Major regional / 
national 
environmental 
damage 

• Central 
government 
intervention; or 

• Multiple civil or 
criminal suits 

Could lead to 
resignation of 
Leader or 
Chief 
Executive 

Extensive 
adverse 
coverage in 
national press 
and/or television 

5 

High Major disruption to 
services (loss of 
services for up to 7 
days) 

Extensive 
multiple 
injuries 

Financial loss 
between £251k 
- £500k 

Major local 
environmental 
damage 

• Strong regulatory 
sanctions; or  

• Litigation 
 

Could lead to 
resignation of 
Member or 
Executive 
Director 

Adverse 
coverage in 
national press 
and/or television 

4 

Medium Noticeable 
disruption to 
services (loss of 
services for up to 48 
hours) 

Serious 
injury 
(medical 
treatment 
required) 

Financial loss 
between £51k - 
£250k 

Moderate 
environmental 
damage 

• Regulatory 
sanctions, 
interventions, 
public interest 
reports; or  

• Litigation 

Disciplinary / 
capability 
procedures 
invoked 

Extensive 
adverse front 
page local press 
coverage 

3 

Low Some disruption to 
internal services; no 
impact on 
customers 

Minor injury 
(first aid) 

Financial loss of 
between £6k - 
£50k 

Minor 
environmental 
damage 

• Minor regulatory 
consequences; or 

• Litigation 
 

Formal HR 
procedure 
invoked 

Some local 
press coverage; 
or, adverse 
internal 
comment 

2 

Insignificant Insignificant 
disruption to internal 
services; no impact 
on customers 

No injuries Financial loss of 
up to £5k 

Insignificant 
environmental 
damage 

• No regulatory 
consequences; or 

• Litigation 
 

Informal HR 
procedure 
invoked 

No reputational 
damage 

1 

 

P
age 165



 

 

 
Annex G Prioritisation Matrix template 
 
 
 
 IMPACT 

Insignificant Low Medium High Extreme 
1 2 3 4 5 

LI
KE

LI
HO

O
D 

Almost certain 5 5 10 15 20 25 

Likely 4 4 8 12 16 20 

Possible 3 3 6 9 12 15 

Unlikely 2 2 4 6 8 10 

Rare 1 1 2 3 4 5 
 
   Risk Tolerance Line 
 
 
 
Managing the risk 
 
[Note: The score is obtained by multiplying the Impact by the Likelihood (e.g. Impact: High; 
Likelihood: Possible, would result in a score of 12 - i.e. 4 x 3).] 
 
Above the risk tolerance line (i.e. a score of 12 – 25): 
• Requires active management (consider termination of the activity or project) 
• Contingency plans – robust plan in place to detect any deviation from expectations 
• May require some mitigation to reduce likelihood (if cost effective) 

 
Below the risk tolerance line (i.e. a score of 1 – 10): 
• Reassess quarterly to ensure no change to underlying risk or control measures / 

sources of assurance 
 

Page 166



 

 

Annex H Chart summarising the Council’s arrangements for risk management 
 
 
 

 Corporate Governance Committee 
The general functions that come under the responsibility of the Committee include: 
• To review and advise the Council on the embedding and maintenance of an 

effective system of corporate governance, risk management and internal control.   
• To give assurance to the Council that there is a sufficient and systematic review 

of the corporate governance, risk management and internal control 
arrangements within the Council. 

With regard to risk management, the Committee: 
• Reviews and approves the risk management strategy and process annually, 

updating them if necessary. 
• This annual review will include considering the adequacy of the quarterly reviews 

of the strategic risk register by the Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio 
Holder.   

• Receives relevant training, as and when appropriate.  
• The Committee may report to full Council, if considered necessary to ensure that 

strategic risks are appropriately managed. 
   
 Executive  

• The Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio Holder is the lead Member for risk 
management. 

• The Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio Holder reviews the risk 
management strategy and process annually, recommending changes to 
Corporate Governance Committee if necessary. 

• The Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio Holder reviews and approves the 
strategic risk register quarterly.   

• A portfolio holder may request a briefing/update from relevant director(s) / the 
Executive Director (Corporate Services) on the service area risk register(s) 
appropriate to their portfolio. 

• Receives relevant training, as and when appropriate. 
   
 Notes: 

• The Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee and the Corporate & 
Customer Services Portfolio Holder decide the training to be provided to 
Members, following a recommendation from EMT. 

   
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 167



 

 

   
 Executive Management Team (EMT) 

• Reviews the risk management strategy and process annually, recommending 
changes to Corporate Governance Committee if necessary. 

• Reviews the strategic risk register quarterly; recommends the strategic risk 
register to the Corporate & Customer Services Portfolio Holder. 

• May cascade a strategic risk to an appropriate service area risk register. 
• Reviews service area risk registers, collated by corporate area/direct reports, on 

a rolling programme throughout the year. 
• Considers reports on strategic risks that occur and decides how lessons learnt 

will be implemented. 
• Promotes and champions risk management. 
• Decides training to be provided to staff, following a recommendation from the 

Principal Accountant (General Fund & Projects) (PA(GFP)); recommends 
training to Corporate Governance Committee. 

• The Executive Director (Corporate Services) is the senior manager responsible 
for risk management. 

   
 “Risk owners” 

(Note: The “risk owner” is the person nominated as the lead officer responsible for 
risks identified in risk registers.)  
At the strategic level: 
• Work with the PA(GFP) to develop and implement control measures / sources of 

assurance for managing strategic risks, including additional control measures / 
sources of assurance for risks assessed above the tolerance line. 

• Report strategic risks materialising, in conjunction with the PA(GFP), to the next 
meeting of EMT, recommending the application of any lessons to be learnt. 

At the service area level: 
• Work with the service manager to develop and implement control measures / 

sources of assurance for managing service area risks, including additional 
control measures / sources of assurance for risks assessed above the tolerance 
line. 

• Report service area risks materialising to the service manager.   
   
 Service managers 

• Review service area risk registers alongside service plans annually, reporting 
risks above the line in published service plans, and at quarterly intervals. 

• Respond to portfolio holder requests for briefings/updates on service area risk 
register(s). 

• Where strategic risks are cascaded to a service area risk register, take a 
corporate lead on managing the risk. 

• May escalate a service area risk for EMT to consider including in the strategic 
risk register. 

• Implement control measures / sources of assurance to manage service area 
risks. 

• Update the PA(GFP) quarterly regarding service area risk registers and control 
measures / sources of assurance. 

• Consider reports on service area risks that occur and decide how lessons learnt 
will be implemented. 

• Have primary responsibility for managing risks in their service areas, since they 
are best-placed to determine the appropriate actions to minimise risks to their 
customers, staff, services or budgets. 

   

Page 168



 

 

   
   
 Project managers 

• Review project risk registers at frequencies set out in project plans, reporting 
these in line with project management arrangements. 

• Update the PA(GFP) quarterly regarding project risk registers, including control 
measures / sources of assurance. 

• Report project risks materialising, in accordance with project management 
arrangements.  

   
 Partnership lead officers 

• Review partnership risk registers at frequencies set out in partnership plans, 
reporting these in line with governance arrangements. 

• Update the PA(GFP) quarterly regarding partnership risk registers, including 
control measures / sources of assurance. 

• Report partnership risks materialising, in accordance with governance 
arrangements. 

   
 Principal Accountant (General Fund and Projects) (PA(GFP)) 

• Coordinates EMT’s annual review of the risk management strategy and the 
resulting reports to the Corporate Governance Committee. 

• Coordinates EMT’s quarterly review of the strategic risk register and associated 
action plans, and the resulting reports to the Corporate & Customer Services 
Portfolio Holder. 

• Assists nominated risk owners to develop and implement control measures / 
sources of assurance to manage strategic risks, including additional control 
measures / sources of assurance for risks assessed above the Council’s risk 
tolerance line. 

• Keeps a record tracking the priority of identified strategic risks. 
• Assists risk owners to report on strategic risks that occur, together with 

recommendations regarding any lessons to be learnt. 
• Coordinates directors’ reviews of collated service area risk registers, quarterly. 
• Reviews service area risk registers to identify risks of a significant, corporate or 

common nature. 
• Facilitates cascade of strategic risks to relevant service area risk registers and 

escalation of significant, corporate or common service area risks for EMT to 
consider including in the strategic risk register. 

• Links project and partnership risk registers to the strategic risk register and/or 
service area risk registers, as appropriate. 

• Facilitates inclusion of risks identified in reports to Members, in the appropriate 
risk register 

• Recommends training for staff and Members to EMT. 
• Facilitates relevant training, guidance and advice on risk management. 
• Communicates risk management matters to staff.     

   
 Notes: 

• Responsibility in respect of risk and risk management will be included in relevant 
officers’ job descriptions. 

• The management competency framework will be reviewed to incorporate risk 
management responsibilities and objectives. 

 
 

Page 169



Page 170

This page is left blank intentionally.



Appendix D 
Strategic Risk Register 
June 2012 - Draft  
[changes highlighted in grey]  

 
Risk Reference, Title and Description, 
plus associated Aims, Approaches, Actions Risk Owner Risk Score Risk Owner’s Comments 

Target Current 
STR15 - Welfare Reform  
Proposed radical changes to benefits, including possibility of 
localised council tax benefits and introduction of a universal credit 
system, 
leading to possible: 
• increased IT cost due to required system changes; 
• implementation costs not fully reimbursed by Government 

grant; 
• increased workload for Benefits and Homelessness teams, 

resulting in potential for: 
• adverse effect on service provision due to the number of 

changes; 
• increased dissatisfaction with the service due to reduced 

amounts of benefit payable;  
• impact on Medium Term Financial Strategy;  
• devastating effect on people with mental health problems; and  
• dislocation of private sector housing market. 

 
Aims, Approaches, Actions: C7, B3 

Alex Colyer  20 

SCORES   -   IMPACT: 4;     LIKELIHOOD: 5.  
[Note: Scores have been assessed on the perceived scale and impact of the announced changes, 
and the timescale to implement them (although there may be changes to this) - scores will be 
reassessed and targets set when more information and clarity is available.] 
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE:  
Discretionary Housing Payments policy completed and approved. 
Response made to council tax benefit consultation. 
Consultations with professional bodies, peer authorities and software suppliers. 
Consultations with registered social landlords (RSLs), ongoing. 
Impact assessment work undertaken on proposals and council house accommodation – to be fed 
into the consideration at a strategic level of possible implications on social housing allocations. 
Consideration of possible criteria for own council tax benefit scheme. 
Benefits and Housing Advice & Homelessness teams to provide initial training. 
Signpost residents who are in difficulty, advice / counselling / financial help / medical assistance 
etc. 
Project plan for Localised Council Tax Benefits (CTB). 
Initial consultations have started with stakeholders, others commenced (2 briefings, 24 April 2012). 
DCLG have provided an initial grant of £84k towards costs. 
Chief Financial Officers Group meeting attended with regard to looking at countywide implication of 
new CTB Schemes. 
Review of project plan by County Revenues Group. 
[More control measures / sources of assurance will be identified and put in place as further 
details of the changes are confirmed.] 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS:  
Spring 2013 (Council tax support (local authorities) due to go live w.e.f. 1 April 2013). 
Forum arranged for May 2012 for Registered Housing Providers with regard to impact of under-
occupancy for each RSL. 
Housing Advice and Homelessness to work with Citizens Advice to provide additional budgeting 
advice for those adversely affected by changes to welfare benefits. 
Attendance confirmed at tenant participation group events (3 during September and October 2012). 

P
age 171



Risk Reference, Title and Description, 
plus associated Aims, Approaches, Actions Risk Owner Risk Score Risk Owner’s Comments 

Target Current 
STR05 - Lack of Development Progress  
While there is good progress on the Cambridge fringe sites, at 
Cambourne and on a refreshed planning application for Northstowe 
despite uncertainty about improvements to the A14, development is 
below target,  
leading to the authority being unable to deliver its housing needs, 
resulting in the Council having to meet the shortfall in the short 
term from developments in existing villages and head off 
speculative major planning applications outside the strategy. 
 
Aims, Approaches, Actions: B7, B6 
 
 

Jo Mills 10 16 

SCORES   -   IMPACT: 4;     LIKELIHOOD: 4. 
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE:  
A14 - Task Group set up with Department for Transport.  
Government announcement of funding for ‘interim measures’ on A14, and recognising need for 
longer term investment after the Task Group has concluded its work. 
Phase 1 planning application received 27 February 2012, with Development Framework Document.  
First members of Northstowe Joint Team appointed.  Planning Application consideration – on 
target. 
Planning Policy produce an Annual Monitoring Report (forecasts housebuilding levels), annually 
review the Local Development Scheme (can address any shortfall) and have completed a new 
Strategic Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA).   
Pre-application discussions started with Marshalls regarding land north of Newmarket Road, and 
with Ida Darwin hospital site.  Construction for Cambourne 950 has started. 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS:  
SHLAA Issues and Options for new Local Plan to be published in June 2012. 
Timetable for new Local Development Scheme was agreed by the New Communities Portfolio 
Holder in March 2011 with new plan in place in 2014.  Detail of timetable has been revised to fit 
more closely with the City Council’s programme, but overall timetable unchanged. 

STR03 - Illegal Traveller encampments or developments 
Failure to find required number of sites, or sites identified do not 
meet the needs of local Travellers,  
leading to illegal encampments or developments in the district,  
resulting in community tensions; cost and workload of enforcement 
action, including provision of alternative sites and/or housing; poor 
public perception and damage to reputation. 
 
Aims, Approaches, Actions: C6 

Jo Mills 10 12 

SCORES   -   IMPACT: 4;     LIKELIHOOD: 3.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE:  
Ongoing routine monitoring of all district development.  
Draft Government guidance issued, county wide needs assessment completed in September 2011 
but further work required.  
Monthly report on position regarding temporary expiries and applications circulated to SOG for 
coordination and oversight. 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS:  
New applications – ongoing. 
Gypsy & Traveller Plan to be included in Local Plan.  Issues & Options consultation, Summer 2012. 
Local Plan due for completion 2014. 

P
age 172



Risk Reference, Title and Description, 
plus associated Aims, Approaches, Actions Risk Owner Risk Score Risk Owner’s Comments 

Target Current 
STR08 - Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
Risks concerning the financial projections include:  
• not achieving delivery of savings to meet targets;  
• pay and inflation exceed assumptions;  
• interest rates do not meet forecasts; 
• employer’s pension contributions increases exceed projections;  
• impact of successful equal pay claims exceeds available 

reserves;  
• changes in demand for some service areas could lead to 

pressures in the related budgets;  
• unforeseen restructuring costs; 
• local government resource review - localisation of business 

rates; 
• major developments do not meet housing trajectory forecast; 
• uncertainty re new homes bonus and formula grant from 

2013/14; 
• cost of supporting development and meeting demand from 

growth; 
• impact of welfare reform (and see STR15 above); 
• costs associated with the economic downturn; 
• HRA self-financing post reform; 
• availability of budget for Cabinet priorities; 
• council tax strategy; 
• national Government responds to the downturn in the economy 

by cutting local government expenditure faster than anticipated, 
leading to the Council needing to take action to cut its budgets, 
resulting in cuts in services, public dissatisfaction, audit and 
inspection criticism. 
 
Aims, Approaches, Actions: A4, A5, C7 

Alex Colyer 10 12 

SCORES   -   IMPACT: 4;     LIKELIHOOD: 3.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE:  
Revised MTFS incorporates updated assumptions; approved by Council on 23 February 2012. 
Implement plans to deliver Council’s programme in line with latest General Fund (GF) / Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) savings targets.  
Executive Management Team (EMT) reviews progress in achieving budget targets.  
Treasury management reports to Finance & Staffing PFH.  
Monitor pay and inflation factors, effect of current economic climate on demand led services and 
budgets.  
Council Health Dashboard. 
Monthly financial report to EMT.   
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS:  
Explore shared service opportunities.  
Explore opportunities for further savings beyond those in the MTFS. 
Updated MTFS during 2012/13. 
 

STR24 - HRA Business Plan: Government policy changes 
Government decides to reopen the debt settlement, 
leading to increased debt requirement, 
resulting in reduced housing programme. 
 
Aims, Approaches, Actions: B8, C4, C9, A4 Stephen Hills 10 12 

SCORES   -   IMPACT: 4;     LIKELIHOOD: 3.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE:  
Capacity has been built into the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) business plan to absorb some 
future changes if they are required. 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS: 
Monitor Government policy including utilising our partnership arrangements with the Chartered 
Institute of Housing.  
Annual review of business plan, programme and resources. 

P
age 173



Risk Reference, Title and Description, 
plus associated Aims, Approaches, Actions Risk Owner Risk Score Risk Owner’s Comments 

Target Current 
STR12 - Supported Housing 
Reduction in Supporting People (SP) funding,  
leading to loss of staff and changes to delivery structure,  
resulting in dissatisfaction amongst residents and concerns over well 
being of vulnerable people 
 
Aims, Approaches, Actions: C9, C4 
 Stephen Hills 10 10 

SCORES   -   IMPACT: 2;     LIKELIHOOD: 5.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE: 
Needs assessment of all tenants + Member task & finish group to identify best ways to meet 
tenants’ needs. 
Consultation with staff on new structure. 
The Housing Portfolio Holder approved a new sheltered housing structure on 15 February 2012. 
Reduction in funding decision now taken (wef April 2012); confirmation received.   
Budget reviewed accordingly.  Process managed so that potential negative impact has already 
largely been mitigated.  All sheltered housing tenants informed. 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS: 
Service restructure progressing; to be effective from 1 July 2012. 
Will need to competitively tender to provide the sheltered housing service, in time for April 2013. 

STR20 – Partnership working with Cambridgeshire County 
Council 
The failure of partnership arrangements (e.g. health & wellbeing, 
economic development, transport) with the County Council,  
leading to the needs of district residents and businesses not being 
adequately met or reflected in County Council resource allocation 
decisions,  
resulting in adverse effects on the district’s residents and 
businesses. 
 
Aims, Approaches, Actions: A1 

Jean Hunter  9 9 

SCORES   -   IMPACT: 3;     LIKELIHOOD: 3.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE:  
Active engagement of officers and Members in partnerships, to ensure the district’s residents’ and 
businesses’ needs are articulated. 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS:  
New action in Corporate Plan for 2012/13. 
Dependent on the timeframe/milestones for each partnership. 

STR19 - Demands on services from an ageing population 
The district's demography changes, with significant growth in the 
over 65 year old population,  
leading to additional demands on health and social care services, 
including to the Council's sheltered housing and benefits services,  
resulting in adverse impact on service standards; increased 
customer dissatisfaction with services; increased levels of social 
isolation. 
 
Aims, Approaches, Actions: C4, C9, B8 Mike Hill 9 9 

SCORES   -   IMPACT: 3;     LIKELIHOOD: 3.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE:  
Establishment of 'Ageing Well' workshops to build relations with statutory and voluntary partner 
agencies, and promote community based preventative measures. 
Multi agency working group established September 2011, to meet bi monthly. 
Demographic data to inform new South Cambridgeshire Local Plan – timetable agreed in March 
2011. 
Housing for older people Task & Finish review reported to Scrutiny & Overview Committee, 6 
February 2012. 
Participation in county wide Ageing Well project – initial meeting held November 2011. 
County wide workshop held on 16 March 2012. 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS:  
Action in 2012/17 corporate plan to ‘Work with older people to improve their independence and 
quality of life’. 
South Cambridgeshire Ageing Well action plan in preparation. 
Take account of demographic change in the corporate and financial planning cycle. 
Redesign services to address demands. 

     

P
age 174



Risk Reference, Title and Description, 
plus associated Aims, Approaches, Actions Risk Owner Risk Score Risk Owner’s Comments 

Target Current 
STR16 – Depot size 
Failure to secure permanent alternative depot arrangements,  
leading to adverse health & safety implications, loss of operating 
licence,  
resulting in inability to provide full service, possible staff death or 
injury, service failure/disruption, legal action, reputational damage. 
 
Aims, Approaches, Actions: C2 

Mike Hill 8 8 

SCORES   -   IMPACT: 4;     LIKELIHOOD: 2.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE:  
Temporary alternative arrangements in place. 
Permanent arrangements identified; planning consent granted March 2011. 
SMT supported move and lease of 25 yrs on 4 May 2011; approved by Environmental Services 
PFH in May 2011. 
Implementation and additional costs included in 2011/12 and 2012/13 budgets. 
Project Initiation Document approved by EMT in August 2011. 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS:   
Heads of Terms delayed, pending outcome of a new planning consent for a redesigned depot. 
Occupation target, January 2013.  

STR22 - Safeguarding the Council’s services against climate 
change 
The Council fails to develop measures to safeguard its services 
against climate change,  
leading to unacceptable vulnerability to the impact of climate shifts 
and other weather-related events,  
resulting in a degradation or breakdown of service delivery and 
damage to property, increasing costs and impact on the Council’s 
reputation. 
 
Aims, Approaches, Actions: C8 

Jo Mills 8 8 

SCORES   -   IMPACT: 4;     LIKELIHOOD: 2.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE:  
The Council adopted the Climate Change Action Plan (CCAP) 2011-2013 on 22 September 2011.  
Specific actions in place within CCAP and New Communities Service Plan.  
New co-ordination body (Internal Sustainability Delivery Group - ISDG) assisting with 
implementation and monitoring.   
Regular EMT reporting and quarterly performance reports to PFH meetings.  
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS:   
CCAP actions undertaken over the period 2011 to 2013. 
The Director of Planning and New Communities will meet relevant Members and report back, 
enabling EMT to decide whether to retain the Internal Sustainability Delivery Group or transfer 
responsibility for monitoring the Climate Change Action Plan to EMT. 

P
age 175



Risk Reference, Title and Description, 
plus associated Aims, Approaches, Actions Risk Owner Risk Score Risk Owner’s Comments 

Target Current 
STR02 – Equalities 
The Council is successfully challenged over not complying with 
general equalities legislation or legislation specific to public and local 
authority bodies,  
leading to possible Commission for Human Rights and Equalities 
inspection,  
resulting in reduction in reserves available to support balanced 
MTFS, adverse publicity and effect on reputation. 
 
Aims, Approaches, Actions: A2, A4 Alex Colyer 8 8 

SCORES   -   IMPACT: 4;     LIKELIHOOD: 2.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE: 
The Council has met its legal requirements to publish equality information by 31 January 2012 and 
publish equality objectives by 6 April 2012.  This information is incorporated into a new Single 
Equality Scheme (SES), which was adopted by the portfolio holder on 21 March 2012.  
The adoption of a corporate approach to EQIAs is based on identification of revised assessments 
via forward plans and a focus on changed outcomes as a result of assessment, supported by the 
development of a simplified series of templates and the introduction of a ‘screening tool’ by end of 
May 2012. 
Quarterly performance reports to EMT and PFH meetings. 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS: 
The Council will prepare a self-assessment against the ‘Excellence’ standard of the Equality 
Framework for Local Government (EFLG) to inform a final decision, to be taken by 31 October 
2012, whether to proceed to ‘Excellence’ accreditation in 2013.  The Equality and Diversity 
Steering Group will be re-established as a task and finish project group to assist with the 
preparation of the self-assessment, the Terms of Reference and outline project plan to be 
circulated to EMT. 

STR23 - Achieving a 10% reduction in CO2 emissions 
The Council fails to achieve 10% reductions in the emission of CO2 
from its operations,  
leading to continued level of emissions,  
resulting in loss of reputation, reduced ability to require developers 
and businesses to reduce CO2 emissions. 
 
Aims, Approaches, Actions: C8 
 

Jo Mills 8 8 

SCORES   -   IMPACT: 2;     LIKELIHOOD: 4.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE:  
The Council adopted the Climate Change Action Plan (CCAP) 2011-2013 on 22 September 2011.  
Specific actions in place within CCAP and New Communities Service Plan.  
New co-ordination body (Internal Sustainability Delivery Group - ISDG) assisting with 
implementation and monitoring.  
Regular EMT reporting and quarterly performance reports to PFH meetings.  
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS:   
CCAP actions undertaken over the period 2011 to 2013. 
The Director of Planning and New Communities will review this risk and report back, enabling EMT 
to decide whether to retain this risk on the risk register. 

     

P
age 176



Risk Reference, Title and Description, 
plus associated Aims, Approaches, Actions Risk Owner Risk Score Risk Owner’s Comments 

Target Current 
STR21 – Keeping up with technology development 
The authority fails to maintain an awareness of technology 
opportunities and does not implement appropriate technology 
enhancements,  
leading to inability to appropriately manage the handling of data and 
sensitive information, IT and communications systems not having 
capability / capacity to meet emerging standards and unable to deal 
with service requirements and improvements and deliver efficiencies, 
resulting in diminished standard of service, customer dissatisfaction, 
tarnished reputation and uncontrolled costs. 
 
Aims, Approaches, Actions: A8, A10, B1 

Alex Colyer 4 4 

SCORES   -   IMPACT: 2;     LIKELIHOOD: 2.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE: 
ICT Strategy, ICT Security Policy and Usage Guidelines, Information Governance project. 
EMT, Policy & Performance Portfolio, Information Governance Working Group and the Website 
Officers Working Group. 
Assessment of service area needs in conjunction with the annual budget planning and Service 
Planning process. 
Externally – The exchange of information, ideas and opportunities via county wide and national 
user groups including the County and Districts ICT Group, Cambridgeshire Public Sector Network 
Partnership Board, Information Management Technology Partnership Board, ICT Shared Services 
Group and County Data Sharing Group. 
Membership of the Society of IT Managers (SocITM) and British Computer Society. 
The Policy and Performance Portfolio Holder approved a draft revised ICT Strategy (subject to 
further discussion and final approval at a future portfolio holder meeting) and noted and endorsed 
revised ICT Security Policy and Usage Guidelines, on 12 April 2012. 
Regular monthly or bi-monthly engagement with officers, Members and public sector partners. 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS:  
Dependent on the timeframe/milestones for each major project. 
Final approval of revised ICT Strategy, October 2012. 

STR14 – Implementation of National Job Evaluation Scheme 
(a) The Council and trade unions are not able to form a collective 
agreement for the implementation of a revised job evaluation 
scheme, 
leading to worsening industrial relations and equal pay challenges 
and poor publicity, 
resulting in public dissatisfaction with the Council’s services. 
 
(b) Employee anxiety about Job Evaluation, 
leading to significant staff absence or reduced productivity,  
resulting in inability to provide full services. 
 
Aims, Approaches, Actions: All 
 
[(a) The Council and trades unions signed a Single Status 
Agreement in May 2012. 
(b) Employee  engagement and development is being addressed 
through the Organisational Development Strategy; risk associated 
with this will be included in the Corporate Services service area risk 
register.] 

Alex Colyer 10 16 

SCORES   -   IMPACT: 4;     LIKELIHOOD: 4.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE:  
Employment of specialist staff to manage the process.  
Exchange of information and discussions through the Job Evaluation (JE) Steering Group.  
JE Steering Group met on 19 May 2011 and continued to have negotiation meetings and work with 
the trade unions. 
The meeting with the regional Joint Secretaries on 22 Feb 2012 made recommendations, to 
Unison, GMB and the Council; revised Single Status proposals put to members in a consultative 
ballot. 
Update letters issued to all staff in February and March 2012.  All JE documents held on Insite. 
Both unions have balloted members on the Single Status proposals – joint steering group met on 9 
May 2012 to discuss outcomes. 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS:   
Formal signing of collective agreement due to take place week commencing 21 May 2012. 

     

P
age 177



Risk Reference, Title and Description, 
plus associated Aims, Approaches, Actions Risk Owner Risk Score Risk Owner’s Comments 

Target Current 
STR13 - Potential risk once HRA reform is implemented.  
Council fails to prepare for taking on £200M debt,  
leading to significant shortfall in funds or mismanagement of 
finances,  
resulting in potential of regulatory intervention. 
 
Aims, Approaches, Actions: A4, B8, C9 
 
[This risk is concerned with the HRA self financing leading up to the 
April 2012 implementation.  £205million debt was successfully taken 
on, on 28 March 2012.  Affordable Homes had already downgraded 
this risk on their risk register.] 
 

Stephen Hills 5 10 

SCORES   -   IMPACT: 5;     LIKELIHOOD: 2.  
 
CONTROL MEASURES / SOURCES OF ASSURANCE: 
Standard budget setting and financial controls. 
Project team set up to manage implementation process. 
Consultancy support procured (stock condition survey and draft business plan). 
Joint project team meeting with Cambridge City Council’s project team; possible opportunities to 
rationalise common pieces of work, make best use of resources and information. 
Viable HRA Business Plan approved by Council - separate risk register identified. 
 
TIMESCALE TO PROGRESS: 
Outcome of initial consultation published February 2011, providing route map for implementation. 
Anticipate new regime from April 2012. 

 
 
 
Red / Amber / Green shading in the Actual Column indicates the following movement in risk scores:   
 

 Red Amber Green 
for risks previously 
above the line: • the score has increased • the score has not changed, or has decreased but stays 

above the line • the score has decreased to below the line 
for risks previously 
below the line: • the score has increased to above the line • the score has increased but stays below the line • the score has not changed, or has decreased  

 
 
 
Notes 
1.  The “Reference” is unique and retained by the risk throughout the period of its inclusion in the risk register. 
2.  Risks are cross referenced to the relevant 2012/13 Aims, Approaches and/or Actions adopted by Council on 23 February 2012. 
3.  Criteria and guidelines for assessing “Impact” and “Likelihood” are shown on below. 
4.  The “Actual” risk score is obtained by multiplying the Impact score by the Likelihood score. 
5.  The dotted line (- - - - - - -) shows the Council’s risk tolerance line. 
6.  The “Timescale to progress” is the date by which it is planned that the risk will be mitigated to below the line. 
 
 

P
age 178



 
Impact Giving rise to one or more of the following:   Likelihood   
 Service 

disruption People Financial 
loss * Environment Statutory service/  

legal obligations Management Reputation Score   Guidelines Score 

Extreme 

Serious 
disruption to 
services  
(loss of 
services for 
more than 7 
days) 

Loss of 
life 

Financial 
loss over 
£500k 

Major regional / 
national 
environmental 
damage 

• Central 
government 
intervention; or 
• Multiple civil or 
criminal suits 

Could lead to 
resignation of 
Leader or 
Chief 
Executive 

Extensive 
adverse 
coverage in 
national 
press and/or 
television 

 
 
5 
 
 

 Almost 
certain 

• Is expected to occur in most 
circumstances (more than 90%), or  
• Could happen in the next year, or 
• More than 90% likely to occur in the 
next 12 months 

5 

High 

Major 
disruption to 
services  
(loss of 
services for up 
to 7 days) 

Extensive 
multiple 
injuries 

Financial 
loss 
between 
£251k - 
£500k 

Major local 
environmental 
damage 

• Strong regulatory 
sanctions; or 
• Litigation 

Could lead to 
resignation of 
Member or 
Executive 
Director 

Adverse 
coverage in 
national 
press and/or 
television 

 
 
4 
 
 

 Likely 
• Will probably occur at some time, or in 
some circumstances (66% - 90%), or  
• Could happen in the next 2 years, or 
• 66% to 90% likely to occur in the next 
12 months 

4 

Medium 

Noticeable 
disruption to 
services  
(loss of 
services for up 
to 48 hours) 

Serious 
injury 
(medical 
treatment 
required) 

Financial 
loss 
between 
£51k - 
£250k 

Moderate 
environmental 
damage 

• Regulatory 
sanctions, 
interventions, 
public interest 
reports; or  
• Litigation 

Disciplinary / 
capability 
procedures 
invoked 

Extensive 
adverse front 
page local 
press 
coverage 

 
 
3 
 
 

 Possible 
• Fairly likely to occur at some time, or in 
some circumstances (36% - 65%), or  
• Could happen in the next 3 years, or 
• 36% to 65% likely to occur in the next 
12 months 

3 

Low 

Some 
disruption to 
internal 
services; no 
impact on 
customers 

Minor 
injury (first 
aid) 

Financial 
loss of 
between 
£6k - 
£50k 

Minor 
environmental 
damage 

• Minor regulatory 
consequences; 
or 
• Litigation 

Formal HR 
procedure 
invoked 

Some local 
press 
coverage; or, 
adverse 
internal 
comment 

 
 
2 
 
 

 Unlikely 
• Is unlikely to occur, but could, at some 
time (11% - 35%), or  
• Could happen in the next 10 years, or 
• 11% to 35% likely to occur in the next 
12 months 

2 

Insignificant 

Insignificant 
disruption to 
internal 
services; no 
impact on 
customers 

No 
injuries 

Financial 
loss of up 
to £5k 

Insignificant 
environmental 
damage 

• No regulatory 
consequences; 
or 
• Litigation 

Informal HR 
procedure 
invoked 

No 
reputational 
damage 

 
 
1 
 
 

 Rare 

• May only occur in exceptional 
circumstances (up to 10%), or  
• Unlikely to happen in the next 10 years, 
or 
• Up to 10% likely to occur in the next 12 
months 

1 

   * including claim or fine 

P
age 179



P
age 180

T
his page is left blank intentionally.



Appendix E 
Strategic Risk Matrix 
June 2012 - Draft  

  
 IMPACT 

Insignificant Low Medium High Extreme 
1 2 3 4 5 

LI
KE

LI
HO

O
D 

Almost 
certain 

 
5 
 

 
 
 

12. Supported 
Housing  15. Welfare reform  

Likely 
 
4 
 

 
23. Achieving a 

10% reduction in 
CO2 emissions 

 5. Lack of development 
progress   

Possible 3 

 
 
 
 
 

 

20. Partnership working 
with Cambridgeshire 
County Council 

19. Demands on 
services from an 
ageing population 

3. Illegal traveller 
encampments / 
developments 

8. Medium Term 
Financial Strategy  

24. HRA Business Plan 

 

Unlikely 2  
21. Keeping up with 

technology 
development 

 

16. Depot size 
2. Equalities 
22. Safeguarding the 

Council’s services 
against climate 
change 

 

Rare 
 
1 
 

     

 

Risk Tolerance Line 
 

P
age 181



P
age 182

T
his page is left blank intentionally.



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Corporate Governance Committee 29th June 2012 
AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Corporate Services)/ Legal and Democratic 

Services Manager 
 

 
SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL’S ANNUAL GOVERNANCE 

STATEMENT 2011/12 
 

Purpose 
 

1. To consider and approve the draft Annual Governance Statement 2011/12 prior to the 
statement being signed by the Leader and Chief Executive and being included in the 
statement of accounts for the year ending 31st March 2012. 
 
Recommendations 

 
2. The Corporate Governance Committee is requested to consider and approve the 

draft Annual Governance Statement and note the information which supports the 
report. 
 

3. The Corporate Governance Committee is asked to note that the final version of the 
Statement will be updated following the receipt of the External Auditors Opinion. 
 

4. The Corporate Governance Committee is asked to note the progress made to 
address the governance issues identified in the Annual Governance 
Statement for 2010/2011. 

 
Background 

 
5. The requirement to publish an Annual Governance Statement (“the AGS”) is a 

statutory requirement which was introduced with effect from the 2007/2008 financial 
year. The AGS provides public assurance about the effectiveness of the Council’s 
system of internal control and the Council’s corporate governance arrangements and 
assurance framework. 

 
6. The CIPFA/SOLACE governance framework “Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government” brings together an underlying set of legislative requirements, 
governance principles and management processes and highlights the fact that good 
governance relates to the whole organisation. Six core principles of governance in 
the framework focus on the systems and processes for the direction and control of 
the Council and its activities through which it accounts and engages with the 
community. 
 
Considerations 

 
7. The functions of the Corporate Governance Committee include consideration of the 

AGS prior to its inclusion in the annual statement of accounts. The AGS should 
explain the governance framework operating during the accounting period, assess 
the effectiveness of those controls and identify any significant issues and associated 
actions. 

 

Agenda Item 8Page 183



8. The draft AGS is attached at Appendix A. There is no standard wording for explaining 
governance arrangements and the review of their effectiveness; rather a good 
governance statement will be an open and honest self-assessment of the Council’s 
performance across all of its activities, with a clear statement of the actions being 
taken or required to address areas of concern. Internal audit has assisted officers in 
the preparation of the AGS by gathering assurances against the six core principles of 
governance. Officers across the Council have also provided evidence of assurances 
by self-assessment against the Local Code of Governance. 

 
9. The draft AGS includes the Internal Audit opinion for 2011/12 that the council has 

adequate and effective risk management, control and governance processes to 
manage the achievement of the organisation’s objectives. The AGS will be updated 
with the External Audit opinion when it is received. 
 

10. No “significant” governance issues have been identified in this year’s AGS.  Three 
issues have been identified officers as meriting attention to further strengthen 
effective corporate governance at the Council which are set out in the table at Section 
6 of the report. 
 
Implications 
 

11. 8
.
Financial Good corporate governance and internal controls reduce the 

risk to the Council of financial loss. 
Legal It is a statutory requirement to produce an Annual Governance 

Statement under the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) 
(England) Regulations 2006 and the Statement of Reporting 
Practice 2007 (CIPFA). Operating good corporate governance 
and internal control systems should demonstrate high ethical 
standards. 

Staffing None 
Risk Management Failure to produce an Annual Governance Statement would 

affect the approval of the statement of accounts and the use of 
resources assessment 

Equal Opportunities None 
 

Consultations 
 

12. The Executive Management Team, other senior officers and Internal Audit were 
consulted as part of the preparation of this report. 

 
Effect on Strategic Aims 
 

13. Commitment to being a listening council, providing first class services 
accessible to all. 
The Annual Governance Statement covers the whole range of Council activities and 
the way in which it implements its policies and values reflecting the strategic aims of 
the authority. 
Commitment to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe 
and healthy place for all. 
See above 
Commitment to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can 
feel proud to live. 
See above 
Commitment to assisting provision for local jobs for all. 

Page 184



See above 
Commitment to providing a voice for rural life. 
See above 

 
 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report:  
 
 
Annual Governance Statement 2010/2011 
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government – Guidance and Framework 
published by CIPFA 2007 
Annual Audit Letter 2010/11 
 
 

 
Contact Officer:  Fiona McMillan – Legal and Democratic Services Manager 

Telephone: (01954) 713027 

Page 185



Page 186

This page is left blank intentionally.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
South Cambridgeshire District Council 
 
Annual Governance Statement 2011/12 
 
For the period 1st April 2011 to 31st March 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 187



 

 1. SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY  
 
South Cambridgeshire District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted 
in accordance with the law and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded, 
properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a 
duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
In discharging this overall responsibility South Cambridgeshire District Council is responsible for 
putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, and facilitating the 
effective exercise of its functions, including arrangements for the management of risk. 
 
The Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance, which is consistent 
with the principles of the CIPFA/ SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government. 
 
A copy of the code is on the Council’s website at www.scambs.gov.uk. This statement explains 
how the Council has complied with the code and also meets the requirements of regulation 4(2) 
of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended by the Accounts and Audit 
(Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006) in relation to the publication of a statement on 
internal control. 
 
 
 
2. THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK  
 
The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by which the 
Council is directed and controlled and the activities through which it engages with and leads the 
community. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to 
consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective 
services. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage 
risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and 
objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of 
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to 
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, 
to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, 
and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
 
The governance framework has been in place at the Council for the year ended 31 March 2012, 
and up to the date of approval of the annual report and statement of accounts. 
 
 
 
 

Page 188



 

 3. THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK  
 
South Cambridgeshire District Council has a responsibility for ensuring a sound system of 
governance to meet statutory requirements requiring public authorities to adhere to proper 
practices in reviewing the effectiveness of their system of internal control and preparing a 
statement on internal control.  This governance statement meets that requirement and sets out 
brief details of the arrangements the Council has in place regarding the key systems and 
processes comprising the Council’s governance framework and also identifying what outcomes 
have been achieved throughout the year as part of these processes that has benefited all those 
involved with the Council. This forms part of the Council’s overall assurance framework, which 
incorporates the Local Code of Governance adopted by the Council covering six core principles 
and the accompanying supporting principles contained within the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework 
for Delivering Good Governance in Local Government (2007).  
 
 
Principle One: Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the 
community and creating and implementing a vision for the local area.  
 
• The Council’s Vision is ‘To make South Cambridgeshire a safe and healthy place where 

residents are proud to live and where there will be opportunities for employment, 
enterprise and world-leading innovation.  We will be a listening Council, providing a 
voice for rural life and first class services accessible to all’. 

 
• The Council has established the following aims which set out how the vision will be 

delivered: - 
o Being a listening council, providing first class services accessible to all 
o Ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and healthy place for 

you and your family 
o Making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live 
o Assisting provision for local jobs for you and your family 
o Providing a voice for rural life 

 
• These aims are underpinned by approaches which provide a framework showing how 

the aims will be delivered and specific actions which will be undertaken to deliver the 
aims. 

 
• The Council has also adopted values to guide the way it works and provides services.  

These are customer service, improving services, trust and mutual respect.  
 
• The Council has communicated its vision, aims and values internally through monthly 

Corporate Briefs to staff, the internal staff magazine ‘Scene’ and the intranet “In-Site”.  
They have also been communicated to South Cambridgeshire residents through its 
quarterly magazine “South Cambs”, via the website, and via meetings held every six 
months with the parish councils. 

 
• The Council produced a Corporate Plan for 2011/12, which set out key achievements for 

2010/11 and the challenges and priorities for 2011/12 and demonstrated how the 
Council planned to meet these challenges during the year, how it has continued to 
ensure improvements and managed resources effectively to deliver high quality services 
to the whole community.  The Corporate Plan is available on the Council’s website. 

Page 189



 

• The Corporate Plan is underpinned by service plans for 2011/12 setting out the actions 
to be taken and targets to be met.  Achievement of these plans is regularly monitored by 
Portfolio Holders, via quarterly reports at their public meetings, and service managers on 
an on-going basis throughout the year.  

 
• The Policy and Performance service drives delivery of the Corporate Plan, working 

closely with services to spread best practice, track performance and strengthen 
performance against local targets.  The performance management framework monitors 
delivery against targets and the Cabinet or Portfolio Holder receives quarterly integrated 
business monitoring reports, which incorporate the Council’s financial performance. 
 

• The Service Plan incorporates a value for money framework to identify costs relating to 
activities. 

 
• In September 2010, the Council updated its Performance Improvement Strategy to 

ensure it continues to be seen to be consistently delivering improvements in services 
and the quality of life enjoyed by residents, as reflected in the Corporate Plan and 
Sustainable Community Strategy.  The Performance scorecard was introduced in 2011 
and shows how the Council is doing at delivering its aims. 

 
• A performance management manual has been in use from 2010/11 which sets out roles 

and responsibilities, the performance management cycle, target setting, performance 
indicators audit standards and data quality strategy.  

• The Council already has a great deal in place, including its aims and values, to reflect an 
ongoing commitment to improve services.  It operates systems such as service planning; 
performance and development reviews (appraisals); quarterly performance monitoring; 
management competencies; and risk management, and achieved Investors in People 
(IIP) accreditation in March 2009. Re-assessment for IIP is due in 2012. Work is ongoing 
to improve staff engagement and motivation to build the commitment and team working 
across the Council required for performance improvement. The adoption of an 
Organisational Development Strategy in October 2011 and projects such as Customer 
Service Excellence (CSE) support the Council’s commitment to service improvement. 

 
• A performance improvement group meets monthly to consider performance issues.  This 

group includes a representative from each service; the policy and performance portfolio 
holder receives papers and regularly attends meetings as an observer.  

• The Council Tax leaflet for 2011/12 includes detailed information for residents including 
the previous year’s performance and the “CorVu” Performance Management System 
has been enhanced to improve the range, quality and accessibility of performance data 
through the use of the performance scorecard. 

 
• The Council has a Medium Term Financial Strategy, which is reviewed and updated 

annually as part of the budget setting process to support the achievement of the 
Council’s corporate objectives. The budget and policy framework outlines the process 
and timetable to be followed each year when setting the Council’s budget. The financial 
management framework includes regular budget monitoring reports to the Management 
Team, Executive and Portfolio Holder meetings to ensure best use of Council resources. 

 

Page 190



 

• Each service plan includes a value for money overview that describes how each service 
has made efficiencies. The VFM template within the service plan provides a mechanism 
to assess VFM delivered in terms of unit cost, service levels, performance, external 
recognition and funding. 

 
• Partnership working is an essential element for the Council to deliver its services 

effectively and assist the Council in meeting its objectives.  In order to ensure that the 
Council participates in successful partnerships with robust governance arrangements, 
the Council has adopted a “Partnership Toolkit” that covers eight partnership standards 
agreed by the Corporate Governance Committee. Standard Terms of Reference 
headings based on national guidance are included in the toolkit for use in all 
partnerships led by the Council.  

 
• The Council has a full list of all its partnerships and each of these has been scored to 

identify the key partnerships. All key partnerships are risk assessed and any scoring 
above the threshold would be included in the risk register which is regularly monitored. 

 
• The Local Strategic Partnership provides a framework for addressing the social, 

economic and environmental concerns of people in South Cambridgeshire and 
Cambridge City through partnership working.   
 
 
 

Principle One:  Key Outcomes identified during 2011/12 
• The Council achieves its strategic aims for the district and its customers, resulting in positive 

outcomes for quality of life 
• The council tax leaflet has been improved through feedback from a focus group to provide 

value for money information 
• Tangible positives for the community e.g. increased engagement with young people through 

shadow Youth Council event. 
• Service improvement targets achieved, enhancing performance and resulting in positive 

service enhancements e.g. blue bin scheme roll-out. 
• Effective financial management: Establishment of 30 year business plan for new Housing 

Revenue Account arrangements and maintenance of housing assets 
• Specific satisfaction surveys carried out by services e.g. legal, ICT, informed by CSE gaps 

identified, leading to positive service improvements. 
• Achievement of Customer Services Excellence Standard 
• Adoption of Corporate OD Strategy to develop knowledge, skills and behaviour of staff 
• Value for Money indicators identified for all services. 

 
 
 
 

Page 191



 

Principle 2:  Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with 
clearly defined functions and roles. 

 
• The Constitution was last updated on 24th November 2011 following a periodic review by 

the Council’s Constitutional Review Working Party, which last met on 10th November 
2011.  The working party acts as the guide for the operations of the Council and 
identifies the roles and responsibilities of the Executive, Officers and Members.  The 
Constitution also identifies the delegation of responsibilities for Council functions through 
Committees, the Executive, portfolio holders and officers, and sets out how decisions 
are made.  It sets out management and operational responsibility within the Council. All 
executive and officer decisions are published in a weekly e-bulletin, which is distributed 
to all Members, staff and all parish councils within the district. 

 
• The Constitution contains Codes of Conduct for officers and members, a protocol for 

member/officer relations and full job descriptions for Members, including role 
descriptions for Chairmen of the Council’s Committees.  

 
• The Monitoring Officer and Legal and Democratic Services team maintain up to date 

versions of the Constitution and ensure decision-making is fair and lawful.  Advice from 
the Monitoring Officer and/or the Chief Finance Officer is taken on whether any 
decisions are outside the budget and policy framework.  All Executive reports are 
forwarded to Legal and Accountancy prior to publication for input into the implications of 
proposed actions and strategies.  

 
• The roles and responsibilities of statutory officers are set out in the Constitution and job 

descriptions. The Chief Executive is designated Head of the Paid Service, the Executive 
Director (Corporate Services) is the designated Chief Finance Officer responsible for the 
proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs under Section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and the Executive Director (Operational Services) was the 
Monitoring Officer for part of the year. The Legal & Democratic Services Manager was 
designated Monitoring Officer in January 2012. All the Council’s statutory officers have 
the skills, knowledge, experience and resources to perform effectively in their roles and 
their roles are properly understood within the authority 

 
• An independent panel is in place to monitor and review the remuneration of members 

each financial year.  Remuneration for Members was unchanged in 2011/12. 
 

• A local agreement covers pay and conditions for officers.  A full job evaluation exercise 
has been ongoing during 2011/12 and is due for completion and implementation in the 
first half of 2012/13. The Pay Policy Statement was approved by Council in February 
2012. 

 
• Service delivery is monitored through quarterly integrated business monitoring reports to 

identify relevant links between resources to reflect ongoing and emerging policy 
priorities, covering the following Council performance areas: 

 
o Corporate actions 
o Performance indicators 
o General Fund, Housing Revenue Account 
o Capital Programme 

Page 192



 

Principle Two:  Key Outcomes identified during 2011/12 
• For 2011/12 the Council has had a pre-arranged programme of meetings to ensure the 

Constitution is kept under regular review. 
• Building of effective relationships to allow objectives to be achieved more efficiently. 
• A wide range of member development and training sessions have been offered and have 

received very positive feedback from members. 
• The Council appointed a dedicated Member Services Officer in 2010 to act as the first point 

of contact for members 
• Charter for Elected Member Development awarded in January 2012 
• 89% of Members attended training sessions during 2011/12 
• Public confidence in a robust remuneration system for Members and Officers 
• Significant progress with Job Evaluation review   
• Requirements of the Equalities Act in terms of equal pay have been met 
• Improvements in key performance indicators. 
• Positive impact of the Absence Management Policy in reducing long term sickness. 
• Learning from complaints feedback has led to tangible service improvements 
• Chief Executive made Ward visits to all Parishes in the district to support the excellent 

District – Parish liaison arrangements by Members 
• Budgets delivered within variance levels demonstrating sound financial management 
 
 
 
Principle 3:  Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good 
governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour. 

 
• The Constitution acts as the guide for the operations of the Council and identifies the 

roles and responsibilities of the Executive, officers and Members. 
 
• The Constitution is supported by operational procedure manuals containing information 

on financial regulations, contract regulations, business procedures and processes to be 
followed in all areas of the Council.  

 
• Expected standards of conduct and behaviour are set out in the Code of Conduct and 

other protocols contained within the Constitution.  All Members have also been given a 
Members’ Toolkit which includes the Code of Conduct and all other relevant protocols 
and guidance for members. All Members have been trained on the Code of Conduct. 

 
• The Code of Conduct addresses the issue of Members not taking part in decision-

making if they have declared a prejudicial interest and about registration and declaration 
of personal interests.  Declarations of interest are a standing item on all agendas.  A 
register of interests for each Member including co-optees on to the Standards 
Committee is updated annually and shown on the council’s website. 

 

Page 193



 

• The Constitution also includes an Anti-theft, Fraud and Corruption Policy. 
 
• Members are asked to sign up to a Member Undertaking to show their commitment to 

abide by the codes and protocols as a demonstration of support for the high standards of 
personal behaviour by Members and good working relationships with officers.  

 
• Officers are bound by their own Code of Conduct which sets out guidelines for officer 

behaviour. 
 
• The Members’ Toolkit also contains an internal disputes resolution procedure which can 

be used to deal with alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct.  
 
• The Council has adopted four values; customer service, improving services, trust and 

mutual respect which underpin the way it works and provides services.  A programme to 
embed the values within the organisation has been led by an officer task group chaired 
by a member of the Management Team via training, posters, newsletters, the staff 
magazine, intranet and team briefings. The values are included as part of the staff 
appraisal system, and value panels are used in the recruitment process. 

 
• The Standards Committee promotes and maintains high standards of conduct within the 

Council and its Parish Councils. All political groups and non-group members are 
represented on the Standards Committee.  The Committee assesses, reviews and 
makes determinations in respect of allegations of misconduct against district and parish 
councillors, and makes recommendations to Council on matters such as reviews of the 
Code of Conduct. The committee currently includes 18 members, comprising of 7 District 
councillors, 3 representatives of parish councils and 8 independent (lay) members.   

• Each member of the Standards Committee receives a committee manual, including 
details of members’ roles and responsibilities, and the Committee’s responsibilities and 
procedures for carrying out assessments of complaints and dealing with investigations.  
The members of Standards Committee have ongoing training on a quarterly basis 
following each meeting on issues and procedures affecting it and details of workshops 
and training sessions during 2011/12 have been included in the annual report. 

• The operation of the Standards Committee has previously been recognised nationally 
and was short-listed for the LGC awards in the 2010 Standards and Ethics category (this 
category was not repeated at the 2011 awards due to the forthcoming changes to the 
Standards regime). 
 

Principle Three:  Key Outcomes identified during 2011/12 
• Corporate Governance internal audit report December 2011 was extremely positive about 

current arrangements and gave substantial assurance around the control environment. 
• Monitoring Officer provides regular support and advice to Members on conduct and also on 

issues around pre-determination and bias. 
• The Communications Strategy for 2011/12 is built around SCDC’s values.  
• Responses given to the media frequently link back to the values to show our residents, staff, 

Members and partners what drives us as a Council. 

Page 194



 

• SCene, the internal staff newsletter has been used through the year to reinforce the values 
to staff and Members.  

• Values Panel included in recruitment process to assist in getting the right people in the right 
jobs. 

• The Council has responded to once instance of whistle-blowing during 2011/12. The 
incident was dealt with in accordance with the Council’s policies. 

 
 
Principle 4:  Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective 
scrutiny and managing risk. 

 
• The Constitution acts as the guide for the operations of the council and identifies the 

roles and responsibilities of the executive, officers and Members.  The Constitution also 
identifies the delegation of responsibilities for Council Functions through Committees 
and sets out how decisions are made.  All executive and officer decisions are published 
in a weekly e-bulletin, which is distributed to all Members, staff and the 90 parish 
councils within the Council’s area.  

 
• The Council has a Scrutiny and Overview Committee with terms of reference and 

operating procedures set out in the Constitution.  The committee can call in for review 
any decision made by the Executive, Individual Portfolio Holders or key decisions made 
by officers. The Committee uses task and finish groups to carry out specific pieces of 
work.    A timetable for scrutiny programme planning sets out deadlines and an annual 
Scrutiny and Overview Committee report is produced to the annual meeting of Council. 

 
• During 2011/12 scrutiny task and finish groups covered Customer Contact and learning 

from customer feedback; Sheltered Housing support; Planning Services; and 
Communications. Evidence for these groups was provided through focus groups of 
residents, planning agents, parish councils and staff. The groups also visited examples 
of good practice within neighbouring counties.  Scrutiny has been further strengthened 
by training and development and a summary report of training is included in the Annual 
Report for 2011/12. 

 
• Portfolio Holder meetings are open to the public and, wherever possible, decisions are 

taken at these regularly scheduled meetings, in line with the Constitution, and are 
published in a weekly e-bulletin which is distributed to all Members, co-opted members, 
staff and parish councils and the media.  Matters decided outside of the formal meetings, 
for reasons of urgency, are published on pro-forma decision sheets. Portfolio monitors 
appointed by the Scrutiny and Overview Committee are invited to attend all portfolio 
holders meetings. 

• Forward plans showing all decisions coming up are produced for meetings of executive 
portfolio holders, the Cabinet, the Council and Management Team.  These plans are 
published on the website.  

 

Page 195



 

• All agendas and reports plus relevant supporting documents are available on the 
website in compliance with the statutory deadline for publication of five clear working 
days.  

 
• The Corporate Governance Committee takes responsibility for all governance 

arrangements within the Council and undertakes the core functions of an Audit 
Committee, as identified in CIPFA’s “Audit Committee – Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities”.  

 
• The Council has a corporate Compliments, Complaints and Comments Policy. This has 

been reviewed as part of the Customer Service Excellence Standard work in 2011.  
Complaints about Member conduct are received and determined by the Standards 
Committee according to regulations and the Council’s agreed procedures. 

 
• A standard report template is used for all meetings which requires authors to cover all 

options, relevant background, details of consultation, key implications (financial, human 
resources, legal, risk and equal opportunities) and how the matter contributes to the 
Council meeting its corporate objectives and service priorities.  

 
• The Council has an in-house legal team supporting Members and all sections of the 

Council. The Legal and Democratic Services Manager receives copies of all Executive 
and Council reports for consideration before publication and has input on the legal 
implications of proposed actions and strategies.  She attends all meetings of the Council 
and Cabinet and a senior lawyer is always in attendance at regulatory committees to 
ensure that the limits of lawful activity are not breached and that decision-making is fair.  

 
• The Council’s Legal Team provides advice to decision makers on areas that have legal 

implications and financial advice is provided by the Finance Team.  Suitably qualified 
staff are employed within the legal and financial teams. An advice note for report writers 
on including risk implications in committee reports is available to all staff in the intranet. 

 
•  The Council’s financial management arrangements conform to the governance 

requirements of the CIPFA “Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local 
Government” (2010). 

 
• The Council’s Risk Management Strategy is reviewed annually and is due for approval 

by the Corporate Governance Committee on 23 March 2012. The document 
acknowledges the obligation to minimise adverse risk and details the process for 
identifying, recording, assessing, managing and reviewing risk. A strategic risk register 
has been compiled and is reviewed quarterly by the Management Team and Corporate 
Governance Committee.  Project, partnership and service risk registers are also in place; 
project and partnership risk registers are reviewed by project managers/partnership lead 
officers, in accordance with project management/partnership governance arrangements; 
service area risk registers are reviewed quarterly by departmental management teams 
and annually by the Management Team on a rolling programme. 

 
• A risk maturity audit was carried in 2011/12 where Council was deemed to be “Risk 

Managed”, an audit around the Councils corporate governance arrangements was 
carried out during 2011/12 and substantial assurance was placed around “the controls 

Page 196



 

upon which the organisation relies to manage the risks are suitably designed, 
consistently applied and effective.”   

 
• The Council has a Code of Conduct for staff incorporated in the Constitution, an Anti- 

Theft, Fraud and Corruption Policy and Capability and Disciplinary Procedures. 
 

• The Council’s Whistleblowing policy has been extremely well communicated via the 
Intranet, Internet, Posters and the SCene Magazine and South Cambs Magazine.  
Oversight of this policy is included as a standing item on Standards Committee agendas. 
 

 
Principle Four:  Key Outcomes identified during 2011/12 
• Outcomes demonstrating effective scrutiny and constructive challenge  
• Decisions bulletin supplied separately 
• Enhanced customer service through improved handling of complaints and demonstrable 

learning from complaints – revised and improved processes and achieving the Customer 
Services Excellence Standard 

• Basic principles of decision-making covered as part of new member induction and as part of 
the ‘Working in a political environment’ section of officer induction.   

• Improved decision-making training offered to members and officers 
• Advice note for report writers on including risk implications in committee reports. 
• CORVU has been updated in 2011/12 to include the Strategic Risk Register. 
• Risk Management responsibilities are explicitly included in Job Descriptions 
• The legal team has ensured it has been consulted at the outset of major procurement 

projects this year and has received very positive feedback from those instructing them on 
the value and rigour they have added to the process by early involvement. 

 
 
 
 

Principle 5:  Developing the capacity and capability of Members and officers to be 
effective. 
.  
• An induction programme is in place for newly elected Members.  An Induction Pack is 

also provided to all new Members. In addition, Members are provided with a copy of the 
Members’ Toolkit which contains more detailed information about standards expected of 
Councillors, and includes vital documents such as the Code of Conduct. 

 
• The Member Development Strategy 2011-13 require all members to own the member 

training process and to carry out an annual self-assessment of their training needs.  The 
results from the self-assessment are built into the member training and development 
programme. This will assist members to build their skills to enable them to play a full part 
in the work of the Council and in leading their communities.  
 

• The Council was awarded Quality Charter status for Elected Member Development in 
2011/12. 

Page 197



 

• The Member Development Training programme for 2011/12 included specific skills and 
knowledge, the local and national context, corporate governance, technical skills and 
Personnel Support to enable Members to challenge and scrutinise as part of their roles. 
Members of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee receive monthly training inputs which 
include bulletins, self-led learning, observation visits and trainer-led activities 

 
• Upon appointment, new officers attend an induction session with the Chief Executive 

followed by a formal half-day induction and an in-service induction programme with their 
line manager.    

 
• Ongoing training needs are identified through the staff Performance and Development 

Review (PDR) scheme, from which all staff have personal development plans. 
 
•  A management competency framework has also been developed and the management 

competencies are reviewed through the appraisal scheme. 
 

• The Leadership Programme started in December 2011 and has 40 managers from 
across the Council participating. 

 
• The Council’s developed and adopted a corporate Organisational Development Strategy 

in 2011/12 The OD Strategy covers the Council’s approach to Management 
Development, Investors in People, Job evaluation, Equality and Diversity, Requirements 
from Service Plans, Succession Planning, Service Reviews and Growth Implications. 

 
• All posts within the Council have a detailed job description and person specification to 

ensure that staff are suitably qualified to undertake their responsibilities.   
 
• All staff engage in the Council’s PDR scheme which establishes clear links between 

tangible performance objectives, targets, service plans and corporate objectives.  It 
enables agreed incremental progression, improve performance, identifies development 
opportunities and improves communications and relationships.   

 
• The Council supports a number of professional route qualifications with relevant training 

and development encouraged through coaching, project opportunities and secondments.  
The Council participates in the regional interchange programme which offers 
opportunities for job exchanges and also offers work experience placements. 

 
• The Management Team has benefited from specific training to develop its capacity.  

 
• The Council has been awarded the Investors in People Standard’s Bronze Award by 

demonstrating its commitment to improving business performance through its most 
valuable asset – its people.  This award reflects the very strong ethos of providing 
development and personal support for staff, a good work – life balance, open and 
approachable managers, excellent career and professional development, high levels of 
service to residents, a sound appraisal process and staff involvement in the planning 
process. Re-assessment for IIP is due in autumn 2012. 
 

• A corporate training menu is available to all staff on the intranet and courses are 
regularly promoted by HR on themes such as IT skills, equalities, customer services and 

Page 198



 

sickness absence management. The Council’s training budget was centralised in 
2011/12 to maximise efficiency in delivering training. 

 
• The Council has an Employee and Team Recognition Scheme to recognise outstanding 

customer service, and has been successful in enhancing performance and morale. The 
first year of its operation is complete and a review group has been established to look at 
the impact of the Scheme and identify any improvements considered necessary. 

 
 
Principle Five:  Key Outcomes identified during 2011/12 
• Approval of the Induction and 2011-13 Member Development Strategy and achievement of 

the Quality Charter for Elected Member Development.   
• Appointment of Member Services Officer to act as Members’ first point of contact and to 

assist with training needs analyses and delivery of training identified. 
• A Quick Guide to Standing Orders issued to all members in response to requests for 

guidance. 
• Social Media Training delivered in response to Members’ Communications Needs Survey 
• Decision-making training for members and officers delivered twice during the financial year 
• Finance briefings organised during the budget preparation period for members generally 

and specifically for members of Scrutiny and Overview Committee. 
• Questioning Skills workshop provided for scrutiny members from SCDC and four nearby 

councils 
• Increased management capacity and skills through the Leadership Programme 
• Encouragement and opportunities for secondments, project work and regional interchange 

to develop skills as part of on-the-job training   
• Demonstration of improved customer service and service delivery through VFM measures 

and achievement of the Customer Service Excellence Standard.  
• Adoption of the OD Strategy to ensure that the Council has the right people with the right 

skills to deliver the Council’s Objectives, leading to improved customer satisfaction and 
public perception. 

• Publication of the Plain English guide to the Accounts for 2011/12 
• Agreement that the public can film / tweet / blog during public meetings. The Council 

produces statistics on use and impact of social media 
 
 
 
Principle 6:  Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public 
accountability. 

 
• Council issued its first Annual Report for Tenants in October 2010.  In order to ensure 

that the information needs of tenants have been met by this report a process of 
surveying, information gathering training and collaboration took place with tenant groups 
prior to the 2011 report being drafted. This has included interactive sessions at the 
Leaseholder Forum, Tenant’s Participation Group, Disability Forum and feedback 

Page 199



 

obtained via the council’s sheltered housing officers and the three sheltered housing 
forums. The Annual Report for Tenants for 2011 is available on the Council’s website. 

 
• A Resident Involvement Strategy and a Resident Involvement action plan have been 

approved. 
 
• The Tenant Participation Officer works with the Tenant Participation Group which is very 

active, meeting monthly. A TPG Editorial Panel has been set up to collaborate on 
articles to place in the Tenants News section of the South Cambridgeshire magazine.  

 
• A Disability Forum has been constituted in response to a tenants’ survey where over 

45% of the council’s tenants were identified as either being disabled or looking after 
someone with a disability.  This group meets bi-monthly. 

 
• An online forum of interested tenants, the E-Say group, has been created to respond to 

surveys concerning policy, budgetary or legislative changes 
 
• The terms of reference for the Scrutiny and Overview Committee include consideration 

and implementation of mechanisms to encourage and enhance community participation 
in the development of policy options.  Stakeholders are invited to attend meetings and 
contribute to the Committee’s work programmes including co-option onto panels where 
appropriate.   

 
• Scrutiny and Overview Committee has undertaken a training programme to build its 

skills base and ability to perform effectively as a team in scrutiny of the Council's policies 
and performance. 

• Stakeholders are invited to attend meetings and contribute to the committee’s work 
programmes, including co-option on to panels as appropriate.  In 2011/12, the task and 
finish groups held focus groups for staff, members, planning agents and parish 
councillors appropriate to their remit. 

• A timetable for scrutiny programme planning is used that sets out deadlines and an 
annual Scrutiny and Overview Committee report is produced to the Council. The website 
includes information on scrutiny and a handout is provided to residents, partners and 
witnesses who attend Scrutiny meetings. 

• The Scrutiny Development Officer attends team meetings and staff induction to explain 
what scrutiny is doing and how it affects employees, partners and customers. 

• A scrutiny annual report is produced by the Chairman and Vice chairman which covers 
the outcomes which the committee has contributed to through its work programme and 
recommendations, options for improving the effectiveness of the committee itself, 
progress being made by the executive and conclusions.              

• Each completed scrutiny review is published in a booklet format designed to 
communicate achievements in plain language and ensure that findings and 
recommendations are remembered and actioned.                           

• All Council, Committee, Cabinet and Portfolio meetings are held in an open environment. 
The right to attend and speak at meetings is enshrined within the Constitution and 
guidance regarding public speaking is made available on the website. The Council’s 

Page 200



 

Planning Committee meetings include the opportunity for public speaking by applicants 
and objectors in accordance with a protocol.  

 
• All agendas and minutes of meetings are on the website together with a forward plan 

and record of decisions made. 
 
• The Council’s website contains information on all Council services and provides for 

feedback to be given including a ‘Get involved’ section. 
 
• The Community Engagement Strategy to meet the new duty to involve (as set out in the 

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007) was implemented in 2009 
and a Toolkit to facilitate the action plan was introduced. 

 
• South Cambs Magazine is distributed to every home in the district four times a year and 

published on the Council’s website.  It is also sent to partners on request and to all 
parish councils who wish to receive an individual copy. The Council Tax leaflet for 
2011/12 has been developed in conjunction with a focus group of residents. 

 
• Briefings are held with the local media on average 6 times a year to enhance 

communications and maximise coverage on service issues. 
 
• The Council continues to ensure that all communications with the public are accessible 

to all by providing translation, large print, standard phrase descriptions and Braille. 
 
• The Northstowe Parish Forum has quarterly meetings with county, district and parish 

councillors from the wards and parishes affected by Northstowe and is chaired by the 
Northstowe Portfolio Holder. 

 
• Regular meetings are held with Cambourne Parish Council and the council was involved 

throughout the negotiation for the s106 planning obligation agreement for the 
Cambourne 950. 

• The Cambridge City and South Cambridgeshire Local Strategic Partnership Board has 
met regularly during the year to discuss progress against indicators and targets. 

• A Gypsy and Traveller Community Strategy has been incorporated into the South 
Cambridgeshire Local Plan to ensure that Gypsy and Traveller communities enjoy 
equality of service and are part of cohesive communities within which people from 
different backgrounds participate together and share equal rights and responsibilities. 

• A Community Transport Plan to engage those in rural areas has also been adopted. 
• A comprehensive Equalities Policy has been produced with an action plan, and is the 

Council has agreed a Single Equality Scheme setting out its responsibilities and key 
priorities in respect of all equality characteristics, which was adopted adoption during 
2011/12. 

• 23 parishes have participated in the Sustainable Parish Energy Project. 
• The Cabinet Champion for Policing and all members of the Executive Management 

Team attended meetings of Neighbourhood Panels across the district throughout the 
year. 

Page 201



 

• Liaison with Parish Councils has been improved by the introduction of 6-monthly 
meetings and quarterly parish planning meetings. Other active liaison forums with 
parishes include the Parish Planning IT forum and the Southern Fringe Community 
Forum. 

 
• The Corporate Plan published annually includes a review of performance during the last 

year and plans for the following year.  Performance and value for money information is 
provided in the Council Tax leaflet which has been enhanced and improved. 

 
 
Principle Six:  Key Outcomes identified during 2011/12 
• Targeted consultation of key Council Actions for 2011/12 with all residents, including our 

Gypsy and Traveller Community, parish councils, tenants and young people. The Council’s 
challenge is to communicate with and actively engage with hard to reach sections of the 
community and under-represented groups to ensure a truly representative view is obtained. 
Examples of work in this area include: 
o Excellent parish council attendance at Parish Council Liaison meetings and positive 

feedback received from parish councils about forum events 
o Chief Executive visited all Parishes and District Councillor and SCDC officer 

presence at parish council meetings and Neighbourhood Panels 
o All Council meetings are publicised and open to the public to attend and members of 

the public who do attend portfolio holder meetings are encouraged to give their 
views by portfolio holders – acknowledged difficulty in communicating with those 
who do not, or are unable to, access the Council’s website or attend meetings 

o Scrutiny review of customer contact services has included asking residents groups 
about preferred contact methods via face to face meetings, an online survey, the 
council’s magazine and at the council’s reception 

o Council issued its second Annual Report for Tenants following widespread 
consultation and engagement 

o Disability Forum created meeting bi-monthly 
o Tenant Participation Officer’s work with Tenant Participation Group is leading to 

improved tenant engagement 
• Evidence of leading on public engagement: an off-site workshop for pupils from 3 schools 

involved young people in developing the Youth Plan, a Youth event was held and plans for 
the Youth Council for 2012/13 are in place 

• Constructive relationship with chair of CDRP is enabling chair of scrutiny to pursue 
outstanding actions awaited from police colleagues 

• 2011/12 annual report and booklets about scrutiny reviews enabled new members to 
understand the role of the scrutiny committee sufficiently to volunteer to join in 

• South Cambs Magazine is distributed to every home in the district four times a year and 
published on the Council’s website.  It is also sent to partners on request and to all parish 
councils who wish to receive an individual copy 

Page 202



 

• High satisfaction levels, generally with the accessibility of the Council’s services, and 
specifically e.g. South Cambs magazine and Reception surveys. 

• Parish Charter setting out relationships between County, District and Parish Councils 
• The local media are regarded as a key communication channel with local residents, as well 

as stakeholders in their own right.  Regular briefings are held on key areas of interest, as 
and when needed (roughly six times a year).  Regular informal meetings are held with a 
local newspaper editor to build the relationship. 

• The Council encourages responsible use of social media channels. Twitter (@southcambs) 
has been operating since January 2011 and Facebook (/South Cambridgeshire) has since 
been launched. The Council also uses YouTube and Flickr to share video and images.  
Members have received social media training. 

• Media monitoring takes place on a daily basis and is reported through the weekly bulletin 
• Annual calendar of meetings is prepared early each calendar year for adoption and 

publication in March / April before the start of the new civic year.   
• Consultations are undertaken with lead members, Management Team, neighbouring 

authorities and the Council’s other partners to minimise diary conflicts and ensure an 
effective use of member and officer time 

• Media, online and South Cambs magazine channels are used to publicise consultations and 
to feedback results and actions arising from those results. The Consultation Panel was set 
up in November 2011 to monitor consultation and feedback. 

• Actions from the Community Engagement Strategy have been implemented 
• Positive feedback from customers regarding the Council’s transparency arrangements, 

measured through compliments, informal comments, satisfaction survey results etc. 
 

 
4. REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS 
 
South Cambridgeshire District Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a 
review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control.  
 
This review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the senior managers within the Council 
who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, 
the Internal Audit partner’s annual report, and also by comments made by the external auditors 
and other review agencies and inspectorates, including the Audit Commission. 
 
The following actions and processes have been applied in maintaining and reviewing the 
effectiveness of the governance framework over the last twelve months: 
 
The Council and its Management Team have developed and implemented a number of 
policies and corporate documents as well carrying out a number of actions, as follows: - 
• The Corporate Plan 2011/12 was agreed setting out the priorities for the year and how 

these will be delivered. The 2012/13 Plan was agreed in February 2012. 
• The Council’s Constitution has been reviewed throughout the year to reflect key changes 

in policy. 

Page 203



 

• The Medium Term Financial Strategy has been reviewed and updated and is embedded 
in the business planning process.   

• Updated financial position relating to the General Fund, Housing Revenue Account and 
Capital Expenditure 

• Finance monitoring report including position statement and efficiency savings 
• Review of Health & Safety Policy / Corporate Business Continuity Plan / Emergency 

Planning  
• Regular CORVU monitoring and development of the Corporate Health Card 
• Efficiency savings projects – updates and performance 
• Review of Complaints and Compliments policy and performance and an achievement of 

the Customer Services Excellence Standard 
• Financial impact on the Chancellor’s Budget 
• Information Governance Strategy project 
• County-wide Asset Management Strategy to maximise efficiencies and opportunities to 

share assets  
• Housing Stock Condition survey, component accounting and 30-year business plan for 

the maintenance of Council houses under the new HRA arrangements 
• Member Development – Charter Status achieved 
• Customer Contact Strategic Review culminating in achievement of the Customer Service 

Excellence Standard 
• Adoption of a Corporate OD Strategy 
• Project Management Database tracking and evaluating key corporate projects. 

 
 
The Corporate Governance Committee: 

 
• Monitored performance of the Internal Audit function through quarterly reports 
• Approved the Internal Audit Strategic Plan and Internal Audit Charter 
• Reviewed the Assurance Framework and Annual Governance Statement 
• Reviewed the Absence Management Policy 
• Reviewed the Strategic Risk Register on a quarterly basis and approved a revised Risk 

Management Strategy 
• Approved the Statement of Accounts for 2010/11 
• Received the Annual Governance Report of the External Auditors and their audit opinion 
• Reviewed Treasury Management benchmarking information 
• Reviewed the revisions to the RIPA Policy  
• Received the LG Ombudsman annual report for 2010/11 

 
 
The Scrutiny and Overview Committee: 
 
• Received the reports from the Task & Finish groups on: Customer Contact Centre; 

Learning from feedback; Planning Services; Communications; and Sheltered Housing 
Support  

• Reviewed the report on the Blue Bin Services 
• Received the Performance Report for 2010/11 
• Received an update on the Children & Young People Services 
• Reviewed the Comments, Compliments and Complaints Policy 
• Reviewed the progress towards Customer Services Excellence Standard 

Page 204



 

• Reviewed the performance of the Crime and Disorder Reduction partnership  
• Reviewed the Council’s Economic Development Strategy  
• Scrutinised Integrated Business Monitoring Reports at relevant Portfolio Holder meetings 
• Received updates on the Medium Term Financial Strategy and scrutinized the proposed 

Budget in February 2012 
• Reviewed the Budget and Council Actions for 2012/13 with the Council Objectives and 

Annual Priorities 
• Revisited the Council’s Community Transport Plan 
• Undertook training sessions and workshops to improve skills in scrutiny, questioning, 

impact of new legislation such as Localism, Police, Crime and Health Reform 
• Achieved good public involvement with 89 participants recorded over the year 

 
The Scrutiny & Overview Committee did not have cause to use its call-in powers during 2011/12 
 
There are a number of specific examples of where Scrutiny has made a difference this year 
(specific pieces of work or particular achievements): 
 
• Contributed to the discussion formulating the Council’s response to the Government’s 

draft Planning Policy Statement “Planning for Travellers” 
• Challenged a Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Needs Assessment by the County 

Council, leading to a call for it to be re-presented (to take place in June 2012) 
• Portfolio holder agreed to monitor the suggestions for: allowing retro-fitting of energy 

efficiency measures and renewable in conservation areas; and for a report on how to 
finance conservation area appraisals 

• Portfolio holder agreed to ask for a review of street naming and numbering charges 
 

 
The Standards Committee: 

 
• Provided advice to and training of District and Parish Council Members in relation to the 

Members Code 
• Provided decisions regarding dispensations to Parish Councils 
• Received feedback on the Future of Standards Working Group. The Future of Standards 

Working Group includes representatives of all political groups on the Council, and the 
non-group members, as well as co-opted independent (lay) and parish council members 
to represent the District’s residents and parishes. 

• Received the reports relating to operation of Code of Conduct and other Statutory 
functions of the Monitoring Officer  

• Reviewed the Standards Committee budget 
• Received updates of Scrutiny Reviews and the assessment of complaints 
• Reviewed the Whistle-blowing Policy and its operations across the Council 

 
The Standards Committee continues to monitor the impact of the Localism Act on the 
governance and standards arrangements that will be required in future. 
 
The Council’s Assurance Framework: 
 
The assurance framework is underpinned by the following processes and policies: 
 

• Corporate objectives and priority setting 

Page 205



 

• Service planning process 
• Annual budget and budgetary control process 
• Performance management framework and performance scorecard 
• Self assessment against the local code of governance 
• Risk Management Strategy 
• Anti Theft, Fraud and Corruption Policy 
• Whistleblowing Policy 
• Codes of Conduct / Ethical Standards 
• Financial Regulations and Contract Regulations 
• Procurement Strategy 
• Community Engagement Strategy 
• Partnership protocols 
• Constitution 
• Data Quality Strategy 
• Organisational Development Strategy 
 

The framework is also informed by the views of Internal and External Audit and other review 
agencies. 

 
Internal Audit:  
 
• The internal audit provision is managed, independently, by the Audit Partner and 

operates in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government 2006.  

• The Audit Plan is prioritised by a combination of the key internal controls, assessment 
and review on the basis of risk and the Council’s corporate governance arrangements, 
including risk management.  

• Regular meetings between the internal and external auditor and review of the internal 
audit work by external audit ensure that duplication of effort is avoided.  

• All Audit reports include an audit opinion on the adequacy of internal control; direction of 
travel and prioritised action plans to address any areas requiring improvement. Audit 
reports are submitted to the Chief Executive, Executive Director and Corporate 
Managers as appropriate; the Corporate Governance Committee receives regular 
updates on progress of the plan and full reports on request.  

 
 
Internal Audit Opinion 
 
The Internal Audit Opinion for 2011/12 is as follows: 
 
“We are satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken to allow us to draw a 
reasonable conclusion on the adequacy and effectiveness of South Cambridgeshire District 
Council’s arrangements.   
 
In our opinion, based on the work we have undertaken for the 12 months ended 31 March 
2012 South Cambridgeshire District Council has adequate and effective risk management, 
control and governance processes to manage the achievement of the organisation’s 
objectives.”  
 
 

Page 206



 

External Audit comments: 
The Audit Commission is the Council’s External Audit provider. It is required to give a statutory 
VFM conclusion on the Council's arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  
*The audit opinion and value for money conclusion will be issued by 30 September 2012.* 
 
5. IMPROVEMENTS DURING THE YEAR 
 
This table highlights the progress made on the issues identified in the previous years’ 
Statements as meriting attention to further strengthen effective corporate governance:  

 
2009/2010 Recommendation Action in 2011/12 
Continue to develop the CORVU system to 
ensure that it is used to full capacity.  

Implemented 
CORVU system continues to be well used 
throughout the authority. The Strategic Risk 
Register is now included on the system. 

Ensure full integration between financial and 
performance monitoring.  
 
 

Implemented 
A corporate health-card for the Council has 
been developed and is regularly reported 
and available on the Council website.  

Develop procedures to share and receive 
quality information in respect of partnerships 
and provide more systematic reporting. 
 

Implemented 
Partnerships Manager maintains a register 
of key partnerships and a partnership 
protocol and toolkit is in place. Reports from 
appointed representative are regularly 
produced. 

2010/2011 Recommendation Action in 2011/2012 
Ensure that the Council has sufficient 
information to be able to make accurate 
assessments of Value for Money (VFM) in 
all its services. 
 

Implemented 
VFM framework has been developed and a 
template included in all service plans. 
 
 

Ensure that the Council sets and measures 
consistent standards of customer service for 
its external customers and internal 
relationships, and that satisfaction 
arrangements are timely, systematic and 
robust. 

Implemented 
Customer Service Standards have been set 
and the Council achieved the Excellence 
Standard during 2011/12. 

Ensure that the authority is able to quickly 
determine how it is currently performing 
through the use of a simple, easy to 
understand process. 

Implemented 
Corporate performance ‘scorecard’ 
containing an agreed ‘basket’ of indicators 
was developed and used during 2011/12  

 
6.  SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
No issues which may be regarded as significant were identified during 2011/12 as a result of the 
review of arrangements and by the work of external and internal audit.  Although not classed as 
significant, the following issues have been identified by officers as meriting attention to further 
strengthen effective corporate governance:  

Page 207



 

 
2011/2012 Recommendation Action Planned for 2012/2013 
The Whistle-blowing Policy was last 
reviewed in 2006. The Policy should be 
reviewed during the year to ensure it 
remains fit for purpose and includes 
reference to any changes in relevant 
legislation such as the Bribery Act 

The Whistleblowing Policy is currently under 
the terms of reference of the Council’s 
Standards Committee which will disband in 
its current form on 30th June 2012.  The 
policy and its overview will need to be 
passed to another Council committee..  A 
separate Bribery Act policy has been drafted 
for the approval of Corporate Governance 
Committee.  

Ensure that the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation is promptly updated when the 
restructuring is complete. 
Ensure changes to job descriptions are 
completed promptly where responsibilities 
have changed following management 
restructure. 

The Scheme of Delegation was last updated 
in July 2010 and is currently under review. 
The updated version will take any staffing 
changes following restructuring into 
account. 

Ensure the Council responds promptly to 
regulations and guidance with regards to the 
Localism Act and self-regulation 
arrangements over local standards of 
Member behaviour, code of conduct, and 
other governance arrangements. 

Meetings of the Standards Committee have 
been held to deal with the Localism Act 
regulations when they are published and 
draft procedures are being drawn up.  All 
district and parish councillors are being kept 
up-to-date with progress on the new 
arrangements via the Standards Committee 
newsletters and reports will be going to Full 
Council on 26 July 2012. 

These improvements are planned to strengthen effective corporate governance. 
 
The Council’s Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for ensuring that the Council 
complies with its own governance code including monitoring the effectiveness of the 
governance framework and ensuring plans are put in place to address any weaknesses and 
ensure continuous improvement of the system. 
 
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters set out in the 
table under “Significant Governance Issues” above to further enhance our governance 
arrangements. 
 
We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in 
our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our 
next annual review. 
 
 
 
Signed ………………………………  Signed ………………………………. 
 
Date:      Date: 
 
Jean Hunter     Councillor Ray Manning  
Chief Executive    Leader of the Council 

Page 208



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Corporate Governance Committee 29th June 2012 
AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Corporate Services) / Legal & Democratic Services 

Manager 
 

 
REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000  

  QUARTERLY UPDATE ON USE OF RIPA  
 
Purpose 
 

1. In September 2011 Council agreed that the Corporate Governance Committee should 
take on the responsibility of receiving quarterly updates on the Council’s use of RIPA 
powers and of reviewing the RIPA policy on an annual basis and making 
amendments as necessary. This report includes an update on the use of RIPA in the 
first and second quarters of 2012. 
 
 
Recommendations 

 
2. That Corporate Governance Committee: 
 

NOTE the information contained in the report about the council’s use of surveillance 
powers in the period January to June 2012. 

 
Background 

 
3. The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 regulates covert investigations by a 

number of bodies, including local authorities.  It was introduced to ensure that 
individuals’ rights are protected while also ensuring that law enforcement and security 
agencies have the powers they need to do their job effectively. 

 
4. South Cambridgeshire District Council is included within the RIPA framework with 

regard to the authorisation of both directed surveillance and the use of covert human 
intelligence sources. 
 

5. Under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (“RIPA”), the council must 
have in place a system of authorising, recording and reviewing any surveillance that it 
carries out that is covered by the Act.  This system must comply with the Act, 
regulations and codes of practice and every Council must have its own RIPA Policy. 
 

6. Directed surveillance includes the covert surveillance of an individual in 
circumstances where private information about that individual may be obtained. The 
council’s policy makes it clear that this should only be authorised where it is both 
necessary and proportionate to the investigation or operation being undertaken and 
to what is being sought to achieve in terms of evidence gathering. 

 
7. A covert human intelligence source (“CHIS”) is a person who, pretending to be 

someone that they are not, builds up a relationship of trust with another person for the 
purpose of obtaining information as part of an investigation. The Council has not 
sought to make use of the CHIS provision. 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 209



The council’s use of RIPA in Quarters 1 & 2 2012 
 
8. The information in the table below outlines the authorisations granted by the council 

during the first and second quarters of 2012. 
 
Quarter Directed 

surveillance 
CHIS Total Purpose 

Jan – March 
2012 

0 0 0  

April – June 
2012 

2 0 2 1)To assist in 
the detection of 
benefit fraud 
(DWP 
investigation) 
 
2)To assist in 
the detection of 
fraud 
 

 
Implications 
 

9.  Financial No implications 
Legal Authorisation of surveillance activity gives that surveillance 

“lawful authority” for the purposes of the European Convention 
on Human Rights 

Staffing No implications 
Risk Management See comments under “Legal” 
Equality and 
Diversity 

See comments under “Legal” 
Equality Impact 
Assessment 
completed 

No adverse impact  
 

Climate Change No implications 
 

Effect on Strategic Aims 
 

10. None identified.  
 

Conclusions / Summary 
 
11. This report provides an update on the Council’s use of RIPA over the previous six 

months. 
 

 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report:  
 
None 

 
Contact Officer:  Fiona McMillan – Legal & Democratic Services Manager 

Telephone: (01954) 713027 

Page 210



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Corporate Governance Committee 29th June 2012 
AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Corporate Services)/Legal & Democratic Services 

Manager 
 

 
ANTI-BRIBERY POLICY  

 
 Purpose 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to enable the Committee to comment on and approve a 

proposed Anti-Bribery Policy (Annex A). 
 
2. This is not a key decision. 
 
 Recommendations 
 
3. That the Committee APPROVES the proposed Anti-Bribery Policy. 
 
 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
4. In accordance with the Internal Audit Plan 2011/12 a fraud review was undertaken by 

RSM Tenon whose confidential report was published in May 2012.  The object of the 
review was “to verify whether existing systems and processes in place at South 
Cambridgeshire District Council can be (and are) used to monitor what proactive 
checks are undertaken, either regularly or randomly, to identify instances of fraud, 
error and or bribery.”  Their report contained recommendations to assist the Council 
in the development of these processes to achieve sector-recognised good practice.  
A number of weaknesses were identified and recommendations were made, one of 
which related to the impact of the Bribery Act 2010 on the processes relating to 
Declarations of Interests and Gifts & Hospitality. 
 

5. The Council already has in place an Anti-Theft, Fraud & Corruption Policy (2009) 
which is embedded in the Constitution (Part 5 – section J).  This Policy and the 
Council’s internal processes and procedures were subsequently amended to reflect 
the changes in law when the Bribery Act 2010 came into force on 1st July 2011.  RSM 
Tenon took this into account but still identified the weakness as outlined in paragraph 
4. above.   Their recommendation was “to put in place an independent Anti-Bribery 
Policy and to communicate this to all staff.”   

 
 Background 
 
6. All organisations need to assess whether they have adequate procedures to ensure 

that they are not involved in bribery and corruption so that they do not incur liability 
under the Bribery Act 2010.  The Council’s existing policies, processes and 
procedures go a long way to meeting this requirement but the adoption of a stand-
alone Anti- Bribery Policy is now necessary to ensure the Council continues to follow  
sector-wide good practice in this area.  It is generally accepted that corruption causes 
poverty and suffering, inhibits economic growth, damages business both financially 
and in relation to reputation and may result in criminal and civil liability and penalties 
for organisations and individuals.  It undermines democracy and brings authorities 
into disrepute. 

Agenda Item 10Page 211



 
 Considerations 
 
7. The existing Anti-Theft, Fraud & Corruption Policy was last reviewed and updated by 

this Committee in 2009.  It was subsequently amended to reflect changes brought 
about by the Bribery Act 2010.  The propose Anti-Bribery Policy is a stand-alone 
policy and can therefore be added as an annex to the Constitution.  

 
 Options 
 
8. In reviewing the proposed Anti-Bribery Policy the Committee could suggest 

amendments. 
 
 Implications 
 
9. Financial There are no immediate financial implications 
 Legal The proposed policy meets with legal requirements 
 Staffing  The policy heightens individual and collective responsibility of 

Officers and Members with regard to the prevention of 
corruption and bribery 

 Risk Management Adoption of the proposed policy is consistent with the 
principles laid out in the Bribery Act 2010 

 Equality and 
Diversity 

None 
 Equality Impact 

Assessment 
completed 

No 

 Climate Change None 
 
 Consultations 
 
10. The Portfolio Holder for Finance & Staffing will be consulted before the meeting. 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 
Annex A:    Proposed Anti-Bribery Policy 
 
Contact Officer:   David Lord 
    Senior Lawyer 
    Telephone: (01954) 713193 

Page 212



 

Page 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT/Anti- Bribery Policy 
 

            June 2012 
                   (v.14.6.2012) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 213



 

Page 2 
 

 
Table of Contents 
 
 
 
  Page 

 
1. POLICY STATEMENT 3 

 
1.1 Objective of this Policy 3 
 
1.2 

 
Scope of this Policy 

 
3 

 
1.3 

 
The Council’s Commitment to Action 

 
3 

 
1.4 

 
What is Bribery? 

 
4 

 
1.5 

 
The Bribery Act 

 
4 

 
1.6 

 
Is the Council a Commercial Organisation? 

 
4 

   
 
2. 

 
ANTI BRIBERY PROCEDURES 

 
4 

 
2.1 The Council’s Procedures Cover Six Principles 5 
 
2.2 

 
Penalties 

 
5 

 
2.3 

 
Bribery is not tolerated 

 
6 

 
2.4 

 
Facilitation Payments 

 
6 

 
2.5 

 
Gifts and Hospitality 

 
6 

 
2.6 

 
Public Contracts and Failure to Prevent Bribery 

 
6 

 
2.7 

 
Your Responsibilities as a Member or Officer 

 
7 

 
2.8 

 
Raising a Concern 

 
7 

   
 
3. 

 
OTHER RELEVANT POLICIES 

 
7 

 

Page 214



 

Page 3 
 

1. POLICY STATEMENT  
 
 Bribery is a criminal offence.  South Cambridgeshire District Council (the Council) 

does not, and will not, pay bribes or offer improper inducements to anyone for any 
purpose, nor does it or will it, accept bribes or improper inducements.  To use a 
third party as a conduit to channel bribes to others is a criminal offence.  The 
Council does not, and will not, engage indirectly in or otherwise encourage bribery.  
It is committed to the prevention, deterrence and detection of bribery.  It has zero-
tolerance towards bribery.  It aims to maintain anti-bribery compliance as “business 
as usual”, rather than as a one-off exercise. 

 
1.1 Objective of this Policy 
 
 This Policy provides a coherent and consistent framework to enable the Council’s 

Members and officers to understand and implement arrangements enabling 
compliance.  In conjunction with related policies and key documents it will also 
enable Members and officers to identify and effectively report a potential breach. It 
must be read in conjunction with the Council’s Anti-Theft, Fraud and Corruption 
Policy. 

 
 The Council requires that all Members and officers, including those permanently 

employed, temporary agency staff, contractors, agents, volunteers and consultants, 
 

� act honestly and with integrity at all times and to safeguard the Council’s 
resources for which they are responsible; 

 
� comply with the spirit, as well as the letter, of the laws and regulations of all 

jurisdictions in which the Council operates, in respect of the lawful and 
responsible conduct of activities. 

 
1.2 Scope of this Policy 
 
 This Policy applies to all of the Council’s activities.  For partners, joint ventures and 

suppliers, it will seek to promote the adoption of policies consistent with the 
principles set out in this Policy. 

 
 Within the Council, the responsibility to control the risk of bribery occurring resides 

at all levels of the organisation.   
 
 This Policy covers all Members, officers, including all levels and grades, those 

permanently employed, temporary agency staff, contractors, non-executives, agents, 
volunteers and consultants.  

 
1.3 The Council’s Commitment to Action 
 

The Council commits to: 
 

� setting out a clear anti-bribery policy and keeping it up to date; 
 

� making  all officers and Members aware of their responsibilities to adhere 
strictly to this Policy at all times;  

Page 215



 

Page 4 
 

 
� training key officers and Members so that they can recognise and avoid the 

use of bribery by themselves and others; 
 

� encouraging  its officers and Members to be vigilant and to report any 
suspicions of bribery, providing them with suitable channels of 
communication and ensuring sensitive information is treated appropriately; 

 
� rigorously investigating instances of alleged bribery and assisting police and 

other appropriate authorities in any resultant prosecution; 
 

� taking firm and vigorous action against any individual(s) involved in bribery; 
 

� provide information to all officers and Members to report breaches and 
suspected breaches of this Policy; 

 
� include appropriate clauses in contract documents to prevent bribery. 

 
1.4 W hat is Bribery? 
 

Bribery is an inducement or reward offered, promised or provided to gain personal, 
commercial, regulatory or contractual advantage. 

 
1.5 The Bribery Act 2010  
 

The Bribery Act makes it an offence to offer, promise or give a bribe (Section 1).  It 
also makes it an offence to request, agree to receive, or accept a bribe (Section 2).  
Section 6 of the Act creates a separate offence of bribing a foreign public official with 
the intention of obtaining or retaining business or an advantage in the conduct of 
business. –  further details can be found at  : 
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/acts/acts2010/ukpga_20100023_en_1 

 
There is also a corporate offence under Section 7 of failure by a commercial 
organisation to prevent bribery that is intended to obtain or retain business, or an 
advantage in the conduct of business, for the organisation.  This is what is known as 
a ‘strict liability’ offence.  This means that there is no need to prove negligence or 
management complicity.  An organisation will have a defence to this corporate 
offence if it can show that it had in place adequate procedures designed to prevent 
bribery by or of persons associated with the organisation. 

 
1.6 Is the Council a “Commercial Organisation”? 
 
The guidance states that a “commercial organisation” is any body formed in the United 
Kingdom and “… it does not matter if it pursues primarily charitable or educational aims or 
purely public functions.  It will be caught if it engages in commercial activities, irrespective of 
the purpose for which profits are made.”  There are circumstances in which the Council will 
be a commercial organisation for the purposes of section 7.  This Policy is intended to 
ensure that the Council has in place the necessary procedures to act as a defence to a 
section 7 offence.2. ANTI-BRIBERY PROCEDURES 
 
 

Page 216



 

Page 5 
 

2.1 The Council’s Procedures Cover Six Principles: 
 

Proportionality 
The Council has procedures in place to prevent bribery by persons associated with 
it.  These are proportionate to the bribery risks faced and to the nature, scale and 
complexity of activities undertaken.  They are also clear, practical, accessible, 
effectively implemented and enforced.  

 
Top level commitment 
Cabinet and the Chief Officers are committed to preventing bribery by persons 
associated with the Council.  They foster a culture within the organisation in which 
bribery is never acceptable.  
 
Risk Assessment 
The nature and extent of the Council’s exposure to potential external and internal 
risks of bribery on its behalf of persons associated with it is periodically assessed.  
This includes financial risks but also other risks such as reputational damage.  

 
Due diligence 
The Council takes a proportionate and risk based approach in respect of persons 
who perform or will perform services for or on behalf of the organisation, in order 
to mitigate identified bribery risks.  

 
Communication (including training) 
The Council seeks to ensure that its bribery prevention policies and procedures are 
embedded and understood throughout the organisation through internal and 
external communication, including training that is proportionate to the risks it faces. 

 
Monitoring and review 
Procedures are designed to prevent bribery and are monitored and reviewed and 
improvements made where necessary. 

 
2.2 Penalties 
 

An individual guilty of an offence under sections 1, 2 or 6 is liable: 
 

� on conviction in a Magistrates Court, to imprisonment for a maximum term 
of 12 months , or to a fine not exceeding  £5,000, or to both; 

 
� on conviction in a Crown Court, to imprisonment for a maximum term of 

ten years, or to an unlimited fine, or both; 
 
 The Council, if convicted under sections 1, 2 or 6 will also face the same level of 

fines and, if guilty of an offence under section 7, is liable to an unlimited fine. 
 

Page 217



 

Page 6 
 

2.3 Bribery is not tolerated 
 

It is unacceptable to: 
 

� give, promise to give, or offer a payment, gift or hospitality with the 
expectation or hope that a business advantage will be received, or to reward 
a business advantage already given; 

 
� give, promise to give, or offer a payment, gift or hospitality to a government 

official, agent or representative to “facilitate” or expedite a routine 
procedure; 

 
� accept payment from a third party that you know or suspect is offered with 

the expectation that it will obtain a business advantage for it; 
 

� accept a gift or hospitality from a third party if you know or suspect that it is 
offered or provided with an expectation that a business advantage will be 
provided by the Council in return; 

 
� retaliate against or threaten a person who has refused to commit a bribery 

offence or who has raised concerns under this Policy; 
 

� engage in activity in breach of this Policy. 
 
2.4 Facilitation Payments 
 
 Facilitation payments are not tolerated and are illegal.  Facilitation payments are 

unofficial payments made to public officials in order to secure or expedite actions or 
to perform routine functions they are otherwise obligated to perform. 

 
2.5 Gifts and Hospitality 
 
 This Policy is not meant to change the requirements of the Council’s approach to 

gifts and hospitality as set out within the Gifts, Hospitality and Sponsorship Policy: 
Guidance for Members and the Gifts, Hospitality and Sponsorship Policy: Guidance for 
Officers. 

 
2.6 Public Contracts and Failure to Prevent Bribery 
 
 Under the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 (which gives effect to EU law in the 

UK), a company is automatically and perpetually debarred from competing for public 
contracts where it is convicted of a corruption offence.  There are no plans to 
amend the 2006 Regulations for this to include the crime of failure to prevent 
bribery.  Organisations that are convicted of failing to prevent bribery are not 
automatically barred from participating in tenders for public contracts.  The Council 
has the discretion to exclude organisations convicted of this offence.  

 

Page 218



 

Page 7 
 

2.7 Your Responsibilities as a Member or Officer 
 

The prevention, detection and reporting of bribery and other forms of corruption is 
the responsibility of all those working for the Council or under its control.  All 
Members and officers are required to avoid activity that breaches this Policy. 

 
You must: 

 
� ensure that you read, understand and comply with this Policy; 

 
� raise concerns as soon as possible if you believe or suspect that a conflict 

with this Policy has occurred, or may occur in the future. 
 

As well as the possibility of civil and criminal prosecution, officers that breach this 
Policy will face disciplinary action, which could result in dismissal for gross 
misconduct. 

 
2.8 Raising a Concern 
 

The Council is committed to ensuring that all of us have a safe, reliable, and 
confidential way of reporting any suspicious activity.  It wants each and every Council 
Member or officer, agency staff, contractors, agents, volunteers and consultants to 
know how they can raise concerns.  Everyone has a responsibility to help detect, 
prevent and report instances of bribery.  If you have a concern regarding a suspected 
instance of bribery or corruption, please speak up – your information and assistance 
will help.  The sooner you act, the sooner it can be resolved.  Please refer to the 
Council’s Whistleblowing Policy http://insite/StaffMatters/Whistleblowing/default.htm. 

 
Concerns can be anonymous.  In the event that an incident of bribery, corruption, or 
wrongdoing is reported, the Council will act as soon as possible to evaluate the 
situation.  It has clearly defined procedures for investigating fraud, misconduct and 
non-compliance issues and these will be followed in any investigation of this kind. 

 
3. OTHER RELEVANT POLICIES 
 

Anti-Theft, Fraud and Corruption Policy 
Code of Conduct for Members and Co-opted Members 
Officers’ Code of Conduct 
Gifts, Hospitality and Sponsorship Policy: Guidance for Members 
Gifts, Hospitality and Sponsorship Policy: Guidance for Officers. 
The Council’s Contract Regulations 
The Council’s Financial Regulations  
Disciplinary Policy & Procedure 
Whistleblowing Policy 

Page 219



Page 220

This page is left blank intentionally.



A
genda Item

 11
P

age 221



P
age 222

T
his page is left blank intentionally.


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12
	5 Internal Audit Progress Report
	6 Statement of Accounts 2011/12 (Subject to Audit)
	Draft Statement of Accounts 2011 12

	7 Strategic Risk Register / Risk Management Strategy
	Risk Management report to CGC 290612 Appendix A
	Risk Management report to CGC 290612 Appendix B
	Risk Management Strategy to CGC 290612 Appendix C
	Risk Management Strategy to CGC 290612 Appendix D
	Risk Management Strategy to CGC 290612 Appendix E

	8 Annual Governance Statement
	Annual Governance Statement Appx 1

	9 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA): Quarterly Update
	10 Bribery Policy
	Anti-Bribery Policy 29 June 2012 Appx A

	11 Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2011/12

